
 

PUBLIC

Yavapai College 
District Governing Board 

Regular Meeting  
 

Tuesday, February 20, 2024 
 1:00 p.m. 

The meeting location will be open to the public at 12:45p.m. at the latest. 
 

Prescott Campus 
Rock House 

1100 East Sheldon Street 
Prescott, AZ 86301 

 
Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.)  §38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the members of the Yavapai College 
District Governing Board and to the general public that the Board will hold a public meeting, open to the public as 
specified below. The Board reserves the right to change the order of items on the agenda. One or more members of the 
Board may participate in the meeting by telephonic communication. 
 
Pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03.A.2, A.3 and A.4, the Board may vote to go into Executive Session, which will not be 
open to the public, for legal advice concerning any item on the agenda to review, discuss and consider records exempt by 
law from public inspection, including the receipt and discussion of information or testimony that is specifically required 
to be maintained as confidential by state or federal law; or to consult with and instruct its attorneys regarding its position 
on contracts, litigation or settlement discussions.  If indicated on the agenda, the Board may also vote to go into 
executive session, which will not be open to the public, to discuss specific agenda items. 
 
Persons with a disability may request reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language interpreter or closed caption, 
by contacting the Executive Assistant at (928)776-2307. Requests should be made as early as possible to allow time to 
arrange the accommodation. 
 
Please note that the meeting conclusion time is included for planning purposes only and does not necessarily reflect the 
actual time of the agenda item. When regular board meetings, public hearings (both truth in taxation and budget 
adoption public hearings) and budget adoption special meetings are scheduled for the same date, each hearing or 
meeting will begin immediately upon adjournment of the preceding hearing or meeting.  
 
If the agenda includes an Open Call, members of the public will have no more than 3 minutes to speak. The time 
allotted for each speaker may be less than 3 minutes, depending on the number of individuals wishing to address the 
board at the meeting and the board president’s determination of the total time available for open call at the meeting, 
given the other matters on the board’s agenda. *In addition, if there are a number of people who wish to speak about the 
same issue and who have the same viewpoint about that issue, the board president may direct them to appoint a 
representative or representatives to speak for the entire group. Members of the board may not discuss items that are not 
specifically identified on the agenda but that are raised in Open Call. Matters raised during Open Call that are on the 
current board agenda may be discussed and/or decided by the board at the appropriate time on the agenda. 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. General Functions: Procedural  

a. Call to Order {Time: 1} 
 

b. Pledge of Allegiance {Time: 1} 
 

c. Adoption of Agenda – DECISION {Time: 1}  
 

d. Open Call – INFORMATION {Time: 10} 

1 of 200



2. Study Session  
a. President’s Reports - Dr. Lisa Rhine - INFORMATION {Time: 60} 

i. College Council – Dr. Douglas Berry, Dr. Janet Nix and Mr. Rodney 
Jenkins 

1. Faculty Senate – Mr. Bryan Robertson (Attached) 
2. Staff Association – Ms. Gwen Payne (Attached) 
3. Student Government Association – Mr. Zane Shepard, Vice 

President of Yavapai College Student Government Association 
(Attached) 

ii. President’s Report on Board Policy 206, College Planning - Dr. Clint Ewell 
(Attached) 

iii. 2023-2024 Yavapai College Continuous Status Faculty – Dr. Douglas Berry 
(Attached) 

iv. Budget to Actual Monthly Reports and Cash Reserves Monthly Reports 
(Attached) 

  
b. Facility Condition Assessment – Mr. Chad Hancock, Account Manager at Sightlines 

– INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION {Time: 30} (Attached) 
 
c. Preliminary Capital Budget and Financing – Dr. Clint Ewell, Vice President of 

Finance – INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION {Time: 60} 
 

d. Board Liaisons’ Reports - INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION {Time: 10} 
i. Board Spokesperson – Board Chair McCasland 
ii. Arizona Association of Community College Trustee (AACCT) – Board Chair 

McCasland  
iii. Yavapai College Foundation – Member Steve Bracety 

 
e. Dates and Time of Future Meetings and Events – INFORMATION, 

DISCUSSION, AND DECISION {Time: 5} 
i. 2023-2024 Dates, Times, and Places of Future Board Meetings, Workshops, 

and Retreats (Attached) 
ii. 2023-2024 Dates, Times, and Places of Future College Events (Attached) 

                          iii.   2023-2024 Dates, Times, and Places of Future National, State, and Local  
                                 Events (Attached)  
 

3. Board Business 
a. Executive Session Protocol – Board Chair McCasland – DISCUSSION AND 

DECISION {Time: 15} 
 

b. Consent Agenda – DECISION {Time: 5}  
i. Workshop Meeting Minutes Revised – Tuesday, January 16, 2024 (Attached) 
ii. Acceptance of President’s Report on Board Policy 206 College Planning 
iii. Receipt of Report on Revenues and Expenditures for November 2023 

(Attached) 
iv. Receipt of Report on Revenues and Expenditures for December 2023 

(Attached) 
v. Receipt of Report on Revenues and Expenditures for January 2024 

(Attached) 

2 of 200



vi. Revision to Yavapai College District Governing Board Policy 101 – 
College Priorities (Attached) 

vii. Revision to Yavapai College District Governing Board Policy 307 – Board 
Member Responsibilities and Obligations (Attached) 

viii. Revision to Yavapai College District Governing Board Policy 305 – Board 
Governing Focus & Style (Attached) 

ix. Revision to Yavapai College District Governing Board Policy 306 – Board 
Member Code of Conduct & Ethics (Attached) 

x. Revision to Yavapai College District Governing Board Policy 401 – 
Delegation to and Accountability of President (Attached) 

xi. 2024-12 Yavapai College District Board Resolution (Attached) 
xii. 2024 Yavapai College Sabbatical Leave Request 

1. Jason Whitesitt (Attached) 
2. Nicole Dean (Attached) 
3. Mark Muchna (Attached) 

xiii. Yavapai College Summary of Program Deletion Proposals (Attached) 
1. Advanced Tax – IRS Enrolled Agent Certificate 
2. Equine Care and Management Certificate 
3. Medical Assistant Associate of Applied Science 

xiv. Yavapai College Summary of New Program Proposals (Attached) 
1. Bachelor of Science in Business with Digital Marketing 

Concentration 
2. Foundations of Leadership Certificate 
3. Media and Extended Realities Certificate 
4. Agriculture Technology Management Certificate 
5. Media Editing and Post-Production Certificate 
6. Script Supervisor Certificate 
7. Women’s Health Imaging Certificate 

xv. Yavapai College Summary of New Program Proposals (Attached) 
1. Legal Paraprofessional Certificate – Juvenile Dependency 

Concentration 
 

4. Adjournment of Board Regular Meeting: Procedural - DECISION {Time: 1} 

3 of 200



Faculty Association Update
February 2024 Update

Presenter: Bryan Robertson, Co-Chair

4 of 200



Division 3
Jerald Monahan (Director: Administration of Justice Studies, YC Justice 

Institute)

• Federal COPS grant on positive police reform and de-
escalation training program for entire Southwest

• Law and Justice Club scheduled tours of FBI 
headquarters and Arizona Department of Public Safety 
Crime Lab

• w/ Dr. Brandelyn Andres: Coordination of AmeriCorps 
student intern program

• Certified Protective Factors Trainers (Prevent Child 
Abuse Arizona), including organizing Northern Arizona 
Thriving Families Conference (April 4-5, 2024)

• In conjunction with YC Respect Campaign, Community 
Peace Forum (6-8pm)

• Faculty of the Year for Pacific region from the 
Association of Community College Trustees (October 
2023)
5 of 200



Division 1

Robert Smith (Welding)

• Assisting students engage in community service projects, such 
as welding a winch mount on a car hauling trailer. 

6 of 200



Division 4

Andrew Winters (Philosophy )

• Presenting at the American Philosophical Association Central 
Division Meeting February 21st, New Orleans as part of a 
Colloquium on Social and Political Philosophy. 

• Consulting Prescott Launchpad’s Teen Advisory Council and their 
Better Together Program to assist their work to engage in civil 
discourse and encourage respect for differences.  

7 of 200



In December 2023, the YCSA:

Hosted the Winter  Celebra t ion        
on the Prescott and Verde                           

Valley campuses.

There were 161 attendees in 
Prescott and 54 in Verde Valley.  

8 of 200



We created the very first YC Angel Tree for YC 
families in need.

Provided over 160 presents to children of 
Yavapai College students

Served 3 Verde Valley families including a 
single mom with 6 children

Provided gifts for 13 children at the 
Clarkdale-Jerome school district

9 of 200



We created a Food  Dr ive for                
families in need.

We served 47 YC College families 
with dinner boxes and 

gift cards to Fry’s.

10 of 200



Yavapai College Student Government 
Association Update

11 of 200



Spring Semester

12 of 200



SGA Elections

 Applications Open 1/31 
– Close 3/1

 Campaign starts 1/31
 Voting 3/18
 Results Announced 4/8

13 of 200



DC Trip with YC Leadership

14 of 200



 
 

Monitoring Report 
Board Policy 206 – Planning 

February 2024 
 

 
Policy 206 
The President shall not permit planning that allocates resources in a way that deviates materially from Board-
stated College Priorities as set forth in Board Policy 101, risks fiscal jeopardy, or does not enable the long-term 
ability of the College to achieve Board Priorities. 
 
Accordingly, the President shall not: 
 

1. Operate without a documented, multi-year strategy that can reasonably be expected to achieve Board priorities. 
2. Permit Planning that risks any situation or donation described as unacceptable in the Financial Conditions Policy 

(204) 
 
Multi-Year Strategic Plan 
Given the pace of change, the College’s practice is to create a rolling three-year plan that is updated annually to 
ensure it addresses the current environment.   
 

1. Chaired by the Executive Director of Institutional Effectiveness, Research and Grants (IERG), the core 
membership of the Strategic Planning Committee includes membership from the major planning 
committees within the college, including: 
 

 
2. The committee reviews a variety of internal information including the DGB Priorities, YC Mission, Plans 

and KPI’s, as well as employee and student survey results.  In addition, the committee reviews a variety 
of external information including articles, books, reports, videos, and an Environmental Scan prepared by 
IER.   

 
3. Using this information, they conduct a SWOT (Internal Strengths and Weaknesses, External Opportunities 

and Threats) analysis of YC  
 

4. They conclude with an annual review—and update if needed—of YC’s Strategic Goals and Actions. 
 

15 of 200



 
 
Strategic Priorities to be accomplished as part of our FY24-26 Strategic Plan include 
 
 

 
 
Additional evidence of our Strategic Planning Process can be found on the Strategic Planning page of the Yavapai 
College Website.  
 
Resource Allocation that aligns with the Board’s Priorities 
The following is an estimate of how the College’s General Fund Budget allocates expenses to the Board’s 
Priorities of Education, Economic Development, or Cultural Enrichment.  In the case where a department supports 
two ends, the budget was typically split evenly.   
 

16 of 200

https://www.yc.edu/v6/strategic-planning/


 
 

Mitigating Financial Risks  
As outlined in Financial Conditions, the College has adopted a variety of financial planning best practices to limit 
risks including transparency, annual benchmarking exercises, monthly financial reports, healthy contingencies 
and reserves, conservative budget assumptions, etc.   
 
To help create fiscal transparency, the Vice President of Finance & Administrative Services systematically 
presents a series of budget-related information to the Board as is documented on our College’s budget website. 
Yavapai College Budget.   In addition to the annual budget calendars and most recent budget presentations, the 
budget website includes a Budget In Brief document for the current year’s budget, as well as 5 years of YC 
budgets and 5 years of Certified Annual Financial Reports.  
  
Yavapai College has received the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting from the 
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for over 20 years in a row.  The GFOA established the 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence to encourage and assist state and local governments to go beyond the 
minimum requirements of generally accepted accounting principles to prepare comprehensive annual financial 
reports that demonstrate transparency and full disclosure.  YC has also had unqualified audit opinions during that 
same timeframe.  Likewise, the College has been awarded the GFOA Distinguished Budget Award presentation 
every year since FY21-22 Budget indicating we met best practice criteria for creating a budget that serves as a 
policy document, financial plan, operations guide, and communication tool.  
 
Long Term Ability to Achieve Ends/ Fiscal Soundness of Future Years  
In regard to financial stability, the Board has established fund reserve minimums.  As was demonstrated through 
the Cash Reserves Monthly Reports, these fund reserve targets have been consistently exceeded, even as the 
Board increased Reserve targets in the middle of FY21.  Moreover, as has been demonstrated in the annual Budget 
Book, the College has created contingency expense budgets to cover the eventuality that the revenue targets are 
not achieved in any given year.  
 
The College maintains an on-going cycle of environmental scanning as method to anticipate future changes, and 
adjusts plans accordingly.  The Scan is shared with the Board annually.  

17 of 200

http://www.yc.edu/v5content/budget/
https://www.yc.edu/v6/strategic-planning/docs/2022/yavapai-college-environmental-scan-report_11.15.22.pdf


 
As part of the Annual Budget, the College provides five year projections of Revenues and Expenses to project 
both financial solvency and compliance with the AZ Expenditure Limitation statute.  The College also presents 
its capital budget in a multi-year format to forecast Preventative Maintenance Plans, Equipment Replacement 
Plans, and Capital Improvement Plans (CIP).  Finally, the College presents Debt trends and forecasts. 
 
 
 
President’s Conclusion:  
I report compliance.    

18 of 200

https://www.yc.edu/v6/budget/docs/fy23-dev-dgb-presentations/fy23-adopted-budget-book-5-17-22.pdf


Megan Vandermeer 
Megan has been a nurse for 16 years, spending 9 years 
as a bedside nurse with her primary experience in L&D, 
postpartum, and well newborn nursery, working for CHS 
& Banner Health systems. After she obtained her 
master’s degree in nursing leadership, she left the 
bedside and spent 5 years as a Nurse Education 
Specialist for Banner Health. In the last 2.5 years at 
Yavapai College, Megan taught NSG 155 Pharmacology 
for Nursing II, NSG 250 Maternal/Child Theory, NSG 280 
Professional Nursing Concepts, and multiple nursing 
clinical sections (NSG 142, NSG 152, NSG 242, and NSG 
272). She also had the opportunity to participate in and 
teach in the YC Bachelor of Science in Nursing Program. 
Megan is excited to be here at YC and looks forward to 
contributing to nursing education and the growth of YC 
students.

19 of 200



Aaron Rodriquez
Aaron was born in Cottonwood, AZ in 1982. He spent his 
entire life residing in the Verde Valley area. Aaron is a 
father to a wonderful daughter.  He is an outdoorsman, 
an athlete, a fitness junkie, a personal trainer as well as 
the son of a college professor, just to name a few things. 
If anyone told Aaron five years ago that he would be 
where he is today, he would not have believed them. As 
a child, Aaron’s father owned a body shop in Clarkdale, 
AZ. When Aaron left the shop to go into the construction 
industry, people asked him why he didn’t follow in his 
father’s footsteps?   Aaron could not answer that 
question. When his father sold his shop, he began 
teaching Auto at Yavapai college at CTEC. So, by 
achieving this milestone in his career, Aaron is finally 
following in his father’s footsteps. He could not be more 
excited, and he thanks you all so much.

20 of 200



Sara Cooper
Sara Cooper comes to Yavapai after teaching in Texas 
for 30 years. While in the Dallas area, she taught in 
high schools and community colleges. While 
teaching in high school, she also coached basketball 
and volleyball. Sara is an avid sports fan and was 
lucky enough to hold the Stanley Cup when the 
Dallas Stars won in 1999. Since coming to Yavapai, 
Sara has served as a faculty mentor for Students of 
Leadership and as a co-advisor for the Beta Gamma 
Pi chapter of Phi Theta Kappa.

21 of 200



Mike Schaible
Mike Schaible was part owner of a machine shop in Chino 
Valley where he ran the engineering and inspection 
departments. He started working in the machine shop at the 
early age of ten and ran his first CNC machine when he was 
thirteen. Whether it be collaborating, communicating, or 
connecting, he will always treasure his time spent in the 
family business. He loved what he did and was anxious to 
pivot and do something he has always wanted to do, teach. 
He endeavors to pass his wisdom on and educate future 
machinists in a classroom setting. Mike brings with him 30 
years of skill and expertise from an industrial perspective in 
a work environment. 
Mike’s been married for 24 years. They reside in Chino 
Valley. They have two children who still like to hang out with 
him. He enjoys biking and hiking the trails of Prescott.

22 of 200



Kyle Russ-Navarro
Kyle grew up in the Silicon Valley and attended UC Berkeley 
for his undergraduate and graduate degrees in mathematics. 
Initially motivated to become a mathematics researcher, 
Kyle realized in his doctoral program that he found teaching 
more fulfilling and left the program to begin adjunct 
teaching at Sante Fe College in Florida. Kyle joined the YC 
team in the summer of 2020 as a provisional faculty member 
where he immediately began converting classes to be OER, 
which he continues to do out of a belief in the freedom of 
access to knowledge. With a passion for his job, dedication 
to his students, and love of Prescott, Kyle hopes to live out 
his life in this beautiful city as a member of the Yavapai 
College team.

23 of 200



Josh Hoover
Steven Hoover, better known as Josh, teaches  Commercial 
driving at Yavapai College, and has been in the industry for 
more than 24 years. In addition to driving both locally and 
over-the-road, Josh worked as a material mover, mechanic, 
dispatcher, and in human resources. As Josh moved toward 
into his fourth year at the college, he looked forward to 
growing this program with more trucks and faculty to 
better serve the needs of our town and the state.
Josh is proud he served his country in the Marine Corps. 
However, he is even happier being the father of four 
children. His kids, three boys and one girl, keep him more 
than busy. Josh is active in the community with his boys, 
coaching a local football team for the past six years and 
serving on the youth football board. He also coached little 
league baseball and soccer, and then helped his kids get 
into wrestling. Hopefully, his youngest will be as excited to 
compete as Josh is.24 of 200



Kim Gould, DNP, RN, FNP-C, MSCP
Kim is a native of Arizona and grew up in Camp Verde. She 
received her nursing degree from Phoenix College in 1981 and 
worked at Marcus J. Lawrence Memorial Hospital until 2000 
when it became part of Northern Arizona Healthcare. She 
completed a bachelor’s degree in nursing in 1990, a master’s in 
nursing and family nurse practitioner degree at Northern Arizona 
University in 2000, and a doctorate in nursing practice from 
Arizona State University in 2011. Her teaching career started at 
NAU where she taught in their graduate nursing programs, 
coordinated the FNP and DNP programs, and managed a grant 
project that funded nurse preceptors. Her teaching interests 
included pharmacology, primary care, and evidence-based 
practice. In 2020 she took a position at Yavapai College on the 
Verde Campus where she teaches didactic and clinical course to 
1st and 2nd year students. She enjoys the connection you can 
develop with students then teaching at a community college and 
considers it a privilege to be part of training the next generation 
RNs.

25 of 200



Allen Magarrell
Allen Magarrell would like to thank you for this great 
honor. 18 years ago, Allen took a break from a career in 
management and moved to the Prescott area. In 2016, 
he enrolled in the prestigious Yavapai College 
Gunsmithing program. That decision changed his life. He
graduated at the top of his class, but more importantly, 
he helped many of his fellow students with their 
projects and their goals. Along the way, Allen realized 
that teaching was one of the most rewarding endeavors 
one could do. He was hired first as a tutor in 2018, then 
as an adjunct, and never looked back. He considers
himself to be extremely lucky to have the opportunity to 
teach and inspire future generations of students, not 
only in gunsmithing, but in life.

26 of 200



Gillian Troxel, MSN, RN
Gillian pursued the nursing profession straight out of high school 
and obtained a Diploma of Nursing in 1985 in New Zealand 
where she was born and bred. She worked as an RN in New 
Zealand and then traveled overseas and over the years have 
worked in England, Saudi Arabia, Australia and now the United 
States. Gillian enjoyed participating in mission trips to Nepal, 
Peru, Guatemala, Fiji, Mexico and plan to do more. She obtained 
her Bachelor of Nursing, Master of Health Sciences in Nursing, 
and is now halfway through a Doctor of Education in Nursing 
Education degree. Gillian realized that she loved learning and 
decided to try to teach nursing in 2021. She was fortunate to 
obtain a full-time faculty position at Yavapai College. It is the 
most rewarding job she has ever had in her life, and she loves 
helping students believe in themselves so they can reach their 
fullest potential. In her spare time, Gillian enjoys jogging, hiking, 
and mountain biking in the outdoors of beautiful Arizona with 
her husband Jim and dog Roxy.

27 of 200



Bob Moon 
Bob has been involved in the automotive world 
for 35 years. He has worked in a machine shop 
and owned his own businesses in vehicle 
performance, repair, and restyling. He also 
worked in the technology world in system 
integration and leadership positions. He came to 
Yavapai as an adjunct professor for auto 
upholstery and brakes back in 2014 and joined 
the College full time in the fall of 2021.
He thoroughly enjoys sharing his knowledge with 
others, and teaching has always been a 
passion. He enjoys spending time with his wife 
and daughter, watching movies, hiking, riding 
motorcycles, exploring off road trails, and 
generally taking in his surroundings whenever the 
opportunity arises.

28 of 200



Jerald Monahan
Jerald Monahan has served the public safety community for over four decades, 
including leadership positions as the Chief Deputy of the Pinal County Sheriff’s Office, 
the Chief of Police for the City of Apache Junction and Prescott and service as the Chief 
of Police for the Yavapai Community College District. In June of 2021, Chief Monahan 
became the Program Director of the Administration of Justice Studies (AJS) program at 
Yavapai College. As the AJS program director, he oversees the operation of the 
Northern Arizona Regional Training Academy (NARTA) which is located on the Yavapai 
College Prescott Campus and serves as a faculty member teaching Administration of 
Justice Studies courses. He is also the Director of the newly created Yavapai College 
Justice Institute.
In addition to those leadership positions, Chief Monahan has served as the 
Chairperson for the Arizona Governor’s Commission to Prevent Violence Against 
Women; the Board President for End Violence Against Women International; the Board 
Chair for the Community Alliance Against Family Abuse and the President of the 
Arizona Police Chiefs Association.
Chief Monahan holds a Master’s degree in Leadership and a Bachelor’s degree in 
Public Safety Administration both from Grand Canyon University. He is a graduate of 
the FBI National Academy, the 230th Session.

29 of 200



Yavapai College 
Budget to Actual Status by Fund 

 
November 2023 

 
 

The President’s Monthly report below provides a brief financial status of each of the District’s 
five funds as of November 30, 2023.     
 

 Source:  Monthly Revenue and Expenditure     
Financial Reports 

General Fund 
 

 
 
As of November 30, 2023, the General Fund has a surplus of $2,505,100.  This is primarily 
the result of a significant amount of tuition and fee revenues being recorded for the spring 
2024 semester and will even out over the six few months.  In addition, interest income is 
exceeding budget by a large amount.  This is a result of short-term interest rates being at 
a fifteen year high due to the recent Fed tightening.  
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the General Fund is projected to be within budget.   
 
 
Auxiliary Fund 
 

 
 
As of November 30, 2023, the Auxiliary Fund has a surplus due to the collection of most of 
the spring 2024 semester room revenues.  This will even out over the next six months.  For 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the Auxiliary Fund is projected to be within budget. 
 
 
Unexpended Plant Fund` 
 

 
 
As of November 30, 2023, the Unexpended Plant Fund has a deficit of $439,000 due to a 
significant amount of Capital Improvement and Preventative Maintenance projects being 
encumbered for the fiscal year.  The supporting revenues to cover this deficit will be received 
over the remaining fiscal year. 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the Unexpended Plant Fund is projected to be 
within budget 
 

30 of 200



 
Restricted Fund 
 

 
 
The Restricted Fund, which accounts for federal, state and private monies, includes 
expenditures that are restricted to the amount of grants or gifts received and which do not 
exceed the grant award or gift received.  Restricted Funds are primarily driven by federal 
financial aid which will fluctuate depending on the financial needs of our students.  As of 
November 30, 2023, the Restricted Fund has a small surplus and is expected to be within 
budget for the fiscal year. 
 
 
Debt Service Fund 
 

 
 
The Debt Service Fund accounts for the monies used to pay the interest and principal on 
the District’s long-term bonds.  College debt is at fixed rates of interest—as of November 
30, 2023, there were no variances from budget. 
 
 

31 of 200



Yavapai College 
Cash Reserves 

November 2023 
 
 

The President’s monthly report on cash reserves below displays the District’s reserves at 
November 30, 2023, in relation to the District Governing Board’s (DGB) reserve 
requirements.   
   
                                                                   Source: Banner Finance 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Current Fund Reserves shall not drop below seventeen percent (17%) of the operating 
budgets. 
 
As of November 30, 2023, Current Fund reserves have exceeded the DGB’s reserve 
requirements.  
 
 

 $-

 $4,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $16,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $24,000,000

 $28,000,000

 $32,000,000

 $36,000,000

Educational & General and Auxiliary Fund Reserve 
November 2023

Cash & Cash Equivalents Board Designated Reserve

32 of 200



 

 
 
   

 
 
 
Plant Fund Reserves shall not drop below eight percent (8%) of the operating budgets. 
 
As of November 30, 2023, Plant Fund reserves have exceeded the DGB’s designated 
reserve. 
 
 
 
 

 $-

 $3,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $9,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $18,000,000

Plant Fund Reserve
November 2023

Cash & Cash Equivalents Board Designated Reserve

33 of 200



Yavapai College 
Budget to Actual Status by Fund 

 
December 2023 

 
 

The President’s Monthly report below provides a brief financial status of each of the District’s 
five funds as of December 31, 2023.     
 

 Source:  Monthly Revenue and Expenditure     
Financial Reports 

General Fund 
 

 
 
As of December 31, 2023, the General Fund has a surplus of $3,172,400.  This is primarily 
the result of a significant amount of tuition and fee revenues being recorded for the spring 
2024 semester and will even out over the six few months.  In addition, interest income is 
exceeding budget by a large amount.  This is a result of short-term interest rates being at 
a fifteen year high due to the recent Fed tightening.  
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the General Fund is projected to be within budget.   
 
 
Auxiliary Fund 
 

 
 
As of December 31, 2023, the Auxiliary Fund has a surplus due to the collection of most of 
the spring 2024 semester room revenues.  This will even out over the next six months.  For 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the Auxiliary Fund is projected to be within budget. 
 
 
Unexpended Plant Fund` 
 

 
 
As of December 31, 2023, the Unexpended Plant Fund has a deficit of $379,800 due to a 
significant amount of Capital Improvement and Preventative Maintenance projects being 
encumbered for the fiscal year.  The supporting revenues to cover this deficit will be received 
over the remaining fiscal year. 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the Unexpended Plant Fund is projected to be 
within budget 
 

34 of 200



 
Restricted Fund 
 

 
 
The Restricted Fund, which accounts for federal, state and private monies, includes 
expenditures that are restricted to the amount of grants or gifts received and which do not 
exceed the grant award or gift received.  Restricted Funds are primarily driven by federal 
financial aid which will fluctuate depending on the financial needs of our students.  As of 
December 31, 2023, the Restricted Fund has a small surplus and is expected to be within 
budget for the fiscal year. 
 
 
Debt Service Fund 
 

 
 
The Debt Service Fund accounts for the monies used to pay the interest and principal on 
the District’s long-term bonds.  College debt is at fixed rates of interest—as of December 
31, 2023, there were no variances from budget. 
 
 

35 of 200



Yavapai College 
Cash Reserves 

December 2023 
 
 

The President’s monthly report on cash reserves below displays the District’s reserves at 
December 31, 2023, in relation to the District Governing Board’s (DGB) reserve 
requirements.   
   
                                                                   Source: Banner Finance 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Current Fund Reserves shall not drop below seventeen percent (17%) of the operating 
budgets. 
 
As of December 31, 2023, Current Fund reserves have exceeded the DGB’s reserve 
requirements.  
 
 
 

 $-
 $4,000,000
 $8,000,000

 $12,000,000
 $16,000,000
 $20,000,000
 $24,000,000
 $28,000,000
 $32,000,000
 $36,000,000

Educational & General and Auxiliary Fund Reserve 
December 2023

Cash & Cash Equivalents Board Designated Reserve

36 of 200



 
 

    
 
 
Plant Fund Reserves shall not drop below eight percent (8%) of the operating budgets. 
 
As of December 31, 2023, Plant Fund reserves have exceeded the DGB’s designated 
reserve. 
 
 
 
 

 $-

 $3,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $9,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $18,000,000

Plant Fund Reserve
December 2023

Cash & Cash Equivalents Board Designated Reserve

37 of 200



Yavapai College 
Budget to Actual Status by Fund 

 
January 2024 

 
 

The President’s Monthly report below provides a brief financial status of each of the District’s 
five funds as of January 31, 2024.     
 

 Source:  Monthly Revenue and Expenditure     
Financial Reports 

General Fund 
 

 
 
As of January 31, 2024, the General Fund has a surplus of $4,949,100.  This is primarily 
the result of a significant amount of tuition and fee revenues being recorded for the spring 
2024 semester and will even out over the next few months.  In addition, interest income is 
exceeding budget by a large amount.  This is a result of short-term interest rates being at 
a fifteen year high due to the recent Fed tightening.  
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the General Fund is projected to be within budget.   
 
 
Auxiliary Fund 
 

 
 
As of January 31, 2024, the Auxiliary Fund has a surplus due to the collection of most of 
the spring 2024 semester room revenues.  This will even out over the next several months.  
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the Auxiliary Fund is projected to be within budget. 
 
 
Unexpended Plant Fund` 
 

 
 
As of January 31, 2024, the Unexpended Plant Fund has a surplus of $117,800.  For the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the Unexpended Plant Fund is projected to be within 
budget. 
 
 
 
 
 

38 of 200



 
Restricted Fund 
 

 
 
The Restricted Fund, which accounts for federal, state and private monies, includes 
expenditures that are restricted to the amount of grants or gifts received and which do not 
exceed the grant award or gift received.  Restricted Funds are primarily driven by federal 
financial aid which will fluctuate depending on the financial needs of our students.  As of 
January 31, 2024, the Restricted Fund has a modest surplus and is expected to be within 
budget for the fiscal year. 
 
 
Debt Service Fund 
 

 
 
The Debt Service Fund accounts for the monies used to pay the interest and principal on 
the District’s long-term bonds.  College debt is at fixed rates of interest—as of January 31, 
2024, there were no variances from budget. 
 
 

39 of 200



Yavapai College 
Cash Reserves 
January 2024 

 
 

The President’s monthly report on cash reserves below displays the District’s reserves at 
January 31, 2024, in relation to the District Governing Board’s (DGB) reserve requirements.   
   
                                                                   Source: Banner Finance 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Current Fund Reserves shall not drop below seventeen percent (17%) of the operating 
budgets. 
 
As of January 31, 2024, Current Fund reserves have exceeded the DGB’s reserve 
requirements.  
 
 
 

 $-
 $4,000,000
 $8,000,000

 $12,000,000
 $16,000,000
 $20,000,000
 $24,000,000
 $28,000,000
 $32,000,000
 $36,000,000

Educational & General and Auxiliary Fund Reserve 
January 2024

Cash & Cash Equivalents Board Designated Reserve

40 of 200



 
 

    
 
 
Plant Fund Reserves shall not drop below eight percent (8%) of the operating budgets. 
 
As of January 31, 2024, Plant Fund reserves have exceeded the DGB’s designated reserve. 
 
 
 
 

 $-

 $3,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $9,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $18,000,000

Plant Fund Reserve
January 2024

Cash & Cash Equivalents Board Designated Reserve

41 of 200



INTERNAL

Benchmarking

1
42 of 200



INTERNAL

Yavapai College
FY23 Facilities Assessment & Planning Update

43 of 200



INTERNAL

FY23 Assessment Key Takeaways

• Inflation impacts the overall need in 2023 by 8%

• The total 10-year need increased from $42M to $45M, as older building 
hit life-cycle renewals

© 2024 The Gordian Group, Inc. All Rights Reserved. 44 of 200



INTERNAL

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

%
 o

f G
SF

Campus GSF by Year

Yavapai Renovation Age

Pre-War

Future Need Driven By Age Profile

© 2024 The Gordian Group, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Past renovations are now reaching their next life-cycles

Post-War & Modern

58% of YC’s campus was built or renovated between 
2004 to 2014. Major systems within those spaces 
have now aged into the 10-year planning window. 

Large amounts of space the same age leads to 
sizable swings of need in the next 5 to 10 years.

Critical Age: New/Renovated Space from 2004 - 2014

45 of 200



INTERNAL

Categorize to Highlight the Value of Each Project

What is the 
Impact?

Define Work
Classification

• Repair/Maintenance
• Modernization
• Infrastructure

Define Project
Timeframe

• Backlog: Past Due
• A: 1-3 Years
• B: 4-7 Years
• C: 8 -10 Years
• X: Beyond 10 Years

Define Project
Classifications

• Reliability
• Asset preservation
• Program improvement
• Economic operations
• Safety/Code

What is the 
Work?

What is the 
Impact?

When should 
the work be 

done?

Summary of findings is 
focused on the next 10 years 
of investment needs© 2024 The Gordian Group, Inc. All Rights Reserved. 46 of 200



INTERNAL

Total 10-Year Need by Timeframe

$5.0

$10.0

$15.4

$11.7

$5.5

$10.7

$20.4

$8.6

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

Backlog A (1-3 Years) B (4-7 Years) C (8-10 Years)

To
ta

l N
ee

d,
 $

 in
 m

ill
io

ns

Need by Timeframe

2022 2023

$42
$45

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

$50

2022 2023

To
ta

l N
ee

d,
 $

 in
 m

ill
io

ns

Total 10-Year Need

© 2024 The Gordian Group, Inc. All Rights Reserved. 47 of 200



INTERNAL

$2

$0 $1 $1
$0

$4

$20

$1

$12

$4

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

To
ta

l 1
0-

Ye
ar

 N
ee

d
M

ill
io

ns

%
 o

f G
SF

Campus GSF and Capital Need by Age

Yavapai Renovation Age Backlog A B  C Total 10-Year

Pre-War

First Life-Cycles of Newer Space Drives Need

© 2024 The Gordian Group, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

84% of need is coming due within buildings constructed or last renovated between 2000-2015

Post-War & Modern

48 of 200



INTERNAL

Need by Category

© 2024 The Gordian Group, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

61%

33%

6%
2022

59%

35%

6%

2023 Project Category

Repair/Maintenance
Modernization
Infrastructure

53%41%

6%
2021

49 of 200



INTERNAL

Identified Needs by Investment Criteria
2%

14%

51%

9%

24%

2022

2%
11%

51%

11%

25%

2023 Investment Criteria

Reliability

Safety/Code

Asset Preservation

Economic Opportunity

Program Improvement

© 2024 The Gordian Group, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

5%
9%

47%
12%

27%

2021

50 of 200



INTERNAL

Calculating Building Values

© 2024 The Gordian Group, Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Net Asset Value: Gordian term that defines the “% good on 
campus”. A formula that factors the replacement value of a 
building vs the identified capital investment needs.

Replacement Value – Capital Needs
Replacement Value

Net Asset Value  =

Investment Strategy NAV Range

“Keep Up” Stage 85% - 100%

Balance Profile Stage 70% - 84%

“Catch Up” Stage 50% - 69%

Transitional Stage Below 50%

51 of 200



INTERNAL

99%

92% 92% 90% 89% 88%
92% 91%

86%

95%

86%
89%88%

93%

86%

95%

86%

92%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Sedona Center Prescott Valley Verde Valley CTECH Prescott Campus Chino Valley

N
AV

 In
de

x

2021 2022 2023

Net Asset Value by Campus Area

Transitional/Gut Renovation/Demo Stage:  Major 
buildings components are in jeopardy of failure.  
Reliability issues are widespread throughout the 
building.

“Catch Up” Stage: Buildings require more significant 
repairs; major building components are in jeopardy of 
complete failure; large-scale capital infusions or 
renovations are inevitable

Balanced Profile Stage:  Buildings are beginning to 
show their age and may require more significant 
investment and renovation on a case-by-case basis

“Keep Up” Stage: Primarily new or recently 
renovated buildings with sporadic building repair & 
life cycle needs

Investment Strategy

© 2024 The Gordian Group, Inc. All Rights Reserved. 52 of 200



INTERNAL

Yavapai Net Asset Value Remains Steady

72.6%
75.7%

78.6%
82.1% 83.2% 85.1% 86.3% 86.4% 88.8% 89.5% 87.1% 87.7%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Net Asset Value

Yavapai NAV Peer NAV Average

© 2024 The Gordian Group, Inc. All Rights Reserved. 53 of 200



INTERNAL

Yavapai NAV versus Database Percentiles
YC is in the 89th percentile in 2023

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Median 74.9% 75.7% 76.1% 76.0% 75.7% 76.4% 76.8% 76.5% 75.0% 76.8% 76.1% 76.2%
75th Percentile 80.0% 80.2% 80.4% 80.7% 80.4% 80.8% 81.5% 81.5% 80.3% 82.2% 82.2% 82.2%
90th Percentile 85.2% 85.8% 85.9% 85.8% 85.9% 86.5% 86.5% 86.2% 86.4% 87.8% 87.7% 87.9%
Yavapai NAV 72.6% 75.7% 78.6% 82.1% 83.2% 85.1% 86.3% 86.4% 88.8% 89.5% 87.1% 87.7%

50%

55%

60%

65%

70%

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

N
et

 A
ss

et
 V

al
ue

Net Asset Value vs Percentiles

© 2024 The Gordian Group, Inc. All Rights Reserved. 54 of 200



INTERNAL
55 of 200



2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 1

56 of 200



2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 2

Table of Contents

Executive Summary ........................................................................................3

Widening Gaps and Elevated Risk .................................................................4

• Space .......................................................................................................... 4

• Capital .........................................................................................................6

• Operations .................................................................................................7

Headwinds to Navigate ..................................................................................9

• Demographics and Enrollment ...............................................................9

• Public Investment Challenges .................................................................10

• Public Opinion ...........................................................................................11

• Technology and the New Learning Environment ............................... 12

A New Planning Framework.......................................................................... 12

Conclusion ....................................................................................................... 15

57 of 200



2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 3

Executive Summary

10 Years! For ten years the State of Facilities in Higher Education has been recognizing trends and 

opportunities based on our database of information from schools around the U.S. For a decade, this report 

has borne witness to the efforts of colleges and universities to confront challenges, focus investments and 

enable the learning and research at the core of their missions. Over time, the insights in the State of Facilities 

have evolved and our recommendations have followed suit. It has been a decade of reporting about the 

remarkable resilience of an industry embedded in the fabric of our culture, anchoring communities across the 

nation and central to the innovative energy that powers the future.  

The past few years have been extraordinarily complicated across the globe. The pandemic in particular 

changed the rules for just about everything. The war in Ukraine amplified mounting global supply chain 

issues, drove energy costs sky high and refocused the attention of governments across the planet. And the 

recession which may or may not officially materialize in 2023 has kept institutional planning on edge.  

But higher education, which has a notoriously long history of being slow to change, pivoted in weeks 

to return to business in many different forms back in 2020, addressing the many different desires for 

educational experience. Everyone started predicting schools would collapse, but a surprisingly small number 

to date have succumbed. Our own observations of rising deferral, shrinking operational resources and excess 

space have continued to grow more prominent but still, schools persist.  

A nexus of trends underscores the industry’s fragile resilience:   

• The pandemic revealed important financial vulnerabilities in higher education that have been 

discussed here and in other forums for some time, accelerating the need to confront them - if they 

haven’t already been thrust upon the plates of leadership. As government support wanes and student 

population decline looms, it is hard to believe business as usual can be sustained.  

• Strong facilities departments and professional leaders, long undervalued by leadership but central to 

pandemic-era decision-making, are not relinquishing their influence. And they mustn’t.  

• The scale of deferred capital renewal at schools has reached a level that cannot be tolerated – a 36% 

shortfall. This gap is simply not possible to fund given new financial realities. 

• Thoughtful, proactive institutions are making efforts to address the facilities implications of their 

actions from lagging reactions and integrating them into future planning conversations.  

Our data this year says that despite awareness growing about the risks, the historical trends for space, 

capital and operating investment continue, and capital renewal needs have skyrocketed to a startling                   

$133/gross square foot. We will explore this data and more findings from our database, and point toward 

activity that offers hope for a new direction in higher education.  

Ultimately, we observe that stewardship demands are now so acute facilities issues can no longer be 

reactive, and every facilities, planning and business leader will need to be a key participant in institutional 

decision-making going forward. These efforts must be transformed so that facilities considerations are truly 

integrated into their very fabric.  

58 of 200



Widening Gaps and Elevated Risk 

Space

The amount of space in use for colleges and universities remains a fundamental indicator for institutional 

health. However, approaches to measuring space are evolving. The quantity of physical space is a source 

of information that reflects the quantity of financial and human resources required simply to operate the 

property every year. It also provides information about the embedded debt obligation the assets represent to 

the forward financial portfolio. Our preliminary 2022 data is encouraging in this regard.  

Space growth trends at master’s and baccalaureate schools have continued slowing in response to declining 

enrollment, which is the key source of non-endowment income. Still, it is not reasonable to expect anything 

close to a linear relationship between these corollaries over time as altering the amount of space is not a 

quick exercise and there is a minimum amount of space necessary to offer all basic services, regardless of 

total student population. 

Research institutions continue to operate in a different realm, with students being drawn to the affordability 

and anticipated stability of large public and private research institutions. Enrollment across the board here 

has remained solid though slowing. University leaders have responded accordingly, with measured growth 

that even provides some room for future contraction. 

What remains in question is whether individual schools are continuing to operate in a pre-pandemic mode, 

returning to a full and active in-person campus, or if there is real movement toward leveraging the changing 

teaching/learning modalities to enable larger scale change in the built environment. 

2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 4

-5%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

10

2
0

11

2
0

12

2
0

13

2
0

14

2
0

15

2
0

16

2
0

17

2
0

18

2
0

19

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
2

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

10

2
0

11

2
0

12

2
0

13

2
0

14

2
0

15

2
0

16

2
0

17

2
0

18

2
0

19

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
2

2
0

0
7

2
0

0
8

2
0

0
9

2
0

10

2
0

11

2
0

12

2
0

13

2
0

14

2
0

15

2
0

16

2
0

17

2
0

18

2
0

19

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
1

2
0

2
2

Pe
rc

en
t G

ro
w

th
 si

nc
e 

20
07

Space Growth vs. Enrollment Growth

Space Growth Enrollment Growth

Master’s Baccalaureate Research

59 of 200



2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 5

The Vermont State College System, 

facing complicated demographic hurdles 

familiar to all in the country’s northeast, 

has challenged itself in partnership with 

the state legislature to explore new 

ways to deliver a viable curriculum to 

students across the state and its numerous 

campuses. Using technology in exciting 

student-focused ways – prioritizing the 

student’s resources rather than classroom 

resources – leaders anticipate that students 

will be able to engage faculty and each 

other from across the state in more dynamic 

and active hybrid teaching settings, freeing 

up thoughtful consideration of the exact 

kinds and quantities of built environment 

spaces that are truly necessary for a 

successful program. 

The Universities of South Carolina, 

Georgia and Kentucky all reported record 

freshman classes and are operating very 

much in-person. Arizona State University 

continues its pursuit of both in person 

and online programs, with more than 

40% of its 144,000 students engaged 

online. Solutions must be tailored to the 

institution, its students and their mutual 

mission. There is no correct way to react 

to space challenges and opportunities. 

The key is being aware of the challenges 

and solutions which are peculiar to each 

school’s situation. 

Imperative to understanding the 

importance and implications for forward 

investment in space is the fundamental 

awareness of the institutional programs and 

practices that will drive success. But this 

is only the first step. Campus leaders must 

simultaneously integrate the understanding 

of the facilities currently available and 

those needed to meet future needs. These 

must not be separate exercises.  

60 of 200



2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 6

Capital

Our most recent data documents a 13-year pattern of underinvestment in existing space. Since the Great 

Recession there have been periods of increasing investment, but never at a rate that substantially reduces 

the gap between the target investment required to sustain existing building portfolios and the money made 

available. Preliminary data for 2022 indicates that funding has returned to $4.34/gsf which is 97% of 2020 

levels, and a 10% increase over 2021 funding. While a tremendous rebound, it comes as inflation has been 

skyrocketing, pushing the needed dollars to steward existing space up substantially to $6.76/gsf. As such, 

that leaves a 36% shortfall. That shortfall is the annual contribution to backlog and deferred capital renewal 

costs.  

A subtle but important trend is also the return to growth in the annual stewardship dollars, those reliable 

recurring commitments that are built into the business model and don’t rely on the one-time capital 

infusions. These reliable stewardship dollars allow for consistent and predictable investment in key building 

system components which cannot be ignored. They remain smaller at most institutions and are an important 

element to consider when identifying strategies to stabilize the condition of the built portfolio. 

Our database shows an annual stewardship shortfall of 36% 

$0

$1

$2

$3

$4

$5

$6

$7

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

$/
GS

F

Capital Spending vs. Investment Target

Annual Stewardship Asset Reinvestment Target

61 of 200



2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 7

The consequence of the ongoing 

investment shortfall and the last 

year's extraordinary cost escalations 

is a spike in anticipated deferred 

capital renewal costs. They are 

expected to climb to over $133/gsf, 

or more than $133 million for every 

1 million square feet of existing 

buildings. The cost to repair and 

replace what has extended beyond 

its useful life for the campus as it is 

today has become truly extraordinary. 

The needed investment implied in 

these numbers is competing with 

investment in other institutional 

priorities like never before. 

The need for capital investment has long been connected to assumptions about institutional growth having 

a direct correlation to physical space growth. This presumed linkage has made it simple to assert that 

underfunding of capital leads to building and system failure that will compromise programs, undermine 

student/faculty success and disable the institution. Leaders, like those from our previous examples of 

Arizona State and the Vermont State College System, are considering whether they can use pandemic lessons 

about what it means to be a campus and a community to break this long held linkage and establish new ways 

of doing business. 

Operations 

The 13-year pattern of underinvestment is not limited to space: Operating resources have experienced a 

similar but less dramatic spending shortfall during that same span. The lack of drama reflects the common 

impression that operational issues can always be extended a little further – people can work a little harder, the 

system can run a little longer, the duct tape can be used once more. But one must be vigilant in assessing if 

any extension of resources has gone too far. With operating costs now funded at only 80% of what inflation-

driven budgets would look like, the creativity in work processes, expanded use of technology and alterations/

reductions in service have strained the ability of the department to get work done in a fashion that cares for 

the property as well as the programs. The proverbial straw is close to breaking the camel’s back. 

There is often a decision-making interplay between operating and capital budget constriction. Funneling 

resources into one budget often means siphoning resources from the other. But it is unreasonable to expect 

institutions to adequately steward campus resources while both capital and operating budgets compress. 

Since our last edition of the State of Facilities, renewal needs have 

exploded from $105/gsf to $133/gsf

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

$140

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
$/
GS

F

Asset Reinvestment Need ($/GSF)

Total Asset Reinvestment Backlog $/GSF Inflation

62 of 200



2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 8

The most well-intentioned decisions to 

sustain ongoing budget constraints have 

significant consequences, including putting 

the campus at risk for future operational 

or building failures. Though facilities 

organizations have continued to explore 

improvement in service levels through 

deployment of technology, there are limits. 

The 10.7% expansion in maintenance 

coverage area at baccalaureate campuses 

can likely be attributed to the leveraging 

of technology that makes routine service 

activity smarter or identifies impending 

problems before they require catastrophic 

recovery. The 34% and 43% coverage 

increases at doctorate and master’s 

institutions could represent an overreliance 

on the capabilities of technologically-based 

service improvement that stretch facilities 

staff beyond their limits.  

Impacting productivity is also the ongoing and uncomfortable reality that the workforce is aging. Reporting 

from PeopleReady Skilled Trades indicates that there continue to be more people aging out of the trades 

than entering it, with more than 20% of the work force over the age of 55 and fewer than 9% under 25. 

The knowledge and skills leaving the profession after many years of dedicated service cannot be quickly 

replaced, and the limited pool of incoming workers will not be able to acquire it before their predecessors 

are gone. Asking a less experienced, less knowledgeable, resource-strapped workforce to be responsible for 

significantly more space is unsustainable and a tremendous risk to the institution. 

$0

$1

$2

$3

$4

$5

$6

$7

$8

$9

2007

2008

2009
2010

2011
2012

2013
2014

2015
2016

2017
2018

2019

2020
2021

2022
$/
GS

F

Operating Actuals vs. Inflation

Daily Service Planned Maintenance Utilities Inflation

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

GS
F/
FT
E

Maintenance Staffing Coverage
Doctoral Universities Baccalaureate Colleges Master’s Colleges & Universities

63 of 200

https://www.prnewswire.com/news-releases/skilled-trades-labor-scarcity-workforce-aging-as-fewer-recruits-enter-trades-301589407.html
https://www.prnewswire.com/news-releases/skilled-trades-labor-scarcity-workforce-aging-as-fewer-recruits-enter-trades-301589407.html


2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 9

Headwinds to Navigate 

Were the direct implications of these data points the only challenges, simple business responses like growth 

or downsizing might be enough to address the basic facilities needs. But there continue to be external 

pressures that make such simple responses insufficient. 

Demographics and enrollment 

The long U.S. birthrate slide that has been occurring since 2008 finally saw a reverse in 2021, with an increase 

of 1%. While this rise from a more than 40-year low is a welcome change, it is more dark cloud than silver 

lining. Campus leaders now have an identifiable marker for when the population of high school graduates will 

finally increase, and it’s not until 2039. That’s hardly cause for celebration. Nathan Grawe’s much-discussed 

enrollment cliff arriving in 2026 will be with us for a long time, and traditional approaches to solving 

enrollment-related financial challenges will not help weather this 13-year population downturn.  

Any enthusiasm for a birthrate turnaround is tempered by sobering data from the National Student 

Clearinghouse Research Center that, despite rising birthrates back in 2004 that should produce a growing 

pool of 18-year-old students in 2022, enrollment in the fall of 2022 fell another 1.1% from pandemic 

impacted years 2020 and 2021. This continued slide brings into question whether enrollments will rise as 

expected at least until 2026. The Chronicle of Higher Education points out the uptick in community college 

new student enrollments of 0.9% as one upside in the face of declines for both public and private four-year 

schools. But it seems the impacts of the cliff may be with us already. Speculation about the reasons for this 

continued enrollment slide is widely varied, but it is clear that higher education is somewhat less compelling 

today than it was before the pandemic.

Further complicating the perception of the value of college are the current Supreme Court cases dealing with 

student loan forgiveness. Students and families who are already questioning the value of attending college 

face even more anxiety about the possibility of having some of the costs of college defrayed as President 

Biden’s loan forgiveness program is in the hot seat. The economic factors at play in deciding whether to 

attend college have been exacerbated, and university finances are jeopardized by the decrease in enrollment. 

-0.40%
-1.60%

-2.50%

-0.90%

Public 2-year Public 4-year Private for-profit 4-year Private nonprofit 4-year

Flagging Undergraduate Enrollment at Four-Year Colleges

Undergraduate enrollment dropped most sharply at four-year-colleges in the fall of 2022. An 11.5-percent 

jump in dual-enrollment students helped curb losses at public two-year colleges.

Fall 2022,

% change from a year earlier

Source: National Student Clearinghouse Research Center

64 of 200

https://www.cdc.gov/nchs/pressroom/nchs_press_releases/2022/20220524.htm
https://www.chronicle.com/article/higher-eds-enrollment-fell-again-this-fall-if-a-bit-more-slowly?cid=gen_sign_in
https://www.chronicle.com/article/higher-eds-enrollment-fell-again-this-fall-if-a-bit-more-slowly?cid=gen_sign_in
https://www.chronicle.com/article/higher-eds-enrollment-fell-again-this-fall-if-a-bit-more-slowly?cid=gen_sign_in


2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 10

The changing ethnographic composition of incoming students 

has ripple effects across the built environment. It has been 

widely reported that children of color are now in the majority 

in the United States. And despite much heated debate 

about border migration, emigres continue to come into the 

country, inexorably changing the social/cultural dynamics 

of the student age population. These students want 

and need different things from higher education 

institutions than past generations and the impacts 

of these demands are wide ranging, touching 

curriculums, financial aid, student programs, 

food, physical space and technology. The 

higher ed customer is changing and campus 

leaders must adapt.

Public Investment Challenges

In 2022, National Education Association data 

indicated that 32 states are spending less on 

public colleges and universities than they did in 

2008. This is creating substantial increases in the 

cost of public higher education. Real fiscal constraints 

in combination with legislative skepticism about the 

value of investment in higher education has placed more 

and more of the burden of public higher education on the 

backs of individual students who are often forced to take out 

loans, an accumulation of $1.7 trillion in debt according to the 

latest federal reserve numbers. While the hotly debated Biden 

Administration debt relief plan has the potential to relieve as much as $20,000 per borrower, it can do little 

to stem the increasing costs being borne by future students for their education, costs that are sure to make 

them at least question the value of that investment. 

65 of 200

https://sacobserver.com/2021/04/the-majority-of-all-u-s-children-are-those-of-color/
https://sacobserver.com/2021/04/the-majority-of-all-u-s-children-are-those-of-color/
https://www.nea.org/he_funding_report
https://www.nea.org/he_funding_report
https://www.federalreserve.gov/releases/g19/HIST/cc_hist_memo_levels.html


2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 11

Public Opinion

Adults today continue to question the material 

value of higher education and that usually impacts 

the actions of their children. A recent report from 

New America found that while 75% of those polled 

felt higher education provided a good return on 

investment, only 55% said higher education was 

having a positive impact on the country and nearly 

two-thirds indicated that there are lots of well-

paying, stable jobs that people can find with only 

a high school diploma or GED. The data seems to 

suggest a widely-held belief that America’s cultural 

emphasis on higher education is directing people 

away from important work that doesn’t require a 

four-year degree. Higher education, then, is valuable 

but not essential.

Challenges levied against the culture and programs 

of higher education (particularly of public colleges 

and universities) taken up in states across the 

country over recent years have created a complicated 

landscape to navigate for incoming students. 

Emboldening to some and discouraging to others, 

potentially cynical and divisive conversations 

certainly tarnish the ivory tower image of higher 

education institutions and the idea of the certain 

pathway to a better future for graduates. 

Warren Buffet notes that, “It takes 20 years to build a 

reputation and five minutes to ruin it.”  While higher 

education has spent far more than 20 years building 

its reputation as a high-value investment, there is 

no doubt that it takes significantly less time to alter 

perceptions about value. Opinions change quickly in 

the Information Age. 

It is worth noting that skepticism about the value 

of a college degree is not a new phenomenon. That 

the New York Times was discussing the lost image 

of universities in 1992 is troubling as a marker for 

the duration of the conversation though perhaps 

affirms that universities remain remarkably resilient 

and perhaps ultimately benefit from even the most 

skeptical of conversations about their role and 

purpose. 

66 of 200

https://www.newamerica.org/education-policy/reports/varying-degrees-2022/findings/
https://www.newamerica.org/education-policy/reports/varying-degrees-2022/findings/
https://www.nytimes.com/1992/04/05/education/universities-grope-for-lost-image.html
https://www.nytimes.com/1992/04/05/education/universities-grope-for-lost-image.html


2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 12

Technology and the New Learning Environment

The Winston Churchill adage “Never let a good crisis go to waste” has been borne out following the 

pandemic. Organizations of all kinds are exploring ways to leverage the advances in technology that altered 

how people engaged with each other through the early phases of the pandemic. Online gatherings have 

transformed our understanding of how people connect, share, learn, meet and do all manner of business. 

Virtual and hybrid work/learning environments have changed the way students conceive of the classroom, 

expanded what it means to be in a community, challenged the role of place in that community and ultimately 

made the role of a physical campus less of a given. Response to these opportunities varies by campus but all 

have an impact on how schools will invest in their existing buildings and any new ones that they create.  

A New Planning Framework

All these external drivers mean a more considered and collaborative approach to 

addressing existing facilities challenges and preventing them from undermining other 

institutional priorities is required.

Gordian has been collaborating with APPA – Leadership in Educational Facilities, 

the National Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO), 

and the Society for College and University Planning (SCUP) in the past year 

to explore what can be done in the face of these extraordinary challenges. 

The result is a new rethinking of the framework for collaboration in higher 

education, focused initially on finance, facilities and planning. 

This reimagining of the framework for collaboration among the 

business, facilities and planning communities aspires to create a 

broader institutional conversation about the existing and future 

challenges facing the business of higher education. It focuses 

specifically on the campus and how to creatively serve students 

through physical assets. And it recognizes the newfound, post-

pandemic understanding that facilities organizations are led by 

dynamic leaders that understand the business of higher education 

more broadly than many have historically assumed and can have a 

significant positive impact on critical institutional decision making. 

Fundamentally, the framework asserts that facilities activity must move 

from a lagging response to a leading planning element in order to assure 

the wisest investment of increasingly restricted institutional resources. Why? 

Because nearly all programmatic changes are also facilities changes.  This 

requires transforming the traditional siloed and serial planning flow within a 

campus community toward an integrated planning process which incorporates all of 

the elements that could make a fundamental financial impact on the institution.  

67 of 200



2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 13

Four business variables are helpful in 

understanding what information to glean from 

your facilities and for organizing institutional 

thinking to move forward differently. 

Embodied Debt

Current demands being made by campus 

buildings can’t be ignored and are becoming 

greater concerns to institutional budgets.

1

Risk Exposure

Personal safety, program support and 

investment disruptions must be considered 

carefully.

2

Adaptability

As time goes on, the nature of the campus 

becomes ever more linked to the built 

environment and makes adapting to an 

evolving customer profile with diverse 

community needs all the more challenging.

4

Future Program Compatibility

Ongoing instructional paradigm shifts that are 

becoming harder and harder to accommodate 

successfully need to be recognized and 

addressed.

3

68 of 200



2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 14

These variables should be considered using a three-stage framework to organize the conversation and 

correlated areas of focus. That framework is outlined as follows:

Plans for Place: The voices engaged in, and the processes associated with, creating your campus spaces 

to ensure alignment of your built environment with your mission/vision, resources and the way(s) you go to 

market.

• Identify the space resources needed to complement substantive alterations to program offerings and 

engage decision-making with measurable outcomes. 

• Align critical voices on campus regarding plans for new space, existing space use and lessons learned 

from the pandemic. 

• Prioritize the sustainability of your institution’s offerings to confront evolving competition in the 

marketplace. 

• Develop a plan that links today’s realities with the institution’s future state while maintaining flexibility 

and adaptability of response to associated circumstances. 

• Assess those facilities that cannot or should not be sustained and map out a plan for their removal. 

Resources for Service: The people, processes and money needed for lifecycle renewal, refurbishment, 

renovation and adaptation of your facilities and utilities infrastructure to ensure operational needs and 

opportunities are addressed. 

• Determine whether the planning and budgeting model presently in use is informing your future 

operating circumstances. 

• Assess whether the use of your assets (building, technology and human resources) aligns with the 

evolving institutional program. 

• Effectively maintain and operate your physical assets with an eye on successfully managing the risks 

they present. 

• Establish an effective way to align space and program needs that includes a method(s) to manage 

space demands and use. Alter space-use practices and needs to match evolving teaching and working 

practices. 

Assessment for Stewardship: The methods, metrics and measures necessary to determine and sustain 

the viability and feasibility of the built environment.

• Identify the tools you have or need to measure success. 

• Determine whether your plan is adaptable for multiple future scenarios. 

• Assess whether your facilities decisions going forward are a lagging investment and decide what actions 

you will take and/or what actions you will cease.

For more details about this innovative new framework for collaboration among campus leaders, download 

the full report.

1

2

3

69 of 200

https://www.gordian.com/resources/finance-facilities-and-planning/
https://www.gordian.com/resources/finance-facilities-and-planning/


2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 15

Conclusion

For an entire decade, the State of Facilities in Higher Education has been a record and a reflection 

of what has been happening on campuses across North America. It has included recommended 

reactions and responses to some of the industry’s most pressing circumstances.

This year is different. In collaboration with leading societies in higher education, we are 

identifying a call to action. The reality today is that the stewardship demands are now so acute, 

facilities issues can no longer be reactive, and every facilities, planning and business leader will 

need to be a key participant in institutional decision making going forward. Institutional planning 

must be transformed. Transformed not such that it is now about facilities exclusively, but that 

facilities considerations are truly integrated into the very fabric of institutional decision making.

70 of 200



2023 State of Facilities in Higher Education 16

About Gordian
Gordian is the leading provider of Building Intelligence Solutions, delivering 

unrivaled insights, robust technology and expert services to fuel customers’ 

success through all phases of the building lifecycle. Gordian created Job Order 

Contracting (JOC) and the industry-standard RSMeans Data. We empower 

organizations to optimize capital investments, improve project performance and 

minimize long-term operating expenses. 

71 of 200



2023-2024  
District Governing Board 

Calendar Dates 
 

Month Board Study Sessions Board Meeting Type 
Tuesday, March 19, 2024 
1:00pm 
Sedona Campus    

Study Session 
1:00-3:00pm 

Business Meeting 
3:00-4:00pm 

Tuesday, April 23, 2024  
1:00pm 
Rock House    

Study Session 
1:00-3:00pm 

Business Meeting 
3:00-4:00pm 

Tuesday, May 21, 2024 
1:00pm 
Prescott Campus 
Community Room (19-147)  

 Truth in Taxation & 
Budget Public 

Hearing/Adoption 
Business Meeting 

 
Tuesday, May 28, 2024 
9:00am-4:00pm 
Chino Valley  

 Board Self-Assessment 
Workshop  

 

72 of 200



 

DATES AND PLACES OF COLLEGE HOSTED EVENTS – FY 2023-2024 
TYPE OF EVENT DATE/DAY/TIME/LOCATION 

The TEN Tenors: Greatest Hits Live Friday, February 23, 2024 / YCPAC / 7PM 

YC Jazz Festival Wednesday, February 28, 2024 / YCPAC/ 7PM – FREE 
Admission 

Brian Regan (Comedian) Saturday, February 24, 2024 / YCPAC / 7PM 

Prescott Pops Symphony – Romantic 
Impressions Sunday, February 25, 2024 / YCPAC / 3 PM 

Swing Caesar Swing Saturday, March 23, 2024 / YCPAC / 7 PM 

Evening of Recognition Thursday, April 18, 2024/ Verde Valley Campus – M137/ 6PM 

Evening of Recognition Tuesday, April 23, 2024/Prescott Campus – 19-147/ 6PM 

Bruce Cockburn Saturday, April 27, 2024 / YCPAC / 7 PM 

Nurse Pinning Ceremony Thursday, May 2, 2024 

Commencement – Verde Valley Saturday, May 4, 2024 / Verde Valley Campus  

Commencement – Prescott Sunday, May 5, 2024 / Findlay Toyota Center 

Prescott Pops Symphony – Music of the 
Decades Sunday, May 19, 2024 / YCPAC / 3 PM 

Preshow Dinner – Colin Mochrie & Brad  
Sherwood: Asking for Trouble Saturday, May 25, 2024 / YCPAC / 5:30 PM 

Colin Mochrie & Brad Sherwood: Asking for  
Trouble Saturday, May 25, 2024 / YCPAC / 7 PM 

73 of 200



 

 

 

 

LIST OF DATES AND PLACES OF NATIONAL, STATE, AND LOCAL CONFERENCES, CONGRESSES, WEBINARS, 
SEMINARS AND EVENTS –       FY 2023-2024 

TYPE OF EVENT DATE/DAY/TIME/LOCATION 
All Arizona Scholarship Award Luncheon Wednesday, February 28, 2024, at 11 am  

Location: Phoenix, AZ 
ACCT Leadership Congress 2024 
 

Wednesday, October 23 – Saturday, October 26, 2024 
Location: Seattle, Washington 

74 of 200



                                                                                        
Yavapai College  

District Governing Board 
Policy & Attorney Education Workshop  

 
Tuesday, January 16, 2024 

 9:00 a.m. 
The meeting location will be open to the public at 8:45 a.m. at the latest. 

 
Career and Technical Education Center 

220 Ruger Road 
Prescott, AZ 86301 

 
Members Present: 
Ms. Deb McCasland, Board Chair 
Mr. Chris Kuknyo, Secretary  
Mr. Ray Sigafoos, Board Member 
Mr. Steve Bracety, Board Member 
Mr. Toby Payne, Board Member 
Administration Present: 
Dr. Lisa B. Rhine, President 
Atty. Lynne Adams, Board Attorney 
Ms. Yvonne Sandoval, Executive Assistant  
Ms. Deanne Petty, DGB Coordinator 
 

 
MINUTES 

 
 

1. General Functions: Procedural  
a. Call to Order {Time: 1} 

 
Chair McCasland called the Yavapai College District Governing Board Workshop to 
order at 9:00 a.m. 
 

b. Adoption of Agenda – DECISION {Time: 1}  
 
Member Sigafoos moved, seconded by Member Bracety, to adopt the agenda. 
Motion carried unanimously (Ayes: McCasland, Kuknyo, Sigafoos, Bracety, 
and Payne). 

 
c. 2024 Board Member Liaison Committee Appointments – DISCUSSION AND 

DECISION – Ms. Deborah McCasland, Board Chair {Time: 10} 
 

Ms. Deborah McCasland, Board Chair, informed the board of her intentions 
regarding liaison committee appointments. Ms. McCasland indicated she would like 
to leave the liaisons as they were for the previous year, because she thinks things 
have been great with the current selections. She asked if board members had any 
comments or concerns about this decision. No one had any comments.  
 

75 of 200



Appointments confirmed: 
 
Board Spokesperson:  Ms. Deborah McCasland, Board Chair 
AACCT Liaison:   Ms. Deborah McCasland, Board Chair 
YC Foundation Liaison:  Mr. Steve Bracety, Board Member 
 

2. Board Business 
a. Executive Session  

i. Pursuant to A.R.S. Section 38-431.03(A)(9), Discussion Regarding the 
College’s Information Technology Security Plans, Procedures, 
Assessments, Measures or Systems – Mr. Patrick Burns, Chief Information 
Officer - PROCEDURAL {Time: 60} 

 
Member Sigafoos moved, seconded by Member Bracety, to go into 
Executive Session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(9), for 
discussion regarding the College’s Information Technology security 
plans, procedures, assessments, measures or systems. Motion carried 
unanimously (Ayes: McCasland, Kuknyo, Sigafoos, Bracety and 
Payne). 

 

b. Reconvene in Public Session  
i. Possible Action RE: Yavapai College’s Information Technology Security 

Systems and Plans as a result of Executive Session – Attorney Lynne 
Adams – DECISION {Time: 5} 
 

The Board reconvened in public session at 9:56 a.m.  No action was taken related to 
the executive session. 

 

c. Consent Agenda – DECISION {Time: 5}  
i. Regular Meeting Minutes – Tuesday, November 28, 2023 (Attached) 
ii. Executive Session Confidential Minutes - Tuesday, November 28, 2023 
iii. Special Meeting Minutes – Thursday, December 14, 2023 (Attached) 
iv. Executive Session Confidential Minutes – Thursday, December 14, 2023 
v. Cooperative Purchase Agreement – Mohave Educational Services 

Cooperative, Inc. – Shamrock Food Services (Attached) 
vi. Land Lease Agreement – Northern Arizona Council of Government 

(NACOG) – Head Start Program (Attached) 
vii. Waiver of Conflict of Interest for Yavapai Library Network (YLN) for 

School Libraries (Attached) 
 

Secretary Kuknyo asked that item vi. Land Lease Agreement – NACOG be removed 
from the Consent Agenda for discussion. 

 
Secretary Kuknyo moved, seconded by Member Bracety, to approve the 
Consent Agenda with the exception of item vi. Land Lease Agreement - 
NACOG. Motion carried unanimously (Ayes: McCasland, Kuknyo, Sigafoos, 
Bracety and Payne). 
 
Secretary Kuknyo and Member Payne both questioned whether the College could 
enter into agreements with terms longer than 3 years. Attorney Lynne Adams, with 

76 of 200



confirmation from Dr. Borofsky, indicated that there is nothing in statute that limits 
the College to contracting for 3 years or less. 
 
Secretary Kuknyo asked if there was a reason the contract term was being changed 
from 3 years to 5 years. Mr. Rodney Jenkins stated that a term of 5 years is consistent 
with the funding cycle. Secretary Kuknyo then asked if there had been any issues 
with the Head Start centers in the past. Mr. Jenkins responded that they had been a 
consistent partner with the College and had not created any problems for the 
College.  
 
Secretary Kuknyo moved, seconded by Member Sigafoos, to approve the 
Consent Agenda item vi. Land Lease Agreement - NACOG. Motion carried 
(Ayes: McCasland, Kuknyo, Sigafoos, and Bracety; Didn’t Vote: Payne). 

 
 

d. Revision to Yavapai College District Governing Board Policy 204 – Financial 
Conditions - INFORMATION, DISCUSSION, AND DECISION – Dr. Clint 
Ewell, Vice President of Finance {Time: 20} (Attached) 

 
The board was provided with the current version of policy 204 and the proposed 
version of policy 204. Dr. Ewell explained he is asking for the revisions to allow for 
reductions to the budget to reflect actual expenditures without governing board 
action.  Additionally, the proposed changes to items 6 & 7 would not allow the 
President to exceed the authority provided in the policy without governing board 
approval.  
 
Member Sigafoos moved, seconded by Member Bracety, to revise Policy 204 
as follows: 
  

 Add roman numeral “I” before “Accordingly, the President shall not:” 
 Add “without the District Governing (DGB) approval” to item I.6. 
 Add “without the DGB approval” to item I.7. 
 Add roman numeral “II” following I.8 with verbiage as follows: “For 

purposes of the Expenditure Limit Report, the District Budget may be 
reduced to an amount equal to actual expenditures without DGB 
action, once expenditures have been determined by the annual audit 
conducted on the District’s Financial Statements. Any other 
modifications to the approved District Budget must be via formal 
DGB resolution.”  

 
Motion carried (Ayes: McCasland, Kuknyo, Sigafoos, Bracety, and Payne). 

 

e. Revision to Yavapai College District Governing Board Policy 304 – Board Elections 
& Appointments - INFORMATION, DISCUSSION, AND DECISION – 
Attorney Lynne Adams {Time: 20} (Attached) 

 
The board was provided with the current version of policy 304 and the proposed 
version of policy 304 (copies in Workshop Agenda Packet). Attorney Lynne Adams 
explained that in the past, board elections and appointments were for one-year 
terms, because there was uncertainty about whether two-year terms were allowed by 
statute. A few years ago, the Attorney General determined that two-year terms for 

77 of 200



Current Status: Active  PolicyStat ID: 10631237  

Origination:  6/2/2021 Effective: 
 10/19/2021 Last Approved: 10/19/2021 Last 
Revised: 10/19/2021  

 Next Review:  1/31/2024  

 Owner:  Yvonne Sandoval: President's  

Office Executive Assistant Area: 

District Governing Board Policies References: 204 Financial 

Conditions  

With respect to the actual, ongoing financial conditions and activities, the Yavapai College President shall not 

cause or allow the development of financial jeopardy or a material deviation of actual expenditures from 

Board-stated priorities.  

I. Accordingly, the President shall not:  

1. Expend more funds than have been received or are available in reserves in the fiscal year  

2. Allow current fund reserves to drop below seventeen percent (17%) or plant fund reserves to drop below 

eight percent (8%) of the operating budget (including general fund and auxiliary fund budgets).  

3. Allow reserve funds to replenish at an inappropriate rate after, in accordance with specified Board 

approvals, funds have dropped below the President’s authorized limits.  

4. Allow the Board to be without monthly reports of budget deviations and reserves.  

5. Allow planning that is not fiscally sound or doesn’t build organizational capabilities sufficient to achieve 

board goals in future years.  

6. Enter into any lease agreement as lessee for more than five-years in duration or that exceeds $200,000 

per year without the District Governing Board (DGB) approval. 

7. Make any tenant improvements over $30,000 to leased property without the DGB approval. 

8. Make or delegate financial decisions for which legislation specifically requires delegation of authority from 

the Board except for the following, which the Board authorizes without the need for further Board approval 

provided the decisions are compliant with the Board’s policies:  pursuant to A.R.S. Section 15-1444(B)(2), 

the authority to enter into a lease for real property either as lessor or lessee on behalf of the College. 

II. For purposes of the Expenditure Limit Report, the District Budget may be reduced to an amount equal to 

actual expenditures without DGB action, once expenditures have been determined by the annual audit 

conducted on the District’s Financial Statements. Any other modifications to the approved District Budget 

must be via formal DGB resolution. 

Attachments  

No Attachments  

78 of 200



A. 204 Financial Conditions. Retrieved 6/1/2023. Official copy at http://yavapai.policystat.com/policy/10631237/. Copyright © Page 
1 of 2 2023 Yavapai College 

 

Approval Signatures  

Step Description  Approver  Date  

Yvonne Martinez-Sandoval: President's Office Executive Assistant  10 /26/2021  

79 of 200



community college officers were allowed by statute, and the governing board 
therefore elected the current officers last year for two-year terms.  Therefore, the 
policy needs to be revised to allow for two-year officer terms, if desired in the future.  
 
Secretary Kuknyo moved, seconded by Member Bracety, to approve the 
revisions as proposed to policy 304. Motion carried unanimously (Ayes: 
McCasland, Kuknyo, Sigafoos, Bracety and Payne). 
 
The first sentence of the policy will read as follows:  “As required by A.R.S. § 15-
1443(B), the Board will elect a Chair and a Secretary in January of the year in which 
the current terms of the Chair and Secretary expire.” 
 

f. Yavapai College District Governing Board Meeting Delivery Procedures – 
INFORMATION, DISCUSSION, AND DECISION – Ms. Deborah 
McCasland, Board Chair {Time: 30} 

i. Livestream, Board Meeting Locations, and Executive Session – Mr. Ray 
Sigafoos, Board Member 

 
(See Attachment A for more details on this discussion.) 

 
Member Sigafoos delivered a presentation on his recommendation to livestream the 
board meetings and to hold the physical meetings primarily in the Rock House on 
the Prescott campus. Member Sigafoos read a quotation from a blog about the 
College that he wanted to be noted to record.  
 
“The District Governing Board meeting distinguishes itself from nearly all significant governmental 
bodies in the county by refusing to livestream its proceedings. This decision seems like another 
attempt to withhold information about its activities, discussions, and debates from county residents.” 
 
Member Sigafoos explained that he agrees and believes that the board has an 
obligation to make certain that taxpayers have the opportunity to understand the 
board’s decision-making process and decisions.  
 
Member Sigafoos continued to explain that the inconvenience to the staff to attend 
meetings and to set up the meeting rooms in other locations is significant.  He 
suggested that in addition to livestreaming meetings, he would like the board to 
consider holding meetings in the Rock House and only travelling to other campuses 
on special occasions.  
 
Dr. Rhine explained that during the pandemic, the College livestreamed board 
meetings on YouTube and provided a Zoom link for board members and presenters 
to participate. There were questions and discussion by the board members about 
technology for allowing Open Call participation by the public and livestreaming.  Ms. 
Sandoval explained that Zoom has limitations on the number of people who can 
participate without quality deterioration and that the College’s license only allows so 
many people to join a meeting.  
 
Member Payne asked if there was a way that someone could request to make 
comments to the board after a meeting had started. Ms. Sandoval explained the 
Open Call procedure to Member Payne. Member Payne indicated he would not 

80 of 200



 

 

Current Status: Active  PolicyStat ID: 10647518  

Origination:  6/2/2021  

Effective:  10/19/2021  

Last Approved: 10/19/2021  

Last Revised: 10/19/2021  

                Next Review: 1/31/2024  

 Owner:  Yvonne Sandoval: President's  

Office Executive Assistant Area: 

District Governing Board Policies References:                                                        

304 Board Elections & Appointments  

As required by A.R.S. 15-1443(B), the Board will elect a Chair and a Secretary in January of the year in 

which the current terms of the Chair and Secretary expire.  The expectation will be that the newly-elected 

Chair and Secretary will serve a two-year term.  The Chair and Secretary will serve from the date of election 

until the date on which their replacements are elected.  The newly-elected Board Chair will appoint Board 

Liaisons for one-year terms at the January meeting.  The following procedure will be used by the Board for 

the nomination and election of a Chair and Secretary:  

1. The current Board Chair shall call for nominations.  

2. After the Board Chair determines that no other nominations are forthcoming, the Board Chair shall 

declare the nominations to be closed.  

3. Board Chair shall call on nominees in alphabetical order based on their last names to speak.  After all 

nominees have been offered the opportunity to speak, Board members may speak about the candidates 

being considered regarding their nomination.  The Board Chair shall call for the vote of each nominee, in 

randomly-selected order, until a nominee receives at least a majority vote of the Board.  

4. After nominee receives at least a majority vote of the Board, the process is complete even if there are 

remaining nominees who have not been voted on.  

5. If no nominee receives at least a majority vote of the Board, the Board Chair shall begin the process 

again.  

Attachments  

No Attachments  

Approval Signatures  

 Step Description  Approver  Date  

 

 Yvonne Martinez-Sandoval: President's Office Executive Assistant  10/29/2021  

81 of 200



support a virtual Open Call that would include a deadline for members of the public 
to register to speak prior to the meeting.  
 
Member Sigafoos moved, seconded by Secretary Kuknyo, to livestream all 
DGB Meetings as soon as possible, and to have staff report back about the 
options available for members of the public to provide comments during 
Open Call if they do not attend a meeting in person. Motion carried 4-1 (Ayes: 
McCasland, Kuknyo, Sigafoos, and Bracety; Nay: Payne). 
 
Member Sigafoos then addressed the meeting location issue. He indicated he does 
not believe it is worth the expense, wear and tear on equipment, and staff hours to 
hold meetings in locations other than the Rock House, except on special occasions. 
Secretary Kuknyo indicated that he did not like the idea of not having a meeting on 
the Verde side, and he wants to keep holding some meetings on that side of the 
mountain. Member Payne suggested that the board consider setting up a designated 
board meeting room in the Verde to accommodate meetings on both sides without 
moving and setting up equipment for each board meeting.  
 
Member Sigafoos moved, seconded by Secretary Kuknyo, for staff to research 
and report back regarding two potential designated Board meeting rooms, 
one in Prescott and one in the Verde Valley, for meetings held next fiscal year. 
Motion carried unanimously (Ayes: McCasland, Kuknyo, Sigafoos, Bracety, 
and Payne). 

 
3. Study Session 

a. Government Affairs Update – INFORMATION – Mr. Rodney Jenkins, Vice 
President of Community Relations {Time: 20} (Attached) 

 
Mr. Rodney Jenkins gave a presentation to the board about the upcoming Legislative 
Conference in Washington, DC, as well as the Community College Day at the State 
Capitol. His presentation was a review of the information provided for the 
Government Affair Update included in the Agenda Packet. (Refer to the Agenda 
Packet for those details.) 
 

LUNCH BREAK 
 

b. Yavapai College District Governing Board Policies – INFORMATION AND 
DISCUSSION – Dr. David Borofsky, Director of the Arizona Association of 
Community Colleges Trustee {Time: 90} 
 

(See Attachment B for more details on this discussion.) 
 
Dr. David Borofsky reviewed the following board policies with the board:  

 101 College Priorities 
 207 Presidential Compliance 
 301 Board Budget 
 305 Governing Board Style and Focus 
 306 Board Code of Conduct and Ethics 
 401 Delegation to and Accountability of the President 
 402 Monitoring Presidential Performance 

82 of 200



 
A lot of good collaborative discussion occurred during this session, and based off of 
that discussion, the following board policies will have be discussed for potential 
revisions at a future board meeting:  

 101 College Priorities – revise to include information relevant to the 
College’s baccalaureate degrees. 

 307 Board Member Responsibilities and Obligations – revise the Law section 
to reflect the correct board practices. 

 305 Board Governing Focus & Style – consider potential revisions to item 1. 
 306 Board Member Code of Conduct & Ethics – consider potential revisions 

to include a time schedule and to indicate that Conflict of Interest forms are 
submitted to the board attorney and presented to the board in the January 
meeting.  

 401 Delegation to and Accountability of President – revise numbering on 
policy to be correct and consider addressing an appeal process if a request 
for information or assistance is refused by President due to amount of staff 
time and/or funds or if it is disruptive.  

 
 

c. Open Meeting Law Review - INFORMATION AND DISCUSSION – Attorney 
Lynne Adams {Time: 30} (Attached) 

 
Attorney Lynne Adams provided training to the board about the three main Open 
Meeting Law topics: email and meetings, serial discussions, and sticking to the 
agenda. Her presentation was a review of the information provided for the Open 
Meeting Law Review included in the Agenda Packet (Refer to the Agenda Packet for 
those details). 

 

d. 2024 Board Member Conflict of Interest Forms – INFORMATION AND 
DISCUSSION – Attorney Lynne Adams {Time: 5} 

 
Attorney Lynne Adams reported that all board member Conflict of Interest Forms 
were completed and submitted, and there are no conflicts of interest reported by any 
board member at this time.  

 
4. Adjournment of Board Workshop: Procedural - DECISION {Time: 1} 

 
Member Sigafoos moved, seconded by Secretary Kuknyo, to adjourn the Workshop. 
Motion carried unanimously (Ayes: McCasland, Kuknyo, Sigafoos, Bracety and 
Payne). 
 
Workshop adjourned at 2:17 p.m. 
 

  

83 of 200



Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
____________________________________   ___________________ 
Deanne K. Petty, Recording Secretary    Date 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________  ______________________________ 
Ms. Deb McCasland, Board Chair     Mr. Chris Kuknyo, Secretary 

84 of 200



A achment A 

1 | P a g e  
 

 

Chair McCasland: “Next, we have our governing board mee ng delivery procedures. and Mr. Sigafoos will 

be addressing that issue.”  

Member Sigafoos: “Thank you. The reason for this item on the agenda is to address a poten al change in 

the way we run, run our budget, our our budget, our mee ngs. And unless allow the public to have input 

into the process. And I'm got a a presenta on I want to make. star ng with the fact that this county has 

been split by the mountains since 19 since 1864. That's a long me. And about a third of our taxpayers 

live on the other side of the middle. I don't and there's no ques on that the geography issue short of 

drilling a tunnel will change. That is to say, that side of the of the county will always be isolated from this 

side of the county. Whether it grows at same rate. is it unknown? But at least at this point it's about a 

third and 2 thirds. There are at least 2 trumpets in the Verde Valley. who make it their object to whip up 

controversy about this college. One of them is a newspaper, the other is a blog blogs, but is run by Bob 

Olifant, who is a friend of mine, not a friend of mine, an acquaintance of mine. He served with me on the 

board for one year.”  

Chair McCasland: “Wasn’t it two?” 

Member Sigafoos: “Yeah, but actually he was on the board for one year. But he's been a thorn in our side 

ever since he le  the board. I have a quota on from the recent blog post that I'd like to read for the 

record. The District Governing Board mee ng dis nguishes itself from nearly all significant governmental 

bodies in the county by refusing to live stream its proceedings. This decision seems like another a empt 

to withhold informa on about its ac vi es, discussions, and debates from county residents. That was on 

the blog. If you look at it, and I do periodically, because I like to know who my enemy is, and what he's 

saying. My points are that is a burr under the saddle. When you've got somebody who's pos ng this on 

the Internet, you also have a newspaper. I believe it's called the Red Rock News. I've never seen a copy of 

it, but I've seen some of their editorials who make it their job to whip up ac ons and and and 

controversy with county residents on that side of the mountain. We do have an obliga on to certain to 

make certain that taxpayers have the opportunity to just to understand our decision-making process.” 

Secretary Kuknyo: “Absolutely.” 

Member Sigafoos: “And Bob makes a very good point that when you have but a mee ng here you have 

plot pack taxpayers. With a hundred and mile round trip, which will take 2 or 3 hour to make that trip. 

Uh .. they're not gonna show up, and if they have something to say, they're not gonna be able to say it. A 

significant amount of me and energy is also expended by the college for our staff to set up and manage 

the off-site mee ngs. Because we have to put the en re process from here to Clarkdale, or here to 

Sedona, or here at Camp Verde, not Camp Verde but uh Chino Valley. When we have a mee ng that isn't 

located in our district uh governing board mee ng room which is set up solely for that purpose. In most 

cases the audience for this mee ng are made up of the usual suspects. I don't have an audience here for 

this point, because this mee ng room is a li le bit different than the one we would have in Clarkdale. 

But if I had a mee ng in Clarkdale, and I asked everybody in the audience to raise their hand who wasn't 

associated with the college. I have a full room, but I'd have maybe 3 or 4 hands. and maybe one of those 

hands would might want to make an open call, or in the case of a controversy, maybe 20 of them would 

be. But the bo om line is the standard audience, for this mee ng is made up of staff and faculty. And if 

85 of 200



A achment A 

2 | P a g e  
 

we have to move that staff and Faculty to Verde Valley or Sedona or Chino Valley or Presco  Valley that 

takes me and energy.” 

Dr. Rhine: “And expense.” 

Member Sigafoos: “And expense adopt me and energy and expense. Time and energy equals expense. 

That's Einstein's second law equals. Never mind. We have technology when this board had to goo Zoom 

Mee ngs, because if we closed down the campus in to 2010. We operated our board by zoom, and we 

had an audience in the background by zoom. So we have that technology we used it for about, I guess a 

good year before we actually got back to regular in-person mee ngs but we s ll have that technology. 

My sugges ons are that we have 2 policies or procedures that we might want to adopt. And I'm not sure 

that this is an item that's on the agenda for decision, for discussion.” 

A orney Adams: “It is. It’s both.” 

Chair McCasland: “It is. It’s both.” 

Member Sigafoos: “But we might want to have a discussion about streaming the mee ngs to allow a 

limited amount of opportunity and allow a limited amount of open call opportunity for the off site 

loca ons. That is to say, if you're on a Zoom Mee ng of some sort, you might have the opportunity for 

an open call. Raise your hand during that period of me, so that you, as a ci zen in Camp Verde, who's 

watching the mee ng, could have his open call for her open call heard by the board at that point without 

he he or she having to make the 200 mile round trip.” 

A orney Adams: “And if I can just interject, so I do work with several boards who do that, they for that, 

for people who want to to give open call, who are not at the mee ng physically, they require them to 

sign up in advance by, say the you know noon the day before, so that they can get a link to provide them 

with that, either a call in number or a link to provide them with that informa on so it’s doable.” 

Member Sigafoos: “That's an opera onal technology issue which probably I mean, we have that 

technology. We know it works. The ques on is, are we willing at this point, as a board, to make a 

decision, that this mee ng should be able to be seen at least seen by the residents of the county in 

Bagdad. In North Wickenburg, in in Ashfork, or Seligman, if they have an opportunity to get that they 

don't have to make the the trip to here, or wherever the mee ng is being held. That's the first part of the 

decision, and that could be separated from the second part. The second part is. we have 9 scheduled 

mee ngs a year. We don't meet in December. We don't meet in July or August, because there's nothing 

really going on in July or August and December is normally a holiday party, or it's a holiday kind of thing, 

and the college is shu ng down, and we really don't. We don't have an agenda item for those 3 months. 

The only agenda item we would have for a June mee ng is the opportunity to if we haven't made it in 

May to adopt a final budget which we have to do by June thir eth. So we really the last number of years 

that I've been on here. We really haven't had a June mee ng, so we have 8 mee ngs a year. If we have 2 

of them in the Verde Valley. We have one in Chino Valley, and we have one here we have and one in 

Presco  Valley. That's 5 mee ngs outside of our dedicated board mee ng room. That's 5 mes we have 

to move the staff and the and the technology and set it all up for having those kind of mee ngs. And 

that's an expense item we need to look at whether or not we actually need to have those 5 mee ngs on 

an annual basis. Seeing us once a year in a different loca on may or may not be the most effec ve use of 

the staff me and the staff and and the the college budget issue. Making it every 2 or 3 years. Yeah, we 

86 of 200



A achment A 

3 | P a g e  
 

have uh you know, back and forth with the local community as members, but on an annual basis, holding 

5 of the 8 mee ngs outside of our dedicated Board Mee ng room is beginning to look like it's not 

making any sense to me as a member of the board for 18 years now. We've done it. We've been doing it 

for that period of me. I think maybe it's me to take a look at that issue. 

Dr. Rhine: Ray? Can I just ... historically have … have we done it differently?  

Member Sigafoos: “No.” 

Dr. Rhine: “I mean, have we … have we always done that circuit?” 

Member Sigafoos: “ugh…” 

Dr. Rhine: “I..I..We’ve done it ever since I’ve been here. And I kind of….” 

Member Sigafoos: “I..I don't. I don't recall that we have done it to that extent.” 

Dr. Rhine: “Okay.” 

Member Sigafoos: “There have been mes, and I believe it's been like, maybe 10 years ago or so. When 

we didn't actually have a mee ng in Presco  Valley. As an example, we didn't have a mee ng out in 

Chino Valley because we didn't have it a fully adopted center out there. The building actually wasn't built 

un l 2012, I believe. So the answer is historically, it's been mostly done. But I get the idea of having our 

board mee ngs held here live streaming it to the world and not having to deal with the ques on of, do 

we move staff and faculty and technology to 5 different loca ons. 

Member Bracety: “and travel me.” 

Member Sigafoos: “and the travel me for us to by the way.” 

Member Bracety: “Are you recommending to have all boarding mee ngs at the Rock House and just live 

stream it?” 

Member Sigafoos: “Yeah.” 

Member Bracety: “Okay.” 

Member Sigafoos: "That's my proposal. Now, you might say, well, let's do it every let's do. Every other 

year we'll go to Chino Valley, or every other year we'll go to to the Verde, or someplace like that. But at 

this point ye ye if we are doing technology the right way. We don't need to have all the staff and faculty 

run out to, but Sedona center. We don't need them all to run out to the Chino center. Now, there might 

be an example of where we've got the new Sedona center all set up, and we've not seen it. We go out 

there, and we have a mee ng there just to see the the way it's done. or the changes in the Rock House 

or in the the Chino Valley, but that's a special occasion. But I think, as a board policy it ought to be. We're 

going to meet in the mee ng room. We've set up for ourselves the technology we've set up for 

ourselves. Let the world see what's going on. Let the world react to it like an open call kind of thing. And 

unless we have a special mee ng, need to go there, we just don't go there. That's that's my, that's my 

bifurcated proposal. The first part, which is the live streaming, the second part, which is the mee ng 

area mee ng room.  

 

87 of 200



A achment B 

1 | P a g e  
 

POLICY 307 - Discussion 
Member Payne: “II I'm gonna jump over to 307 on you.”  

Dr. Borofsky: “Okay.” 

Member Payne: “307 is board member responsible and obliga ons.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “Hang on. I'll pull it up. I've got it, cause it's one of the ones we're gonna talk…” 

Member Payne: “One of the items that falls under law on the backside of 307. As board members may 

use electronic messages to communicate with college administra on regarding college and board at 

business. Including requests for factual informa on related to the college or board. As long as no other 

board members are copied on such message. 

Chair McCasland: So what is your point. 

Member Payne: “Well, I'm I'm hearing one way of communica ons, but this seems to contradict it. It’s 

staff.” 

Chair McCasland: “No we don’t send emails to staff.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “No 307 is not on the list…Deanna can start that up again? Can I see that, Toby?” 

Member Payne: “Yes, sir.” 

A orney Adams: “You can send emails just to the board staff … to board staff.” 

Member Payne: “Yes you can as long as you don’t copy the board…. Well, it doesn’t state board staff.” 

Chair McCasland: “Oh yeah definitely… I’m talking about like the folks in the PAC.” 

Member Payne: “I’m alright, I'm just reading it and trying to. I just wanna be able to follow it. 

Dr. Borofsky: “Yeah. So it does say that it's it's pre y clear that it says board members may use electronic 

messages, ie. Emails, doesn't say that. But that's what it means… to communicate with college 

administra on regarding college or board business. Including requests for factual informa on related to 

the college or the board as long as no other board members are copied on such a message. 

Member Payne: “Period.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “So, what this says is Toby or Chris or Ray could send a note to Clint and say, I want to know 

XY. And Z. And not copy the President, I mean, that's what this says. 

Secretary Kuknyo: “it says that…” 

Chair McCasland: “There's another one there, though, that our communica on only goes through the 

President 

Dr. Borofsky: “Well so we….Thank you, Deanna.”  

A orney Adams: “Yeah I would put that on, that’s great. I’d put that on the list.” 

88 of 200



A achment B 

2 | P a g e  
 

Member Bracety: “It’s a parking lot item.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “Yep, 307.” 

Member Payne: “Park it big me.” 

A orney Adams: “Cause I think we were thinking at the me the discussion was about like if you were to 

email Deanne, or Yvonne, or the President, but you’re right all of the administra on includes more than 

just those individuals, so you may want to work on that.” 

Chair McCasland: “Because I would never do that, because I don't. That would be direc ng the the…” 

Member Payne: “I don't think that did. I don't think that's happened. I'm just saying that's the policy as 

what is wri en.  

Ms. Sandoval: “What number is that?” 

Member Payne: “307… 07 law on the back..part of 307. It means talk to the A orney. 

Dr. Borofsky: “Well, there may be something in statute about that …” 

 Member Sigafoos: “That's the con nua on of a sentence that actually beings open mee ng law.” 

A orney Adams: “It is….oh yeah I was going to say it is an open mee ng law issue. But I think that it’s the 

overlay of board interac on with Staff that we're really talking about here, too.” 

Member Sigafoos: “It's really 11. ABC and D.” 

A orney Adams: “Oh is that what it is… oh I see…Law just isn’t there on it’s own.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “It’s because of the way it was cutoff.” 

Member Sigafoos: “It was paginated incorrectly.” 

A orney Adams: “oh, so it's the okay, yeah.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “Open reading law.” 

A orney Adams: “Yeah. Yeah. Thank you.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “Okay.” 

Chair McCasland: “Okay.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “Good catch, Toby. Thank you.” 

  

89 of 200



A achment B 

3 | P a g e  
 

POLICY 306 - Discussion 
Dr Borosky: “306 means that you are expected to govern ethically. That you do not have conflicts of 

interest when making decisions. And if you do you need to declare those and and pull yourself away 

from vo ng on a par cular issue, that you may have that conflict with that you not only expect 

appropriate behavior from yourself. But that you expect appropriate behavior from each other. I think 

that's important that the 5 of you have what I call R. And D. Respect and dignity. I've talked about that in 

the past for one another. Not that you always agree. You don't have to always agree but that you have 

appropriate behavior with each other. and that you can hold each other accountable. Now you know the 

interes ng thing about elected officials on boards in this state is unless you've done something egregious 

there are no there is no way to hold you accountable for inappropriate behavior unless it's really bad 

inappropriate behavior. But doing, you know, viola ng a policy is not going to get you thrown off the 

board because there's no mechanism to do that. So you have to hold each other accountable. And here's 

where I put in under 306, the note that it's not the President's responsibility to ensure appropriate board 

behavior. It's the 5 of you and your responsibility to do that. So conversa on, discussion, ques ons. 

Member Payne: “I've got several.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “Okay, sir.” 

Member Payne: “If, just having done this before to other boards holding each other accountable means 

that the the actual disclosure of of interest would be exposed to all board members. and without that 

happening here. I'm concerned over it. What I'm saying is is, I didn't see yours, Chris. I didn't see yours. I 

didn't see anybody else's. I turned mine in. That's a problem with me. 

A orney Adams: “We're gonna… that's on the agenda.” 

Member Payne: “Okay, let me keep going. Number number 2 is that there should be a me schedule in 

in policy policy 306 what I'm saying is is that it'll be done at the start of the year, or wherever you want 

to do it, there should be a me. Schedule number 3 is is that? And this was major with me. Ge ng the 

form up in the top of the form, it says, see the a ached guidelines. There were no a ached guidelines 

given to me with the form. Therefore, I…I went back and forth a few mes. Thank you. I…I got 38,502 

and 503, which made it so I understood because I had have a situa on where from a previous marriage. I 

have a older son close to 50, so you know and he he's been doing business with the college. So did I have 

a conflict. So I needed to have those forms to be able to determine that. And it does substan al, and I 

have no interest at all, nor do I know the business he was doing, but it was exposed to me when I was 

working on the Verde Valley campus with Ryan. Is it right, Ryan? Okay. And and also up in the policy at 

the top of it. It says as required by board policy 307. It's actually 306 that requires it. And that's a 

problem there. So all of these are things that I think need to be corrected in this. Okay. I'm done.  

A orney Adams: “And just to be clear. So what we usually do is every one submits. And then II talk about 

whether or not there's anybody's iden fied a conflict at the board mee ng. So that's the last item on the 

agenda today, so you can see each other's you can see each other's forms. But that's the typically the 

way we do it is I report out at the mee ng publicly.” 

Member Payne: “Is is … okay. Then then I guess that should be in the policy that the a orney will 

90 of 200



A achment B 

4 | P a g e  
 

make it so that the Board members see that and other boards I've been given them, and then everybody 

re reviews everybody, so I don't care how it's done, but it should be done.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “Yep. good sugges ons. And what we added that I see Yvonne wri ng, and she's not wri ng 

me a love note. So she must be adding into the parking lot. Okay. 

Member Payne: “Okay, good.” 

Dr. Borosky: “Thank you, Toby.” 

Member Payne: “You're welcome.” 

  

91 of 200



A achment B 

5 | P a g e  
 

POLICY 401 Discussion 
Dr. Borofsky: “Okay. 401. This is your delega on to an accountability of the President. And basically this 

says with a lot of words, including the AR. S. 1514, 44, a 6 plus B 4. The ability to delegate to the college 

president all of his authority to do all kinds of things. And you've done that as most of the colleges in 

Arizona have. and it I will tell you that I did have a conversa on with a board chair one me, and this 

person said to me, but it says in the statutes that that the Board can hire all these people. So I looked at 

her, and I said. You have thousands of employees here. You're a volunteer. You're elected, but you're a 

volunteer. Why do you want to spend all day and all night hiring and termina ng employees. But she 

looked at me and says, I don't. and I said, If that's the case. then you should be delega ng this to the 

President and and allowing this President to do his or her job.” 

Chair McCasland: “Don't some of them s ll approve the contracts?” 

Dr. Borofsky: “They do. Yeah. Some of them, on the consent will do it on the consent agenda agenda. 

They'll do an Hr. Report on the agenda, which includes termina ons new hires. But they aren't involved 

in the actual interviewing and hiring.” 

Chair McCasland: “So I don't know how you can make a judgment on that, because you're not involved. I 

mean Dr. Rhine and her staff are involved in that. And …They take care of it.” 

Member Bracety: “Not only that, the hiring and firing that’s the easy part. It’s the just the uh the 

discussions or discipline or counseling leading up to the termina on. That’s the me-consuming part.” 

A orney Adams: “I’ll just say you guys are the leaders on this you were the first to delegate the authority 

long ago and several community colleges have followed, and I know that there are K-12 who also wish to 

follow because they also… don’t… they get lists and lists at every board mee ng of everything. And they 

right and and they have no idea they're approving them, but they have no idea of any of the details. So 

kudos to to this board for doing this.” 

Chair McCasland: “It's part of the how? Yep.” 

Member Payne: “We're on 401.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “Yes, sir.” 

Member Payne: “Okay, 401… this would be it's a second number one in the case of board members or 

board commi ees reques ng informa on or assistance without authoriza on. The President shall 

refuse. What? Where? I'm confused here is where's the procedure to get that authoriza on? And what is 

the authoriza on.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “So it says in the case of board members of board commi ees reques ng informa on or 

assistance without authoriza on.” 

A orney Adams: “...for yeah. It's 4 on your slide, but it's the renumbering started again, for some reason 

on the policy that Toby pulled up that it should be number four.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “So the authoriza on as we have talked about in the past. Umm….” 

 

92 of 200



A achment B 

6 | P a g e  
 

Member Payne: “So it's I'm looking for the procedure, for ….” 

Dr. Borosky: “So it would come. It would come from the board as a whole. So in the case of Board 

members or Board commi ee reques ng informa on, should say without board authoriza on, probably 

Full Board authoriza on. So the the President has the according to this policy, and we also spent a lot of 

me on this par cular piece. I believe that that if there is a lot of cost and me and data based on the 

request from either a board member or a board commi ee. Then it needs to go to the full board for 

request and then direc on by a majority vote of the Board to the President. Because. again, I've seen 

this, you've probably seen it, too. Someone, a board member has a request for informa on which it's not 

readily available. It's not like you can just pull it out of the the ether or out of the computer system. and 

it requires intertwining 6 different reports to get all the informa on and depending on the me of year. 

And I'm star ng to learn this as I deal with some of the data issues with the IR folks around the State. 

There are certain mes end of the fall beginning of January, beginning of spring, winter, spring when the 

IR. Folks are needy in ge ng informa on to the State for required reports to the Legislature, the JBCL. 

JLbc. II got them right, but the wrong word. JLBC. Some of the state reports that end up actually going in 

under my signature now. And trying to get informa on out of them at the same me is near impossible. 

So I think some of it depends on what's needed. And, more importantly, why it's needed. And if a board 

member feels that that informa on is warranted then, and the President says, and I can't do it. Then 

bring it to a board mee ng and let the Board decide. That's why you have for the Board members to 

have those kind of conversa ons.” 

Chair McCasland: “And we had a former board member that wanted a huge amount of data that wasn't 

something that the college had kept. So he was. It's formed that if you really want this, it's gonna cost 

you. Was it $150 for the paper and the me to put together the report?” 

Dr. Rhine: “oh.. No it was in the thousands.” 

Chair McCasland: “It was in the thousands.” 

Dr. Rhine: “He narrowed his scope. But  he was going through the open records request because he 

didn’t bring it to the board. So the answer was no we’re not going to provide this data it’s not in a 

canned  report. It's going to take me and energy of staff that aren't available right now. So they went 

through open records, and and then it was, we can do that. But it's going to be thousands of dollars 

because you wanted to email correspondence.” 

Ms. Sandoval: “And no, it wasn't he wanted... It was how many years he wanted to go back. And so when 

you fill out a public record request. There's always an item that says free. But the problem is the the me 

it takes the staff to do that. It stops becoming free. And so we have to no fy the person who requested 

the who submi ed. The request is no longer free for these reasons, and this is how much it's gonna cost 

you either. Would you like to pay for this amount. Or would you like to submit a different request? And I 

have to do all of that, and wri ng, they all come to me. So I have to do that in wri ng, that they cancel 

the original, that they have to cancel these original request, and then, if they would like to submit 

another one.” 

Member Bracety: “So what do you do? Cancel?” 

A orney Adams: “You guys are off topic.” 

93 of 200



A achment B 

7 | P a g e  
 

 

Member Payne: “So so my my ques on is, where is the capability of a board member asking for 

informa on, or is it in wri ng that they can ask for it? Reasonable informa on?” 

Dr. Borofsky: “It's right there you can ask for it. But the President reserves the right to refuse those 

requests …..” 

Member Payne: “I understand….” 

Member Payne: “….if they're and she would respond to you or to any other board member in a way that 

said. You know I know you want to know how many pianos we have, but I can't get to that informa on. 

It's not reasonable. And then the board member can bring it to the full board and say, Look, I need to 

know how many panels we you have.” 

Member Sigafoos: “I think, what Toby's reques ng his that second part there. There's nothing in the 

policy as to the appeal process.” 

A orney Adams: “40 401?”  

Member Payne: “It doesn't. It doesn't say so. Accountability to the President, I guess, makes it so that it's 

supposed to be requested of the President. Okay.” 

Member Sigafoos: “But there should be, according to your ques on. some sort of here's what you do if 

you if you get the then no. it's been denied what’s the recourse. Is that what you're asking?” 

Member Payne: “Yeah. You know, Where? How do you? How do you actually get it. And and…hmm” 

Chair McCasland: “You copied me on that also, and I ask you how that would help you make decisions to 

support students.And how it would be used in your role as a board member. And I knew that that 

informa on was not really available was going to require research.” 

Member Payne: “I fail to understand how the number of people registering for for a specific class over 2 

or 3 years wouldn't be readily available informa on.”  

Dr. Rhine: “It's not in the canned reports, it would have to be created. It would be me and effort to 

extract that data and create that report for you. If it's in a canned record, and it's available. We we would 

give it to you right away. But if it requires staff me to be pulled off, and you know I have to put in a data 

request for that. Specifically. That's that's a use of me and energy. For what purpose? And that's why I 

gave it to the board chair to say for what purpose? How is this going to help a board member to do their 

job?” 

Member Payne: “It's… well for… And I answered it back.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “Time out, Time out…we’re knee deep in….” 

Member Payne:  “This was… out of control.”  

Dr. Borofsky: “Well, I don't think it's out of control. I think that you made a request. The quest was 

denied and maybe the policy is lacking. But again, I I'll interpret the policy for you. So you can be mad at 

me. But Number 4 basically says that the President has that author. It has that ability because you 

94 of 200



A achment B 

8 | P a g e  
 

delegated it to her. But but one thing II think I would say to this board in general. If you as a board 

member. Ask a ques on. and you don't like the answer, or you can't get the answer. Then you should 

bring it to a board mee ng and and put it on the agenda. I mean, that's why you have 5 members of a 

board and you bring it to the board chair, who creates the agenda and ask that it be put on so you can 

have that conversa on. Now we can have that conversa on here and solve the problem. But I think. 

Lynn, tell me if I I'm gonna go overboard here. But if you can't give the President a reason in this case, 

Toby, why you want that informa on. It puts the request in the ether as to why and whether you think 

it's available or not is not the issue. The issue is, why is the board member. Do you need it to do your job 

as a board member? Be er?”  

Member Payne: “I did that.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “Okay. Then, if if you did it then, and you've weren’t happy with the answer. Then you 

should bring it, put it on the agenda and bring it to a board mee ng.” 

Member Payne: “Sure I did that I got no answer. I was already denied. and and to get it on the board 

agenda I had to go back to the person that denied me.” 

A orney Adams: “So it sounds like or at least for the policy that we're looking at. 401. We want to take a 

look at it, and again to Ray’s Point. Put a put an appeal process in, or at least consider how procedures… 

yeah.”  

Member Payne: “Procedures.” 

Secretary Kuknyo: “Well, I've seen. I've seen 4 used as a weapon to, to actually disrupt staff and to 

paralyze them. They get flooded with public informa on requests, and it really hammers up. And that's 

why they made a lot of changes. But if it's a simple ques on. I don't know if if it's worth the me. I don't 

know. I don't know anything about what you guys want to do?”  

A orney Adams: “Well, maybe that. And I don't either. But I think that that's I was. Gonna say, I think 

that that's probably for the board when you talk about policy for all. And how do you balance those 2 

interests? the kind of overwhelming of staff, as you said, that can be a tool versus weapon. I've always 

seen it done by the public not by a board member.” 

Member Payne: “ And I went back and did a specific freedom, freedom of the informa on request or the 

same informa on. Because as a board member. I wasn't allowed to get it.” 

Chair McCasland: “There was an also an email sent.”  

Dr. Borofsky: “Okay, let's let's hold that for for a different…. or..” 

Member Sigafoos: “Can I make a comment?..... I'm not involved in the process.” 

Dr. Borosky: “Yes.” 

Member Sigafoos: “but I'm looking at policy 308, which is board planning and agenda and it is pre y 

clear as to what the what the board member wants to get. On the agenda he goes through the board 

chair, and but the final point is, if the Board member feels this process has not been followed 

appropriately here, he or she will inform the chair who will place the ma er on the next board agenda 

regardless of whether or not it's been placed on the agenda because it's a board policy ques on or the 

95 of 200



A achment B 

9 | P a g e  
 

President's response. or is this, it's a three-step process. But the final step in that process is you've 

denied me twice. Let's get it on the agenda.” 

Member Bracety: “So ul mately it does get on the agenda?” 

Member Sigafoos: “Yeah, you should be able to get it on the agenda based on this based on 308. If it's 

the Board's issue. Now, the board issue, item one says, if it's a board issue, you can place it on the 

agenda. Item 2 says if it's a president’s issue, blah blah blah. If the board member feels process has not 

been followed appropriately he or she will will inform the chair who will place it on the agenda. There's 

no ifs or buts at that point that has not been requested.” 

Chair McCasland: “It has not been requested.”  

Member Sigafoos: “I understand that I'm not talking about this par cular situa on. I'm saying there is a 

process in 3 8 to get that job done. But it's not referenced in 401.”  

Member Bracety: “Hopefully, a conversa on could be had to off topic to say, Hey, before we go there.”  

Member Sigafoos: “Dispute resolu on is not, is not part of this issue.”  

Member Bracety: “Just saying.” 

Chair McCasland: “okay.” 

A orney Adams: “But we can look at policy 401 generally.” 

Member Sigafoos: “And if you wanted to say see 308, for a resolu on.”  

Secretary Kuknyo: “Yup, and you know we go a remember to when we go through these things. It's not 

just us. Cause I think we func on pre y good as a board. But I mean, this is for the future. And I think of 

a board members, past and stuff and and things that could have been used up, and we just go a be 

really careful that we don't just put apply this to us. It's it's for forever.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “It's good. It's for good board prac ce, right and policy.”  

Dr. Rhine: “I think it's very important in item, well, item 4 on the slide, where it says, in the President's 

opinion, because you cannot know at any point the load that an employee is under, or the situa on in 

that unit, we might have people out on FMLA. We may have reduced staff. We may not be fully staffed in 

a unit, and the number of open records we records requests we get is significant. And so so the queue, I 

mean, does a board member get priority in that queue for an open records request? When it's it's 

ques onable, right? So it's just that. You just can't know. And that's also the ming. You know the end of 

the semester. Horrible me to ask for informa on, because all the repor ng happens at December. It 

happens at the end of spring. And that's when we get a lot of. So so I have to priori ze. You know, we sit 

down and priori ze those and where they go. And so it's just not about you wan ng a simple answer. It's 

it has to go in to the queue. And it is significant amount of work me that spent on that instead of 

college work ge ng their work, their jobs done because they're pulled off to do. Hr. All they is always 

dealing with open rec.. And then we have to have the a orneys go in and redact all the informa on. And 

it's just a lot.” 

96 of 200



A achment B 

10 | P a g e

Ms. Sandoval: “The most public records request I get either have to do with HR or they have to do with 

finance. That's it. Yeah, nothing else contracts, or some of that contract, but they always happen at the 

end of the year, or right before we go into winter break.”  

Member Bracety: “So you could give out termina on informa on?” 

A orney Adams: “I’m going to stop you’re off topic.” 

Dr. Rhine: “In a public records request. We've had a number of mes when employees terminated. They 

will ask for email correspondence between this person and this person. From this data, which requires, 

as first of all, that Patrick, pull them all off, print them, and then, under hurry has to go through and 

redact personal media. It's just it's there's huge amount of work.”  

Dr. Borofsky: “So this sounds like an agenda item for the board mee ng. The the kinds of the kinds of 

informa on to answer your ques on that, didn't realize you had 20 that you get for public records. 

Request it could be a 10 min report from Yvonne.”  

Secretary Kuknyo: “But a board member should take priority. I think a li le bit on that.”  

Chair McCasland: “No.” 

Secretary Kuknyo: “No?” 

Dr. Borofsky: “okay.”  

A orney Adams: “You have to respond properly.” 

Dr. Borofsky: “Right, yeah. There's ming issues and everything else. Okay, I think we've beat it to death.” 

97 of 200



261,680$		

EXPENDITURES	(note	1): Purpose
Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Encumbered
Obligations

Total
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Salary Expenses Staff Support 43,912$              44,147$             88,059$               
AACCT Mini-conference/meeting (Yuma) Registration/travel 1,183 -                      1,183                    
ACCT Leadership Congress (Las Vegas) Registration/travel 20,429                -                      20,429                 
ACCT National Legislative Summit (DC) Registration/travel 4,825                  -                      4,825                    
AGB National Conference on Trusteeship (Boston) Registration/travel 795                      -                      795                       
Osborn Maledon, PA Legal Services 9,832                  37,563               47,395                 
Other - Various Catering/supplies/other 2,993                  -                      2,993                    
YC Printing Services Printing 357                      -                      357                       166,036      

Remaining	Budget	‐	November	30,	2023 95,644$					

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT
REPORT	OF	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Five	Months	Ended	November	30,	2023

District	Governing	Board

Fiscal	Year	2023‐24	Budget:

98 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Five	Months	Ended	November	30,	2023	‐	41.7%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

SUMMARY	‐	ALL	FUNDS

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues Budget

Percent	of
Budget

REVENUES:
General Fund 29,127,243$    29,127,243$        58,380,200$             49.9%
Restricted Fund 8,707,103         8,707,103             19,242,800               45.2%
Auxiliary Fund 3,455,080         3,455,080             6,560,200 52.7%
Unexpended Plant Fund 11,172,748      11,172,748          18,028,600               62.0%
Debt Service Fund 525,016            525,016                1,258,600 41.7%

TOTALS 52,987,190				 52,987,190								 103,470,400										 51.2%

Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Encumbered
Obligations

Labor	
Encumbrances

Total
Expenditures	
and	Non‐Labor
Encumbrances Budget

Percent	of
	Actual	and	Non‐

Labor	
Encumbrances	
to	Budget

EXPENDITURES	(note	1):
General Fund 24,806,054$       18,972,805$    17,156,745$         26,622,114$        58,380,200$             45.6%
Restricted Fund 6,962,589            3,173,914         1,579,683              8,556,820             19,242,800               44.5%
Auxiliary Fund 2,757,354            1,428,717         1,396,649              2,789,422             6,560,200 42.5%
Unexpended Plant Fund 3,686,768            7,924,962         - 11,611,730 18,028,600               64.4%
Debt Service Fund 1,100 523,501            - 524,601 1,258,600 41.7%

TOTALS 38,213,865							 32,023,899				 20,133,077									 50,104,687								 103,470,400										 48.4%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 2,882,503$								 ‐	

COMMENTS:

Through the fifth month, 48.4% of budget has been committed (excluding labor encumbrances) compared to 51.2% of revenues received

The budget currently has a surplus of $2,882,503.

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

99 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Five	Months	Ended	November	30,	2023	‐	41.7%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

GENERAL	FUND

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues

Total
Revenues

FY	23/24									
Budget

Percent	of
Budget

FY	23/24								
Estimate

Budget	to	
Estimate	
Variance

FY	22/23									
Actuals

Percent	Change	
(Current	Versus	
Prior	Year)

REVENUES:
Primary Property Taxes 18,847,290$    18,847,290$        45,369,600$       41.5% 45,369,600$     -$  17,515,880$       7.6%
Primary Property Taxes - Contingency - - (150,000)             0.0% (150,000)           - - 0.0%
Tuition and Fees 9,684,876         9,684,876             12,896,000         75.1% 12,696,000       (200,000)          8,853,079           9.4%
Tuition and Fees - Contingency - - (630,000)             0.0% (430,000)           200,000            - 0.0%
State Appropriation - Maintenance 186,500            186,500 373,000               50.0% 373,000             - 150,200               24.2%
State Appropriation - Rural Aid 1,542,200         1,542,200             3,654,000           42.2% 3,084,400          (569,600)          1,391,100           10.9%
YCF Contribution - Basketball Program - - 406,000               0.0% 406,000             - - 0.0%
Other Revenues 313,751            313,751 512,000               61.3% 512,000             - 192,359               63.1%
Interest Income 365,292            365,292 300,000               121.8% 500,000             200,000            45,152 709.0%
Fund Balance Applied to Budget 1,176,917         1,176,917             2,824,600           41.7% 2,824,600          - 719,583               63.6%
General Fund Transfer In/(Out) (2,989,583)       (2,989,583)           (7,175,000)          41.7% (7,175,000)        - (1,584,875)          88.6%

TOTAL REVENUES 29,127,243				 29,127,243									 58,380,200							 49.9% 58,010,600					 (369,600)								 27,282,478							 6.8%

Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Total	
Encumbered
Obligations

Labor	
Encumbrances

Total
Expenditures	
and	Non‐Labor
Encumbrances

FY	23/24									
Budget

Percent	of
	Actual	and	Non‐

Labor	
Encumbrances	
to	Budget

FY	23/24								
Estimate

Budget	to	
Estimate	
Variance

FY	22/23									
Actuals

Percent	Change	
(Current	Versus	
Prior	Year)

EXPENDITURES	(Note	1):
Instruction 9,057,512$           5,956,396$        5,761,289$           9,252,619$           21,652,400$       42.7% 21,479,181$     (173,219)$        8,159,416$         11.0%
Academic Support 2,380,282              1,849,258          1,842,076             2,387,464             5,663,900           42.2% 5,607,261          (56,639)            2,157,697           10.3%
Institutional Support 5,801,168              5,314,853          4,231,040             6,884,981             12,403,400         55.5% 12,341,383       (62,017)            5,621,169           3.2%
Student Services 4,133,155              3,618,779          3,514,277             4,237,657             10,015,100         42.3% 9,914,949          (100,151)          3,593,043           15.0%
Operation/Maintenance of Plant 2,785,747              2,196,333          1,808,063             3,174,017             7,192,400           44.1% 7,120,476          (71,952)            2,965,131           -6.0%
Scholarships 637,904 37,186 - 675,090 1,440,600           46.9% 1,440,600          - 718,125               -11.2%
Public Service 10,286 - - 10,286 12,400 83.0% 12,400                - 2,513 309.3%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 24,806,054									 18,972,805						 17,156,745									 26,622,114									 58,380,200							 45.6% 57,916,250					 (463,978)								 23,217,094							 6.8%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 2,505,129$									 ‐$ 	

COMMENTS:

Tuition and Fees revenues above budget due to a significant amount of the spring 2024 semester being recorded.  This will even out over the next six months.  
Second quarter State appropriations were received in October 2023.
The State Appropriation - Rural Aid budget was based upon the Governor's proposed budget, however, it was decreased by $569,600 during budget negotiations.  This occurred after the District's budget was passed.
Interest income is exceeding budget by a large amount due to short-term interest rates being at a fifteen year high (Fed tightening).
Institutional Support expenditures above budget due to the payment and or encumbering of various expenses at the beginning of the fiscal year (e.g. insurance, software licensese, IT maintenance, dues, etc.).
The Budget currently has a surplus of $2,505,129.

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

100 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

GENERAL	FUND	EXPENDITURES	BY	NACUBO	NATURAL	EXPENSE	CATEGORIES

For	the	Five	Months	Ended	November	30,	2023	‐	41.7%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

Year	to	Date		 Prior	Year				
Percent	
Change

Salaries 14,559,663$        13,126,908$        10.9% 1
Benefits 4,623,115             4,078,816             13.3% 2
Supplies 1,364,134             1,314,431             3.8%
Contractual Services and Other 2,365,530             2,824,271             -16.2% 3
Utilities & Communications 753,919 701,453 7.5% 4
Travel, Conferences & Memberships 501,789 453,090 10.7% 5
Scholarships 637,904 718,125 -11.2% 6

24,806,054$        23,217,094$        6.8%

1 - Salaries increased due to annual compensation increases, market compensation increases, the addition of 
 several new positions and a couple of large employee payouts done in July.  

2 - Benefits mainly increased due to compensation increases, new positions and higher tuition/fee waiver 
 benefits due to the new bachelor's program.  When new positions are added YC pays more in medical premiums, 
 FICA (7.65%) and retirement (12.29%).  In regards to existing position market adjustments and compensation
 increases, YC is required to pay FICA (7.65%) and retirement (12.29%) on those amounts.

3 - Change mainly due to timing differences with the prior year and will dimish in future months.
4 - Utilities & Communications increased from the prior year due to a hotter summer and general price increases.
5 - Travel, Conferences & Memberships increased from the prior year due to higher food, lodging and 

airfare, and increased in-state and out-of-state travel.
6 - Scholarships decreased due to fewer athletes compared to the prior year.  In the prior year, several coaches resigned

at the beginning of the season which caused additional scholarships to be awarded.

Note:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

101 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Five	Months	Ended	November	30,	2023	‐	41.7%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

RESTRICTED	FUND

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues

Total
Revenues Budget

Percent	of
Budget

REVENUES:
Federal Grants and Contracts 4,764,189$        4,764,189$            10,616,800$   44.9%
State Grants and Contracts 528,115              528,115 1,532,800        34.5%
Private Gifts, Grants and Contracts 719,212              719,212 956,000           75.2%
Proposition 301 Workforce Development 635,321              635,321 1,300,000        48.9%
Proposition 207 Workforce Development 833,333              833,333 2,500,000        33.3%
State Appropriation - STEM Workforce 318,600              318,600 637,200           50.0%
Fund Balance Applied to Budget 908,333              908,333 1,700,000        53.4%

TOTAL	REVENUES 8,707,103								 8,707,103												 	 19,242,800			 45.2%

Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Total	
Encumbered
Obligations

Labor	
Encumbrances

Total
Expenditures	and	

Non‐Labor
Encumbrances Budget

Percent	of
	Actual	and	Non‐

Labor	
Encumbrances	
to	Budget

EXPENDITURES	(Note	1):
Instruction 1,789,046$       2,418,872$     887,841$            3,320,077$            7,949,400$      41.8%
Academic Support - - - - - 0.0%
Institutional Support - - - - - 0.0%
Student Services 602,255            173,548           173,548               602,255 1,422,000        42.4%
Operation/Maintenance of Plant 2,126 - - 2,126 18,400              11.6%
Scholarships 3,642,679         - - 3,642,679               7,260,200        50.2%
Public Service 926,483            581,494           518,294               989,683 2,592,800        38.2%

TOTAL	EXPENDITURES 6,962,589         3,173,914        1,579,683           8,556,820												 	 19,242,800			 44.5%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 150,283$													 	

COMMENTS:

Restricted Funds expended only to the extent that Grants and Gifts are received.

First quarter STEM Workforce appropriation was received in October 2023.

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

102 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Five	Months	Ended	November	30,	2023	‐	41.7%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

UNEXPENDED	PLANT	FUND

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues

Total
Revenues Budget

Percent	of
Budget

REVENUES:
Primary Property Taxes 3,439,860$         3,439,860$              8,280,500$             41.5%
Primary Property Taxes - Contingency - - (45,000) 0.0%
Investment Income 201,392               201,392 80,000 251.7%
Other 13,696 13,696 40,000 34.2%
Fund Balance Applied to Budget 5,362,500            5,362,500 5,362,500 100.0%
General Fund Transfer In 2,155,300            2,155,300 4,310,600 50.0%

TOTAL	REVENUES 11,172,748								 11,172,748	 18,028,600	 62.0%

Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Encumbered
Obligations

Labor	
Encumbrances

Total
Expenditures	and	

Non‐Labor
Encumbrances Budget

Percent	of
	Actual	and	Non‐

Labor	
Encumbrances	
to	Budget

EXPENDITURES	(Note	1):
Planned Maintenance 1,030,472$     906,114$        -$  1,936,586$              3,974,000$             48.7%
Unplanned Maintenance 54,600             44,246 - 98,846 275,600 35.9%
Capital Improvement Projects 1,815,235       6,635,110       - 8,450,345 10,446,300             80.9%
Equipment 622,016          316,339          - 938,355 2,221,800 42.2%
Furniture and Fixtures 161,167          23,153 - 184,320 257,500 71.6%
Library Books 3,278 - - 3,278 90,900 3.6%
Capital Contingency - - - - 762,500 0.0%

TOTAL	EXPENDITURES 3,686,768						 7,924,962					 ‐	 11,611,730	 18,028,600	 64.4%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (438,982)$													 	 ‐	

COMMENTS:

The Budget currently has a deficit of -$438,982 as a result of a significant amount of Preventative Maintenance and Capital Improvement Projects being encumbered for the fiscal year.

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The supporting revenues will be received over the remaining fiscal year.

103 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Five	Months	Ended	November	30,	2023	‐	41.7%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

AUXILIARY	FUND

Budgeted	
Revenues

Budgeted	
Expenses

Budgeted
Surplus/	
(Deficit)

	Actual	
Revenues

Actual	
Expenditures	
and	Non‐Labor
Encumbrances

Year‐to‐date
Surplus/	
(Deficit)

AUXILIARY	ENTERPRISES
Residence Halls and Summer Conferences 1,307,000$        516,200$            790,800$            1,236,873$        191,067$             1,045,806           
Transfer To Debt Fund to Pay Revenue Bonds (400,900) - (400,900) (167,042) - (167,042) 
     Subtotal - Residence Halls and Summer Conferences 906,100              516,200              389,900              1,069,831           191,067 878,764              

Bookstore Rental and Commissions 60,000 - 60,000 32,897 666 32,231 
Food Service & Vending 95,000 403,700              (308,700) 36,771 130,917 (94,146)               
Employee/Student Housing Rental 214,200              272,800              (58,600)               8,974 3,899 5,075 
Edventures 342,000              352,300              (10,300)               75,725 67,344 8,381 
Winery - Tasting Room 300,000              345,000              (45,000)               144,545              134,024 10,521 
Family Enrichment Center 757,300              1,021,400           (264,100) 325,874              461,109 (135,235) 
Community Events 812,300              1,154,400           (342,100) 369,837              705,496 (335,659) 
Performing Arts Productions 340,000              345,900              (5,900) 202,650              243,494 (40,844)               
SBDC (Federal Grant Match Requirement) - 186,600 (186,600) 505 49,171 (48,666)               
Yavapai College Foundation 543,800              543,800 - 213,019 213,019 - 
Other Auxiliary Enterprises 180,600              149,100 31,500 137,410 102,133 35,277 
General Fund Transfer In 2,008,900           - 2,008,900 837,042 - 837,042 
Contingency - 100,000 (100,000) - - - 
Facilities & Administrative Allocation - 1,169,000 (1,169,000) - 487,083 (487,083) 

6,560,200$							 6,560,200$							 ‐$ 	 3,455,080$							 2,789,422$								 665,658$										 	

Comments:

Residence Halls and Summer Conferences revenues are above budget due to most of the spring 2024 room revenues being recorded.  
This will even out over the next few months.
The Budget currently has a surplus of $665,658.

Note	1:		Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

104 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Five	Months	Ended	November	30,	2023	‐	41.7%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

DEBT	SERVICE	FUND

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues

Total
Revenues Budget

Percent	of
Budget

REVENUES:
Investment Income 16$  16$  -$  100.0%
General Fund Transfer In 356,458 356,458              855,500           41.7%
Auxiliary Fund Transfer In 167,042 167,042              400,900           41.7%
Fund Balance Applied to Budget 1,500 1,500 2,200                 68.2%

TOTAL	REVENUES 525,016															 525,016													 1,258,600						 41.7%

DEBT	SERVICE	FUND
Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Encumbered
Obligations

Labor	
Encumbrances

Total
Expenditures	
and	Non‐Labor
Encumbrances Budget

Percent	of
	Actual	and	Non‐

Labor	
Encumbrances	
to	Budget

EXPENDITURES	(Note	1):
Revenue Refunding Bonds - 2021

Principal Payments -$  347,917$         -$  347,917$            835,000$         41.7%
Interest Payments - 8,542 - 8,542 20,500              41.7%

Revenue Bonds - 2013 - 
Principal Payments - 147,917 - 147,917 355,000           41.7%
Interest Payments - 19,125 - 19,125 45,900              41.7%

Bank Fees 1,100 - - 1,100 2,200                 50.0%
TOTAL	EXPENDITURES 1,100																	 523,501										 ‐	 524,601													 1,258,600						 41.7%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 415$ 	 ‐$																		

COMMENTS:

Through the fifth month, 41.7% of budget has been committed compared to 41.7% of revenues received

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

105 of 200



261,680$		

EXPENDITURES	(note	1): Purpose
Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Encumbered
Obligations

Total
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Salary Expenses Staff Support 51,511$              39,733$             91,244$               
AACCT Mini-conference/meeting (Yuma) Registration/travel 1,310 -                      1,310                    
ACCT Leadership Congress (Las Vegas) Registration/travel 21,704                -                      21,704                 
ACCT National Legislative Summit (DC) Registration/travel 4,825                  -                      4,825                    
AGB National Conference on Trusteeship (Boston) Registration/travel 795                      -                      795                       
Osborn Maledon, PA Legal Services 13,721                37,563               51,284                 
Other - Various Catering/supplies/other 3,257                  -                      3,257                    
YC Printing Services Printing 507                      -                      507                       174,926      

Remaining	Budget	‐	December	31,	2023 86,754$					

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT
REPORT	OF	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Six	Months	Ended	December	31,	2023

District	Governing	Board

Fiscal	Year	2023‐24	Budget:

106 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Six	Months	Ended	December	31,	2023	‐	50%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

SUMMARY	‐	ALL	FUNDS

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues Budget

Percent	of
Budget

REVENUES:
General Fund 33,622,380$    33,622,380$        58,380,200$             57.6%
Restricted Fund 9,480,353         9,480,353             19,242,800               49.3%
Auxiliary Fund 3,910,157         3,910,157             6,560,200 59.6%
Unexpended Plant Fund 11,966,080      11,966,080          18,028,600               66.4%
Debt Service Fund 630,354            630,354                1,258,600 50.1%

TOTALS 59,609,324				 59,609,324								 103,470,400										 57.6%

Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Encumbered
Obligations

Labor	
Encumbrances

Total
Expenditures	
and	Non‐Labor
Encumbrances Budget

Percent	of
	Actual	and	Non‐

Labor	
Encumbrances	
to	Budget

EXPENDITURES	(note	1):
General Fund 28,775,409$       16,907,430$    15,232,844$         30,449,995$        58,380,200$             52.2%
Restricted Fund 7,532,690            3,198,994         1,444,924              9,286,760             19,242,800               48.3%
Auxiliary Fund 3,304,206            1,323,634         1,297,216              3,330,624             6,560,200 50.8%
Unexpended Plant Fund 4,236,764            8,109,068         - 12,345,832 18,028,600               68.5%
Debt Service Fund 34,332 595,000            - 629,332 1,258,600 50.0%

TOTALS 43,883,401							 30,134,126				 17,974,984									 56,042,543								 103,470,400										 54.2%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 3,566,781$								 ‐	

COMMENTS:

Through the sixth month, 54.2% of budget has been committed (excluding labor encumbrances) compared to 57.6% of revenues received

The budget currently has a surplus of $3,566,781.

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

107 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Six	Months	Ended	December	31,	2023	‐	50%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

GENERAL	FUND

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues

Total
Revenues

FY	23/24									
Budget

Percent	of
Budget

FY	23/24								
Estimate

Budget	to	
Estimate	
Variance

FY	22/23									
Actuals

Percent	Change	
(Current	Versus	
Prior	Year)

REVENUES:
Primary Property Taxes 22,616,748$    22,616,748$        45,369,600$       49.9% 45,369,600$     -$  21,019,056$       7.6%
Primary Property Taxes - Contingency - - (150,000)             0.0% (150,000)           - - 0.0%
Tuition and Fees 10,623,101      10,623,101           12,896,000         82.4% 12,596,000       (300,000)          9,591,127           10.8%
Tuition and Fees - Contingency - - (630,000)             0.0% (330,000)           300,000            - 0.0%
State Appropriation - Maintenance 186,500            186,500 373,000               50.0% 373,000             - 150,200               24.2%
State Appropriation - Rural Aid 1,542,200         1,542,200             3,654,000           42.2% 3,084,400          (569,600)          1,391,100           10.9%
YCF Contribution - Basketball Program - - 406,000               0.0% 406,000             - 446,000               -100.0%
Other Revenues 281,106            281,106 512,000               54.9% 512,000             - 266,168               5.6%
Interest Income 547,925            547,925 300,000               182.6% 700,000             400,000            145,385               276.9%
Fund Balance Applied to Budget 1,412,300         1,412,300             2,824,600           50.0% 2,824,600          - 863,500               63.6%
General Fund Transfer In/(Out) (3,587,500)       (3,587,500)           (7,175,000)          50.0% (7,175,000)        - (1,901,850)          88.6%

TOTAL REVENUES 33,622,380				 33,622,380									 58,380,200							 57.6% 58,210,600					 (169,600)								 31,970,686							 5.2%

Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Total	
Encumbered
Obligations

Labor	
Encumbrances

Total
Expenditures	
and	Non‐Labor
Encumbrances

FY	23/24									
Budget

Percent	of
	Actual	and	Non‐

Labor	
Encumbrances	
to	Budget

FY	23/24								
Estimate

Budget	to	
Estimate	
Variance

FY	22/23									
Actuals

Percent	Change	
(Current	Versus	
Prior	Year)

EXPENDITURES	(Note	1):
Instruction 10,625,545$         5,046,916$        4,894,956$           10,777,505$        21,652,400$       49.8% 21,522,179$     (130,221)$        9,634,216$         10.3%
Academic Support 2,765,272              1,671,244          1,657,869             2,778,647             5,663,900           49.1% 5,607,261          (56,639)            2,476,944           11.6%
Institutional Support 6,633,708              4,879,149          3,860,697             7,652,160             12,403,400         61.7% 12,353,786       (49,614)            6,373,099           4.1%
Student Services 4,841,998              3,265,634          3,174,783             4,932,849             10,015,100         49.3% 9,914,949          (100,151)          4,226,552           14.6%
Operation/Maintenance of Plant 3,262,542              2,007,365          1,644,539             3,625,368             7,192,400           50.4% 7,142,053          (50,375)            3,482,087           -6.3%
Scholarships 638,902 37,122 - 676,024 1,440,600           46.9% 1,440,600          - 709,300               -9.9%
Public Service 7,442 - - 7,442 12,400 60.0% 12,400                - 3,385 119.9%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 28,775,409									 16,907,430						 15,232,844									 30,449,995									 58,380,200							 52.2% 57,993,228					 (387,000)								 26,905,583							 6.9%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 3,172,385$									 ‐$ 	

COMMENTS:

Tuition and Fees revenues above budget due to a significant amount of the spring 2024 semester being recorded.  This will even out over the next six months.  
Second quarter State appropriations were received in October 2023.
The State Appropriation - Rural Aid budget was based upon the Governor's proposed budget, however, it was decreased by $569,600 during budget negotiations.  This occurred after the District's budget was passed.
Interest income is exceeding budget by a large amount due to short-term interest rates being at a fifteen year high (Fed tightening).
Institutional Support expenditures above budget due to the payment and or encumbering of various expenses at the beginning of the fiscal year (e.g. insurance, software licensese, IT maintenance, dues, etc.).
The Budget currently has a surplus of $3,168,185.

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

108 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

GENERAL	FUND	EXPENDITURES	BY	NACUBO	NATURAL	EXPENSE	CATEGORIES

For	the	Six	Months	Ended	December	31,	2023	‐	50%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

Year	to	Date		 Prior	Year				
Percent	
Change

Salaries 17,247,948$        15,528,350$        11.1% 1
Benefits 5,287,276             4,687,804             12.8% 2
Supplies 1,579,435             1,571,068             0.5%
Contractual Services and Other 2,542,198             3,019,663             -15.8% 3
Utilities & Communications 903,453 833,880 8.3% 4
Travel, Conferences & Memberships 580,397 555,518 4.5% 5
Scholarships 638,902 709,300 -9.9% 6

28,779,609$        26,905,583$        7.0%

1 - Salaries increased due to annual compensation increases, market compensation increases, the addition of 
 several new positions and a couple of large employee payouts done in July.  

2 - Benefits increased primarily due to compensation increases, new positions and higher tuition/fee waiver 
 benefits due to the new bachelor's program.  When new positions are added YC pays more in medical premiums, 
 FICA (7.65%) and retirement (12.29%).  In regards to existing position market adjustments and compensation
 increases, YC is required to pay FICA (7.65%) and retirement (12.29%) on those amounts.

3 - Change mainly due to timing differences with the prior year and will get closer to being flat by the end of the year.
4 - Utilities & Communications increased from the prior year due to a hotter summer and general price increases.
5 - Travel, Conferences & Memberships increased from the prior year due to higher food, lodging and 

airfare, and increased in-state and out-of-state travel.
6 - Scholarships decreased due to fewer athletes compared to the prior year.  In the prior year, several coaches resigned

at the beginning of the season which caused additional scholarships to be awarded.

Note:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

109 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Six	Months	Ended	December	31,	2023	‐	50%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

RESTRICTED	FUND

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues

Total
Revenues Budget

Percent	of
Budget

REVENUES:
Federal Grants and Contracts 4,862,636$        4,862,636$            10,616,800$   45.8%
State Grants and Contracts 527,806              527,806 1,532,800        34.4%
Private Gifts, Grants and Contracts 736,222              736,222 956,000           77.0%
Proposition 301 Workforce Development 735,089              735,089 1,300,000        56.5%
Proposition 207 Workforce Development 1,250,000          1,250,000               2,500,000        50.0%
State Appropriation - STEM Workforce 318,600              318,600 637,200           50.0%
Fund Balance Applied to Budget 1,050,000          1,050,000               1,700,000        61.8%

TOTAL	REVENUES 9,480,353								 9,480,353												 	 19,242,800			 49.3%

Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Total	
Encumbered
Obligations

Labor	
Encumbrances

Total
Expenditures	and	

Non‐Labor
Encumbrances Budget

Percent	of
	Actual	and	Non‐

Labor	
Encumbrances	
to	Budget

EXPENDITURES	(Note	1):
Instruction 2,153,021$       2,468,786$     777,916$            3,843,891$            7,949,400$      48.4%
Academic Support - - - - - 0.0%
Institutional Support - - - - - 0.0%
Student Services 693,225            200,544           200,544               693,225 1,422,000        48.8%
Operation/Maintenance of Plant 2,126 - - 2,126 18,400              11.6%
Scholarships 3,662,518         - - 3,662,518               7,260,200        50.4%
Public Service 1,021,800         529,664           466,464               1,085,000               2,592,800        41.8%

TOTAL	EXPENDITURES 7,532,690         3,198,994        1,444,924           9,286,760												 	 19,242,800			 48.3%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 193,593$													 	

COMMENTS:

Restricted Funds expended only to the extent that Grants and Gifts are received.

Second quarter STEM Workforce appropriation was received in October 2023.

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

110 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Six	Months	Ended	December	31,	2023	‐	50%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

UNEXPENDED	PLANT	FUND

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues

Total
Revenues Budget

Percent	of
Budget

REVENUES:
Primary Property Taxes 4,127,832$         4,127,832$              8,280,500$             49.9%
Primary Property Taxes - Contingency - - (45,000) 0.0%
Investment Income 300,521               300,521 80,000 375.7%
Other 19,927 19,927 40,000 49.8%
Fund Balance Applied to Budget 5,362,500            5,362,500 5,362,500 100.0%
General Fund Transfer In 2,155,300            2,155,300 4,310,600 50.0%

TOTAL	REVENUES 11,966,080								 11,966,080	 18,028,600	 66.4%

Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Encumbered
Obligations

Labor	
Encumbrances

Total
Expenditures	and	

Non‐Labor
Encumbrances Budget

Percent	of
	Actual	and	Non‐

Labor	
Encumbrances	
to	Budget

EXPENDITURES	(Note	1):
Planned Maintenance 1,086,935$     1,055,090$    -$  2,142,025$              3,974,000$             53.9%
Unplanned Maintenance 70,441             48,572 - 119,013 275,600 43.2%
Capital Improvement Projects 2,156,152       6,367,843       - 8,523,995 10,446,300             81.6%
Equipment 758,412          614,410          - 1,372,822 2,221,800 61.8%
Furniture and Fixtures 161,167          23,153 - 184,320 257,500 71.6%
Library Books 3,657 - - 3,657 90,900 4.0%
Capital Contingency - - - - 762,500 0.0%

TOTAL	EXPENDITURES 4,236,764						 8,109,068					 ‐	 12,345,832	 18,028,600	 68.5%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (379,752)$													 	 ‐	

COMMENTS:

Interest income is exceeding budget by a large amount due to short-term interest rates being at a fifteen year high (Fed tightening).

The Budget currently has a deficit of -$379,752 as a result of a significant amount of Preventative Maintenance and Capital Improvement Projects being encumbered for the fiscal year.

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

The supporting revenues will be received over the remaining fiscal year.

111 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Six	Months	Ended	December	31,	2023	‐	50%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

AUXILIARY	FUND

Budgeted	
Revenues

Budgeted	
Expenses

Budgeted
Surplus/	
(Deficit)

	Actual	
Revenues

Actual	
Expenditures	
and	Non‐Labor
Encumbrances

Year‐to‐date
Surplus/	
(Deficit)

AUXILIARY	ENTERPRISES
Residence Halls and Summer Conferences 1,307,000$         516,200$             790,800$             1,267,332$         215,329$              1,052,003           
Transfer To Debt Fund to Pay Revenue Bonds (400,900)             - (400,900) (200,450)             - (200,450) 
     Subtotal - Residence Halls and Summer Conferences 906,100               516,200               389,900               1,066,882           215,329 851,553               

Bookstore Rental and Commissions 60,000 - 60,000 33,506 666 32,840 
Food Service & Vending 95,000 403,700               (308,700) 38,500 184,416 (145,916)             
Employee/Student Housing Rental 214,200               272,800               (58,600) 14,012 6,010 8,002 
Edventures 342,000               352,300               (10,300) 103,571               71,903 31,668 
Winery - Tasting Room 300,000               345,000               (45,000) 158,272               158,785 (513) 
Family Enrichment Center 757,300               1,021,400           (264,100) 380,278               558,219 (177,941)             
Community Events 812,300               1,154,400           (342,100) 487,279               826,207 (338,928)             
Performing Arts Productions 340,000               345,900               (5,900) 217,650               263,528 (45,878)                
SBDC (Federal Grant Match Requirement) - 186,600 (186,600)             - 65,367 (65,367)                
Yavapai College Foundation 543,800               543,800 - 256,847 256,847 - 
Other Auxiliary Enterprises 180,600               149,100 31,500 148,910 138,847 10,063 
General Fund Transfer In 2,008,900           - 2,008,900 1,004,450           - 1,004,450 
Contingency - 100,000 (100,000) - - - 
Facilities & Administrative Allocation - 1,169,000 (1,169,000) - 584,500 (584,500)             

6,560,200$							 6,560,200$							 ‐$ 	 3,910,157$							 3,330,624$								 579,533$											

Comments:

Residence Halls and Summer Conferences revenues are above budget due to most of the spring 2024 room revenues being recorded.  
This will even out over the next few months.

The Budget currently has a surplus of $579,533.

Note	1:		Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

112 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Six	Months	Ended	December	31,	2023	‐	50%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

DEBT	SERVICE	FUND

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues

Total
Revenues Budget

Percent	of
Budget

REVENUES:
Investment Income 654$  654$  -$  100.0%
General Fund Transfer In 427,750 427,750              855,500           50.0%
Auxiliary Fund Transfer In 200,450 200,450              400,900           50.0%
Fund Balance Applied to Budget 1,500 1,500 2,200                 68.2%

TOTAL	REVENUES 630,354															 630,354													 1,258,600						 50.1%

DEBT	SERVICE	FUND
Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Encumbered
Obligations

Labor	
Encumbrances

Total
Expenditures	
and	Non‐Labor
Encumbrances Budget

Percent	of
	Actual	and	Non‐

Labor	
Encumbrances	
to	Budget

EXPENDITURES	(Note	1):
Revenue Refunding Bonds - 2021

Principal Payments -$  417,500$         -$  417,500$            835,000$         50.0%
Interest Payments 10,263                - - 10,263 20,500              50.1%

Revenue Bonds - 2013 - 
Principal Payments - 177,500 - 177,500 355,000           50.0%
Interest Payments 22,969                - - 22,969 45,900              50.0%

Bank Fees 1,100 - - 1,100 2,200                 50.0%
TOTAL	EXPENDITURES 34,332														 595,000										 ‐	 629,332													 1,258,600						 50.0%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 1,022$																 ‐$																		

COMMENTS:

Through the fifth month, 41.7% of budget has been committed compared to 41.7% of revenues received

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

113 of 200



261,680$		

EXPENDITURES	(note	1): Purpose
Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Encumbered
Obligations

Total
Expenditures/
Encumbrances

Salary Expenses Staff Support 59,624$              33,846$             93,470$               
AACCT Mini-conference/meeting (Yuma) Registration/travel 1,310 -                      1,310                    
ACCT Leadership Congress (Las Vegas) Registration/travel 21,704                -                      21,704                 
ACCT National Legislative Summit (DC) Registration/travel 7,829                  -                      7,829                    
AGB National Conference on Trusteeship (Boston) Registration/travel 795                      -                      795                       
Osborn Maledon, PA Legal Services 18,362                26,638               45,000                 
Other - Various Catering/supplies/other 3,837                  -                      3,837                    
YC Printing Services Printing 507                      -                      507                       174,452      

Remaining	Budget	‐	January	31,	2024 87,228$					

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT
REPORT	OF	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Seven	Months	Ended	January	31,	2024

District	Governing	Board

Fiscal	Year	2023‐24	Budget:

114 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Seven	Months	Ended	January	31,	2024	‐	58.3%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

SUMMARY	‐	ALL	FUNDS

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues Budget

Percent	of
Budget

REVENUES:
General Fund 39,336,973$    39,336,973$        58,380,200$             67.4%
Restricted Fund 12,981,437      12,981,437          19,242,800               67.5%
Auxiliary Fund 4,855,617         4,855,617             6,560,200 74.0%
Unexpended Plant Fund 13,091,960      13,091,960          18,028,600               72.6%
Debt Service Fund 734,840            734,840                1,258,600 58.4%

TOTALS 71,000,827				 71,000,827								 103,470,400										 68.6%

Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Encumbered
Obligations

Labor	
Encumbrances

Total
Expenditures	
and	Non‐Labor
Encumbrances Budget

Percent	of
	Actual	and	Non‐

Labor	
Encumbrances	
to	Budget

EXPENDITURES	(note	1):
General Fund 33,099,400$       14,315,659$    13,027,226$         34,387,833$        58,380,200$             58.9%
Restricted Fund 10,766,179         3,080,899         1,169,209              12,677,869          19,242,800               65.9%
Auxiliary Fund 3,895,687            1,144,570         946,282 4,093,975             6,560,200 62.4%
Unexpended Plant Fund 5,368,197            7,605,990         - 12,974,187 18,028,600               72.0%
Debt Service Fund 34,332 699,667            - 733,999 1,258,600 58.3%

TOTALS 53,163,795							 26,846,785				 15,142,717									 64,867,863								 103,470,400										 62.7%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 6,132,964$								 ‐	

COMMENTS:

Through the seventh month, 62.7% of budget has been committed (excluding labor encumbrances) compared to 68.6% of revenues received

The budget currently has a surplus of $6,132,964.

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

115 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Seven	Months	Ended	January	31,	2024	‐	58.3%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

GENERAL	FUND

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues

Total
Revenues

FY	23/24									
Budget

Percent	of
Budget

FY	23/24								
Estimate

Budget	to	
Estimate	
Variance

FY	22/23									
Actuals

Percent	Change	
(Current	Versus	
Prior	Year)

REVENUES:
Primary Property Taxes 26,386,206$    26,386,206$        45,369,600$       58.2% 45,369,600$     -$  24,522,232$       7.6%
Primary Property Taxes - Contingency - - (150,000)             0.0% (150,000)           - - 0.0%
Tuition and Fees 11,473,725      11,473,725           12,896,000         89.0% 12,396,000       (500,000)          10,380,036         10.5%
Tuition and Fees - Contingency - - (630,000)             0.0% (130,000)           500,000            - 0.0%
State Appropriation - Maintenance 279,750            279,750 373,000               75.0% 373,000             - 225,300               24.2%
State Appropriation - Rural Aid 2,313,300         2,313,300             3,654,000           63.3% 3,084,400          (569,600)          2,086,650           10.9%
YCF Contribution - Basketball Program 400,367            400,367 406,000               98.6% 406,000             - 446,000               -10.2%
Other Revenues 336,815            336,815 512,000               65.8% 512,000             - 293,434               14.8%
Interest Income 684,544            684,544 300,000               228.2% 1,000,000          700,000            145,385               370.8%
Fund Balance Applied to Budget 1,647,683         1,647,683             2,824,600           58.3% 2,824,600          - 1,007,417           63.6%
General Fund Transfer In/(Out) (4,185,417)       (4,185,417)           (7,175,000)          58.3% (7,175,000)        - (2,218,825)          88.6%

TOTAL REVENUES 39,336,973				 39,336,973									 58,380,200							 67.4% 58,510,600					 130,400										 36,887,629							 6.6%

Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Total	
Encumbered
Obligations

Labor	
Encumbrances

Total
Expenditures	
and	Non‐Labor
Encumbrances

FY	23/24									
Budget

Percent	of
	Actual	and	Non‐

Labor	
Encumbrances	
to	Budget

FY	23/24								
Estimate

Budget	to	
Estimate	
Variance

FY	22/23									
Actuals

Percent	Change	
(Current	Versus	
Prior	Year)

EXPENDITURES	(Note	1):
Instruction 11,944,171$         4,254,335$        4,130,925$           12,067,581$        21,652,400$       55.7% 21,479,200$     (173,200)$        10,882,974$       9.8%
Academic Support 3,145,260              1,432,845          1,419,470             3,158,635             5,663,900           55.8% 5,607,300          (56,600)            2,808,225           12.0%
Institutional Support 7,615,848              3,995,920          3,324,673             8,287,095             12,403,400         66.8% 12,403,400       - 7,086,107           7.5%
Student Services 5,550,185              2,861,858          2,730,371             5,681,672             10,015,100         56.7% 9,945,000          (70,100)            4,835,216           14.8%
Operation/Maintenance of Plant 3,785,001              1,733,579          1,421,787             4,096,793             7,192,400           57.0% 7,163,628          (28,800)            4,037,590           -6.3%
Scholarships 1,050,462              37,122 - 1,087,584 1,440,600           75.5% 1,440,600          - 1,117,523           -6.0%
Public Service 8,473 - - 8,473 12,400 68.3% 12,400                - 4,286 97.7%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 33,099,400									 14,315,659						 13,027,226									 34,387,833									 58,380,200							 58.9% 58,051,528					 (328,700)								 30,771,921							 7.6%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 4,949,140$									 ‐$ 	

COMMENTS:

Tuition and Fees revenues above budget due to a significant amount of the spring 2024 semester being recorded.  This will even out over the next few months.  
Third quarter State appropriations were received in January 2024.
The State Appropriation - Rural Aid budget was based upon the Governor's proposed budget, however, it was decreased by $569,600 during budget negotiations.  This occurred after the District's budget was passed.
Interest income is exceeding budget by a large amount due to short-term interest rates being at a fifteen year high (Fed tightening).
Institutional Support expenditures above budget due to the payment and or encumbering of various expenses at the beginning of the fiscal year (e.g. insurance, software licensese, IT maintenance, dues, etc.).
Scholarships at 75.5% of budget due to spring 2024 financial aid awards being made.  This will even out over the next few months.
The Budget currently has a surplus of $4,949,140

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

116 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

GENERAL	FUND	EXPENDITURES	BY	NACUBO	NATURAL	EXPENSE	CATEGORIES

For	the	Seven	Months	Ended	January	31,	2024	‐	58.3%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

Year	to	Date		 Prior	Year				
Percent	
Change

Salaries 19,674,645$        17,702,707$        11.1% 1
Benefits 6,105,009             5,429,411             12.4% 2
Supplies 1,785,193             1,722,097             3.7%
Contractual Services and Other 2,805,341             3,195,033             -12.2% 3
Utilities & Communications 1,047,681             977,535 7.2% 4
Travel, Conferences & Memberships 631,069 627,615 0.6%
Scholarships 1,050,462             1,117,523             -6.0%

33,099,400$        30,771,921$        7.6%

1 - Salaries increased due to annual compensation increases, market compensation increases, and the addition of 
 several new positions.

2 - Benefits increased primarily due to compensation increases, new positions and higher tuition/fee waiver 
 benefits due to the new bachelor's program.  When new positions are added YC pays more in medical premiums, 
 FICA (7.65%) and retirement (12.29%).  In regards to existing position market adjustments and compensation
 increases, YC is required to pay FICA (7.65%) and retirement (12.29%) on those amounts.

3 - Change mainly due to timing differences with the prior year and will get closer to being flat by the end of the year.
4 - Utilities & Communications increased from the prior year due to a hotter summer and utility rate increases.

Note:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

117 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Seven	Months	Ended	January	31,	2024	‐	58.3%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

RESTRICTED	FUND

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues

Total
Revenues Budget

Percent	of
Budget

REVENUES:
Federal Grants and Contracts 7,441,789$         7,441,789$             10,616,800$    70.1%
State Grants and Contracts 618,626               618,626 1,532,800         40.4%
Private Gifts, Grants and Contracts 872,452               872,452 956,000            91.3%
Proposition 301 Workforce Development 837,337               837,337 1,300,000         64.4%
Proposition 207 Workforce Development 1,458,333           1,458,333                2,500,000         58.3%
State Appropriation - STEM Workforce 477,900               477,900 637,200            75.0%
Fund Balance Applied to Budget 1,275,000           1,275,000                1,700,000         75.0%

TOTAL	REVENUES 12,981,437							 12,981,437												 19,242,800				 67.5%

Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Total	
Encumbered
Obligations

Labor	
Encumbrances

Total
Expenditures	and	

Non‐Labor
Encumbrances Budget

Percent	of
	Actual	and	Non‐

Labor	
Encumbrances	
to	Budget

EXPENDITURES	(Note	1):
Instruction 2,499,423$       2,477,073$      620,683$             4,355,813$             7,949,400$      54.8%
Academic Support - - -  - - 0.0%
Institutional Support - - -  - - 0.0%
Student Services 781,075             175,975            175,975                781,075 1,422,000         54.9%
Operation/Maintenance of Plant 2,126  - -  2,126  18,400               11.6%
Scholarships 6,343,849          - -  6,343,849                7,260,200         87.4%
Public Service 1,139,706          427,851            372,551                1,195,006                2,592,800         46.1%

TOTAL	EXPENDITURES 10,766,179       3,080,899        1,169,209            12,677,869												 19,242,800				 65.9%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 303,568$																

COMMENTS:

Restricted Funds expended only to the extent that Grants and Gifts are received.

Third quarter STEM Workforce appropriation was received in January 2024.
Scholarships at 87.4% of budget due to spring 2024 financial aid awards being made.  This will even out over the next few months.

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

118 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Seven	Months	Ended	January	31,	2024	‐	58.3%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

UNEXPENDED	PLANT	FUND

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues

Total
Revenues Budget

Percent	of
Budget

REVENUES:
Primary Property Taxes 4,815,804$         4,815,804$              8,280,500$             58.2%
Primary Property Taxes - Contingency - - (45,000) 0.0%
Investment Income 374,637               374,637 80,000 468.3%
Other 24,502 24,502 40,000 61.3%
Fund Balance Applied to Budget 5,362,500            5,362,500 5,362,500 100.0%
General Fund Transfer In 2,514,517            2,514,517 4,310,600 58.3%

TOTAL	REVENUES 13,091,960								 13,091,960	 18,028,600	 72.6%

Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Encumbered
Obligations

Labor	
Encumbrances

Total
Expenditures	and	

Non‐Labor
Encumbrances Budget

Percent	of
	Actual	and	Non‐

Labor	
Encumbrances	
to	Budget

EXPENDITURES	(Note	1):
Planned Maintenance 1,389,199$     1,021,062$    -$  2,410,261$              3,974,000$             60.7%
Unplanned Maintenance 81,112             41,751 - 122,863 275,600 44.6%
Capital Improvement Projects 2,827,928       5,983,109       - 8,811,037 10,446,300             84.3%
Equipment 881,865          560,068          - 1,441,933 2,221,800 64.9%
Furniture and Fixtures 184,320          - - 184,320 257,500 71.6%
Library Books 3,773 - - 3,773 90,900 4.2%
Capital Contingency - - - - 762,500 0.0%

TOTAL	EXPENDITURES 5,368,197						 7,605,990					 ‐	 12,974,187	 18,028,600	 72.0%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 117,773$															 	 ‐	

COMMENTS:

Interest income is exceeding budget by a large amount due to short-term interest rates being at a fifteen year high (Fed tightening).

The Budget currently has a surplus of $117,773 .

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

119 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Seven	Months	Ended	January	31,	2024	‐	58.3%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

AUXILIARY	FUND

Budgeted	
Revenues

Budgeted	
Expenses

Budgeted
Surplus/	
(Deficit)

	Actual	
Revenues

Actual	
Expenditures	
and	Non‐Labor
Encumbrances

Year‐to‐date
Surplus/	
(Deficit)

AUXILIARY	ENTERPRISES
Residence Halls and Summer Conferences 1,307,000$         516,200$             790,800$             1,279,041$         278,510$              1,000,531           
Transfer To Debt Fund to Pay Revenue Bonds (400,900)             - (400,900) (233,858)             - (233,858) 
     Subtotal - Residence Halls and Summer Conferences 906,100               516,200               389,900               1,045,183           278,510 766,673               

Bookstore Rental and Commissions 60,000 - 60,000 34,808 666 34,142 
Food Service & Vending 95,000 403,700               (308,700) 563,641               450,959 112,682               
Employee/Student Housing Rental 214,200               272,800               (58,600) 23,846 8,122 15,724 
Edventures 342,000               352,300               (10,300) 109,161               111,604 (2,443) 
Winery - Tasting Room 300,000               345,000               (45,000) 178,821               180,142 (1,321) 
Family Enrichment Center 757,300               1,021,400           (264,100) 453,789               643,380 (189,591)             
Community Events 812,300               1,154,400           (342,100) 554,584               911,198 (356,614)             
Performing Arts Productions 340,000               345,900               (5,900) 217,869               304,482 (86,613)                
SBDC (Federal Grant Match Requirement) - 186,600 (186,600)             505 77,386 (76,881)                
Yavapai College Foundation 543,800               543,800 - 297,456 297,456 - 
Other Auxiliary Enterprises 180,600               149,100 31,500 204,096 148,153 55,943 
General Fund Transfer In 2,008,900           - 2,008,900 1,171,858           - 1,171,858 
Contingency - 100,000 (100,000) - - - 
Facilities & Administrative Allocation - 1,169,000 (1,169,000) - 681,917 (681,917)             

6,560,200$							 6,560,200$							 ‐$ 	 4,855,617$							 4,093,975$								 761,642$											

Comments:

Residence Halls and Summer Conferences revenues are above budget due to most of the spring 2024 room revenues being recorded.  
This will even out over the next few months.

The Budget currently has a surplus of $761,642.

Note	1:		Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

120 of 200



YAVAPAI	COUNTY	COMMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT

REPORT	OF	REVENUES	AND	EXPENDITURES

For	the	Seven	Months	Ended	January	31,	2024	‐	58.3%	of	the	Fiscal	Year	Complete

Fiscal	Year	2023‐2024

DEBT	SERVICE	FUND

Year‐to‐Date
Revenues

Total
Revenues Budget

Percent	of
Budget

REVENUES:
Investment Income 657$  657$  -$  100.0%
General Fund Transfer In 499,042 499,042              855,500           58.3%
Auxiliary Fund Transfer In 233,858 233,858              400,900           58.3%
Fund Balance Applied to Budget 1,283 1,283 2,200                 58.3%

TOTAL	REVENUES 734,840															 734,840													 1,258,600						 58.4%

DEBT	SERVICE	FUND
Year‐to‐Date
Expenditures

Encumbered
Obligations

Labor	
Encumbrances

Total
Expenditures	
and	Non‐Labor
Encumbrances Budget

Percent	of
	Actual	and	Non‐

Labor	
Encumbrances	
to	Budget

EXPENDITURES	(Note	1):
Revenue Refunding Bonds - 2021

Principal Payments -$  487,083$         -$  487,083$            835,000$         58.3%
Interest Payments 10,263                1,695                 - 11,958 20,500              58.3%

Revenue Bonds - 2013 - 
Principal Payments - 207,083 - 207,083 355,000           58.3%
Interest Payments 22,969                3,806 - 26,775 45,900              58.3%

Bank Fees 1,100 - - 1,100 2,200                 50.0%
TOTAL	EXPENDITURES 34,332														 699,667										 ‐	 733,999													 1,258,600						 58.3%

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 841$ 	 ‐$																		

COMMENTS:

Through the seventh month, 58.3% of budget has been committed compared to 58.4% of revenues received

Note	1:  Expenditures reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

121 of 200



����������	��
�������� ��������	������������������ ��	������ �!"!"�"��#$$����%��� ��!�&!"�"��'	
��())��%�*�� ��!�&!"�"��'	
��+�%�
�*�� ��!�&!"�"��,�-��+�%��.�� �!��!"�"/��.����� 0�122��34251�467�89�:�5�2�;:�<==���>?�@������::�:�42��(��	�� A�:�9���B1��92�2C�D1495�816���:�+�$������
��EFE������ �����������
�
GH�IJKLMNJO�LMPQNOJRSJM�OKTTMOO�UN�TSRMMR�SNL�JMTVNUTSW�MLKTSJUQN�JVSJ�XRMXSRMO�JVMP�YQR�MPXWQZPMNJ�OKTTMOOH�[H�IJKLMNJO�LMPQNOJRSJM�OKTTMOO�UN�JRSNOYMR\WM]MW�TQKROMO�SNL�SRM�XRMXSRML�JQ�OKTTMML�SJ�JRSNOYMR�UNOJUJKJUQNOH�Ĥ�IJKLMNJO�LMPQNOJRSJM�OKTTMOO�UN�_SOUT�ÒUWWO�TQKROMO�SNL�SRM�XRMXSRML�JQ�OKTTMML�UN�TQWWMaM\WM]MW�TQKROMOH�bH�cUYMWQNa�cMSRNMRO�VS]M�STTMOO�JQ�S�]SRUMJZ�QY�WMSRNUNa�QXXQRJKNUJUMOH�dH�IJKLMNJO�PSeUPUfM�JVMUR�S_UWUJZ�JQ�TQPXWMJM�TQKROMOg�XMROUOJ�JVRQKaV�XRQaRSP�QR�TQKROM�TQPXWMJUQNg�SNL�STVUM]M�JVMUR�MLKTSJUQNSW�aQSWOH�hH�IJKLMNJO�KNLMROJSNL�VQi�JQ�STTMOO�RMOQKRTMO�JVSJ�iUWW�RMLKTM�QKJ\QY\XQT̀MJ�TQOJO�SO�PKTV�SO�XQOOU_WMg�UNTWKLUNa�YUNSNTUSW�SULg�aRSNJOg�OTVQWSROVUXOg�SNL�QJVMR�OKXXQRJ�XRQaRSPOH�

jS]SXSU�kQWWMaM�MeUOJO�OQ�TQPPKNUJUMO�iUJVUN�jS]SXSU�kQKNJZ�VS]M�STTMOO�JQ�SNL�SRM�MlKUXXML�iUJV�JVM�ǸQiWMLaM�SNL�ÒUWWO�JQ�UPXRQ]M�lKSWUJZ�QY�WUYMH�mVM�kQWWMaM�iUWW�STVUM]M�JVMOM�RMOKWJO�SJ�S�TQOJ�JVM�nQSRL�_MWUM]MO�UO�oKOJUYUS_WMH����������E���#*��	�����jS]SXSU�kQWWMaM�]SWKMOg�OKXXQRJOg�SNL�SOOMOOMO�OJKLMNJ�OKTTMOO�SNL�STVUM]MPMNJH�mVM�kQWWMaMpO�OJRSJMaUTg�MLKTSJUQNSWg�SNL�QJVMR�XWSNO�OVSWW�_M�LMOUaNML�JQ�STVUM]M�JVM�YQWWQiUNa�qQ]MRNUNa�nQSRL�MeXMTJSJUQNO�YQR�OJKLMNJ�OKTTMOOr�
mVM�sRMOULMNJ�OVSWW�MOJS_WUOV�JVM�UNOJUJKJUQNSW�aQSWOg�QXMRSJUQNOg�SNL�STTQKNJS_UWUJZ�PMSOKRMO�JVSJ�JVM�kQWWMaM�iUWW�STVUM]M�JQ�PMMJ�JVM�aQSWO�YQR�OJKLMNJ�OKTTMOOH����������t���#����u���kQPPKNUJUMO�UN�jS]SXSU�kQKNJZ�SRM�OKXXQRJML�UN�JVMUR�MYYQRJO�JQ�WMSL�MTQNQPUT�LM]MWQXPMNJg�iUJV�MPXVSOUO�QN�aMNMRSJUNa�SNL�OKOJSUNUNa�MTQNQPUT�_SOM�oQ_OH����������v�����uu������jS]SXSU�kQKNJZ�RMOULMNJO�VS]M�STTMOO�JQ�OQTUSW�SNL�TKWJKRSW�QXXQRJKNUJUMOH�wxw�yz{{|}|�~��z����|����|���|�|����w��x�����������{��z����������������������z{���������z���z{����wx��wx�����yz����}������x����������yz{{|}| ~�}|�w�z���

122 of 200



����������	
��
����������
��������
���������	
����
��	��������
 ��������
 ����
 !����
"�#�$��%&'��(�!�)*
+#��$(���,�
-..$��
/0��1�$!�
��$�����
 2345645352


787
9:;;<=<
>?@:?@A@<BC
D<A?@<E<F
GH7HI8IJC
KLL@M@N;
M:OP
NA
QAAORHHPNENON@CO:;@MPBANACM:SHO:;@MPH78GJ78TJHC
9:OP?@=QA
U
I8IJVNENON@
9:;;<=< >N=<
I
:L
I
123 of 200



Current Status: Active  PolicyStat ID: 10631073  

Origination:  6/2/2021 Effective: 
 10/19/2021 Last Approved: 10/19/2021 Last 
Revised: 10/19/2021  

 Next Review:  1/31/2024  
 Owner:  Yvonne Sandoval: President's  

Office Executive Assistant Area: 
District Governing Board Policies References:     
 

101 College Priorities  

Yavapai College exists so communities within Yavapai County have access to and are equipped with the 
knowledge and skills to improve quality of life. The College will achieve these results at a cost the Board 
believes is justifiable.  

Priority 1:  Education  

Yavapai College values, supports, and assesses student success and achievement. The College's 
strategic, educational, and other plans shall be designed to achieve the following Governing Board 
expectations for student success:  

1. Students demonstrate success in career and technical education that prepares them for employment 
success.  

2. Students demonstrate success in transfer-level courses and are prepared to succeed at transfer 
institutions.  

3. Students demonstrate success in baccalaureate level courses and are prepared to succeed in 
undergraduate-level courses.  

4. Students demonstrate success in basic skills courses and are prepared to succeed in college-level 
courses.  

5. Lifelong Learners have access to a variety of learning opportunities.  

6. Students maximize their ability to complete courses, persist through program or course completion, and 
achieve their educational goals.  

7. Students understand how to access resources that will reduce out-of-pocket costs as much as possible, 
including financial aid, grants, scholarships, and other support programs.  

The President shall establish the institutional goals, operations, and accountability measures that the College 
will achieve to meet the goals for student success.  

Priority 2:  Economic  

Communities in Yavapai County are supported in their efforts to lead economic development, with emphasis 
on generating and sustaining economic base jobs.  

Priority 3:  Community  

Yavapai County residents have access to social and cultural opportunities.  

124 of 200

https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/author/?search_query=&terms=4711056
https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/author/?search_query=&terms=4711056
https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/category/?search_query=&terms=87874


101 College Priorities. Retrieved 6/1/2023. Official copy at http://yavapai.policystat.com/policy/10631073/. Copyright © 2023 Page 1 of 2 
Yavapai College 

 

Attachments  

No Attachments  

Approval Signatures  

Step Description  Approver  Date  

Yvonne Martinez-Sandoval: President's Office Executive Assistant  10 /26/2021  

125 of 200



101 College Priorities. Retrieved 6/1/2023. Official copy at http://yavapai.policystat.com/policy/10631073/. Copyright © 2023 Page 1 of 2 

126 of 200



����������	��
�������� ��������	������������� �!��"��	������ �#$#$�$��%&&����'��� ��#��#$�$��(	
��)**��'�+�� ��#��#$�$��(	
��,�'�
�+�� ��#��#$�$��-�.��,�'��/�� �#0�#$�$��!/����� 1�233��45362�578�9:�;�6�3�<;�=>>���?@�A������;;�;�53��)��	�� B�;�:���C2��:3�3D�E25:6�927���;�,�&������
��FGH�I�	�+�J�KL���,�
*��
�L������
�	�+�!L��"	����
�MN�OPQRSTU�SVWTQVX�YWZ�PW[\PQR�T]R�̂VXXR_R�T]QV̀_]�T]R�R[TYaXP[]bRWT�Vc�dQPTTRW�\VXPSPR[�T]YT�SXRYQXe�ZRcPWR�T]R�V̂XXR_Rf[�gYX̀R[N�hN�iQVZ̀SR�dQPTTRW�_VgRQWPW_�\VXPSPR[�d]PS]�YZZQR[[�T]R�aQVYZR[T�XRgRX[�Vc�YXX�VQ_YWPjYTPVWYX�ZRSP[PVW[�YWZ�[PT̀YTPVW[N�kN�lWẀYXXe�Y\\QVgR�T]R�[TQYTR_PS�ZPQRSTPVW�Vc�T]R�̂VXXR_RN�mN�n[R�T]R�Ro\RQTP[R�Vc�PWZPgPZ̀YX�bRbaRQ[�TV�RW]YWSR�T]R�YaPXPTe�Vc�T]R�pVYQZ�Y[�Y�aVZeU�QYT]RQ�T]YW�TV�[̀a[TPT̀TR�]P[q]RQ�PWZPgPZ̀YX�gYX̀R[�cVQ�T]R�_QV̀\f[�gYX̀R[N�rN�sW[̀QR�T]R�SVWTPẀYX�ZRgRXV\bRWT�Vc�_VgRQWYWSR�SY\YaPXPTeU�PWSX̀ZPW_�\RQPVZPS�pVYQZ�TQYPWPW_[�YWZ�ZP[S̀[[PVW[�Vc�\QVSR[[�Pb\QVgRbRWTN�tN�soRQSP[R�ỲT]VQPTe�VgRQ�T]R�̂VXXR_R�YWZ�T]R�iQR[PZRWT�VWXe�Y[�T]Re�V\RQYTR�dPT]�VWR�gVPSR�Y[�Y�d]VXRN�uWZPgPZ̀YX�pVYQZ�bRbaRQ[�dPXX�YaPZR�ae�YWZ�̀\]VXZ�bYvVQPTe�ZRSP[PVW[�Vc�T]R�pVYQZN�wN�xRRy�TV�QR\QR[RWT�T]R�VdWRQ[]P\�Y[�Y�d]VXR�QYT]RQ�T]YW�T]R�\RV\XR�Vc�YW�PWZPgPZ̀YX�ZP[TQPSTN��z]RQRcVQRU�pVYQZ�ZP[S̀[[PVW[�dPXX�cVS̀[�VW�T]R�dRXcYQR�TV�T]R�RWTPQR�{YgY\YP�̂VXXR_R�OP[TQPSTN�|N�}VQy�SYQRc̀XXe�dPT]�T]R�\̀aXPS�TV�RW[̀QR�̀[R�Vc�[TYWZYQZ�̂VXXR_R�\QVSRZ̀QR[�cVQ�]YWZXPW_�SVbb̀ WPTe�SVb\XYPWT[�VQ�_QPRgYWSR[N��}]RW�PWZPgPZ̀YX�pVYQZ�bRbaRQ[�QRSRPgR�SVb\XYPWT[�cQVb�bRbaRQ[�Vc�T]RPQ�SVW[TPT̀RWSeU�T]R�cVXXVdPW_�\QVSR[[�[]YXX�aR�cVXXVdRZ~�YN�z]R�pVYQZ�bRbaRQ�dPXX�RWSV̀QY_R�T]R�PWZPgPZ̀YX�[��TV�SVWTYST�YW�Y\\QV\QPYTR�̂VXXR_R�[TYcc�bRbaRQU�YWZ�T]R�pVYQZ�bRbaRQ�dPXX�YX[V�SVWTYST�T]R�iQR[PZRWTN��z]R�iQR[PZRWT�dPXX�XRT�T]R�pVYQZ�bRbaRQ�yWVd�d]RW�T]R�̂VXXR_R�\QVSR[[R[�]YgR�aRRW�cVXXVdRZ�YWZ�T]R�SVb\XYPWT�YZZQR[[RZN��N�l\\QVgR�WYbR[�cVQ�ZP[TQPST�QRYX�\QV\RQTeU�Y[�QRSVbbRWZRZ�ae�T]R�iQR[PZRWTN�M�N�z]R�gRQ[PVW�Vc�T]R�\VXPSPR[�bV[T�QRSRWTXe�YZV\TRZ�ae�T]R�pVYQZ�QR\XYSR�YWZ�[̀\RQ[RZR�YXX�\QPVQ�gRQ[PVW[�YWZ�P[�T]R�VWXe�gRQ[PVW�T]YT�P[�aPWZPW_�VW�T]R�̂VXXR_RN�MMN�uW�YZZPTPVW�TV�YWe�VT]RQ�QR�̀PQRbRWT[�̀WZRQ�T]R��\RW��RRTPW_��Yd�cVQ�YWe�Te\R�Vc�SVbb̀ WPSYTPVW[�aRTdRRW�T]R�pVYQZ�YWZ�T]R�̂VXXR_R�YZbPWP[TQYTPVWU�pVYQZ�bRbaRQ[�dPXX�SVb\Xe�dPT]�T]R�cVXXVdPW_�RXRSTQVWPS�SVbb̀ WPSYTPVW�ZPQRSTPgR[�TV�\QVTRST�T]R�pVYQZ�cQVb�PWYZgRQTRWT�gPVXYTPVW[�Vc�T]R��\RW��RRTPW_�

OP[TQPST��VgRQWPW_�pVYQZ�bRbaRQ[�[]YXX�V\RQYTR�PW�dYe[�bPWZc̀X�Vc�T]R�pVYQZf[�SPgPS�TQ̀[TRR�VaXP_YTPVW�TV�YXX�QR[PZRWT[�Vc�T]R�SV̀WTe�YWZ�PT[�XYdc̀X�VaXP_YTPVW[�PW�SVb\XPYWSR�dPT]�zPTXR�MrU�̂]Y\TRQ�Mh�̂Vbb̀ WPTe�̂VXXR_R[�Vc�T]R�lQPjVWY��RgP[RZ�xTYT̀TR[�YWZ�YXX�VT]RQ�Y\\XPSYaXR�cRZRQYX�YWZ�[TYTR�[TYT̀TR[�YWZ�QR_̀XYTPVW[N�

������������������������������������������������������������� ¡¢¡£�£����¤¤�¥����¥��¦����§���̈¡¡¦�����������¥¦�����¥��¡����¥¦¡¢� ©ª�«¬¡����¦���§��®�£�£��̄������������� °����¢��¤�£
127 of 200



�����������	
�����	�������������������	������������������������
�������������������������������������������������������	����	
�����	��	�����	����������������	������������	����������������	���������	
����������	��
������	����	
�������������	
�����	���������������	�������������������������������������������
������	������	���	
�������������	����	
���������������
����	����������	�������������	�������	�����
�����������������	����	
��������������������	����	
�����	���	���� ��
�����������������������	
�����	������������	��	
������	�������������������	����!�
��	������������
������	�����������������	����	
�����	��	���	
��������������	��������	
�����	���	��	
�����������������

���� �	�����������������������	��	
�
����������	�����
�����	
�����	������������������	������������������������������	�����������������	
�����	 �	����������������	��� ����
����������	�����	
�������������
������������	����	
�����	���	���� ��
������������������������������
������	�������������������	���������������������������������������	�������������	
����������������
����	
���������������
����	����������	�������������	���������������������������������	����
������	���������
��� ���������	
�����	����
�
����������������������� ����������������	
�����	�	���	
����������"���������	�����

	����
������������������#$$%&'()*$+�,��-�����������#../01%2�345*%$6/)+�3$).�7)+&/4.$40*� #../01)/� 7%$)�8!�����9�	����:;<��
�!����=	���
���>��?������@������!��-��������� ABCDECDBDA�
FGH�IJKLM�NOPQOL�ROSTJUSVQVWVXVOS�KUM�YQWVZKXVJUS[�ROXLVO\OM�]̂_̂̀ G̀F[�YaaVbVKW�bJTc�KX�dXXTê̂cK\KTKV[TJWVbcSXKX[bJP̂TJWVbĉ_G]fgGhî[�jJTcLVZdX�k�̀G̀F�lK\KTKV�jJWWOZO mKZO�̀�Ja�̀

128 of 200



Current Status: Active  PolicyStat ID: 10648095  

Origination:  6/2/2021 Effective: 
 10/19/2021 Last Approved: 10/19/2021 Last 
Revised: 10/19/2021  

 Next Review:  1/31/2024  
 Owner:  Yvonne Sandoval: President's  

Office Executive Assistant Area: 
 District Governing Board Policies References:  

307 Board Member Responsibilities and 
Obligations  

District Governing Board members shall operate in ways mindful of the Board’s civic trustee obligation to all 
residents of the county and its lawful obligations in compliance with Title 15, Chapter 12 Community Colleges 
of the Arizona Revised Statutes and all other applicable federal and state statutes and regulations.  

1. Direct, control and inspire the College through the establishment of written policies that clearly define 
the College’s values.  

2. Produce written governing policies which address the broadest levels of all organizational decisions and 
situations.  

3. Annually approve the strategic direction of the College.  

4. Use the expertise of individual members to enhance the ability of the Board as a body, rather than to 
substitute his/her individual values for the group’s values.  

5. Ensure the continual development of governance capability, including periodic Board trainings and 
discussions of process improvement.  

6. Exercise authority over the College and the President only as they operate with one voice as a whole. 
Individual Board members will abide by and uphold majority decisions of the Board.  

7. Seek to represent the ownership as a whole rather than the people of an individual district.  Therefore, 
Board discussions will focus on the welfare to the entire Yavapai College District.  

8. Work carefully with the public to ensure use of standard College procedures for handling community 
complaints or grievances.  When individual Board members receive complaints from members of their 
constituency, the following process shall be followed:  

a. The Board member will encourage the individual(s) to contact an appropriate College staff member, 
and the Board member will also contact the President.  The President will let the Board member 
know when the College processes have been followed and the complaint addressed.  

9. Approve names for district real property, as recommended by the President.  

10. The version of the policies most recently adopted by the Board replace and supersede all prior versions 
and is the only version that is binding on the College.  

11. In addition to any other requirements under the Open Meeting Law for any type of communications 
between the Board and the College administration, Board members will comply with the following 
electronic communication directives to protect the Board from inadvertent violations of the Open 
Meeting  

129 of 200

https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/author/?search_query=&terms=4711056
https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/author/?search_query=&terms=4711056
https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/category/?search_query=&terms=87874


307 Board Member Responsibilities and Obligations. Retrieved 6/1/2023. Official copy at http://yavapai.policystat.com/policy/ Page 
1 of 2 10648095/. Copyright © 2023 Yavapai College 

Law:  

a. Board members may not use electronic messages of any kind (email, text messages etc.) to 
communicate with another Board member or members about any matter than may foreseeably 
come before the Board at a future date for Board action  

b. Board members may use electronic messages to communicate with designated District 
Governing Board staff regarding College or Board business, including requests for factual 
information related to the  
College or Board, as long as no other Board members are copied on such message  

c. Board members may not forward electronic messages that received from College administration 
to any other Board member, regardless of whether the Board member forwarding the message 
adds a personal comment to the forwarded message or not  

d. Board members may use an electronic message to communicate a request to the Board 
Chairperson that a matter be placed on a future Board meeting agenda if no other Board 
members are copied on such messages  

e. College administration may use electronic messages to communicate with a quorum of the 
Board about College and Board business, including requests for factual information, as long as 
the messages from administration blind copy the Board members and do not communicate the 
opinion of any Board member regarding the subject matter(s) addressed in the message.  

  

Attachments  
No Attachments  

Approval Signatures  

Step Description  Approver  Date  
 

 Yvonne Martinez-Sandoval: President's Office Executive Assistant  10/29/2021  

130 of 200



307 Board Member Responsibilities and Obligations. Retrieved 6/1/2023. Official copy at http://yavapai.policystat.com/policy/ Page 
2 of 2 10648095/. Copyright © 2023 Yavapai College 

131 of 200



����������	��
�������� ��������	��������������� ��!��	������ �"#"#�#��$%%����&��� ��"�'"#�#��(	
��)**��&�+�� ��"�'"#�#��(	
��,�&�
�+�� ��"�'"#�#��-�.��,�&��/�� �"0�"#�#�� /����� 1�233��45362�578�9:�;�6�3�<;�=>>���?@�A������;;�;�53��)��	�� B�;�:���C2��:3�3D�E25:6�927���;�,�%������
��FGH�I�	�+�J�&�����!�K���
�L�������MN�OPQRSTU�VWXWYZ�TSQ[\T�Q[SZ�SZ�WZQ\TZS]�̂T\Y__P̂SQWYZ̀�aN�bWV\TXWQc�WZ�VW\R̂ YWZQX̀�dN�e\SU\TX[Ŵ�fY_PX\U�YZ�Q[\�fPQPT\g�U\TWV\U�fTYh�SZ�PZU\TXQSZUWZi�Yf�Q[\�̂SXQ�SZU�̂T\X\ZQ̀�jN�k]\ST�UWXQWZ_QWYZ�Yf�lYSTU�SZU�mQSff�TY]\X̀�nN�kY]]\_QWV\�TSQ[\T�Q[SZ�WZUWVWUPS]�U\_WXWYZX̀�SZU�oN�pZQ\ZU\U�]YZiqQ\Th�Wĥ S_QX�YZ�Q[\�_YhhPZWQW\Xg�ZYQ�YZ�Q[\�SUhWZWXQTSQWV\�YT�̂TYiTShhSQW_�h\SZX�Yf�SQQSWZWZi�Q[YX\�\ff\_QXN�)��	�rs���
�tY�uQQS_[h\ZQX�)**��&	����!�	����
����*���
���*����� )**��&��� �	���vVYZZ\�wSTQWZ\xqmSZUYVS]y�zT\XWU\ZQ{X�OffW_\�|}\_PQWV\�uXXWXQSZQ� M~�a��a~aM�

�[\�lYSTU�SX̂WT\X�QY�iYV\TZ�vSVŜSW�kY]]\i\�̂TYS_QWV\]cN��[\�lYSTU�X[S]]�XQSc�SU\�PSQ\]c�WZfYTh\U��c�WZ_YT̂YTSQWZi�T\̂YTQX�fTYh�Q[\�zT\XWU\ZQ�YZ�XQTSQ\iW_�WXXP\X�WZ�lYSTU�h\\QWZiXN���[\�lYSTU�X[S]]�\ZiSi\�WZ�XQTSQ\iW_�Q[WZ�WZi�RWQ[�S�XQc]\�R[W_[�\ĥ [SXWx\Xy�

����������������������������������������������� �¡�¡���¢££��������¤�����¥��¤¦������¤���¤������������§�¤������ ��̈©�̈���ª�¤����¥��«�¡�¡��¬���¤���ª������ ���� ��£� 
132 of 200



305 Board Governing Focus & Style. Retrieved 6/1/2023. Official copy at http://yavapai.policystat.com/policy/10647545/. Page 1 of 
1Copyright © 2023 Yavapai College 

Current Status:   Active  PolicyStat ID:   10647545   

Origination:  6 /2/2021  
Effective:  /19/2021  10 
Last Approved:  10 /19/2021  
Last Revised:  10 /19/2021  
Next Review:  1 /31/2024  
Owner:  Yvonne Sandoval: President's   

  Office Executive Assistant 
Area:    District Governing Board Policies 
References:  

305  Board Governing Focus & Style  

1 .  
Outward vision rather than an internal preoccupation; however, the President will keep the board informed 
of the college’s work. (refer to Policy 202). 

.  2 Diversity in viewpoints;  

3 .  Leadership focused on the future, derived from an understanding of the past and present;  

.  4 Clear distinction of Board and Staff roles;  

5 .  Collective rather than individual decisions; and  

6 .  Intended long-term impacts on the communities, not on the administrative or programmatic means of  
attaining those effects.  

Attachments  

No Attachments  

Approval Signatures  

Step Description  Approver  Date  

Yvonne Martinez-Sandoval: President's Office Executive Assistant  10 /29/2021  

The Board aspires to govern Yavapai College proactively. The Board shall stay adequately informed by  
incorporating reports from the President on strategic issues in Board meetings.     The Board shall engage in  
strategic thinking with a style which emphasizes:  

133 of 200

https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/author/?search_query=&terms=4711056
https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/author/?search_query=&terms=4711056
https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/author/?search_query=&terms=4711056
https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/author/?search_query=&terms=4711056
https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/category/?search_query=&terms=87874
https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/category/?search_query=&terms=87874


����������	��
�������� ��������	������������������ ��	������ �!"!"�"��#$$����%��� ��!"&!"�"��'	
��())��%�*�� ��!"&!"�"��'	
��+�%�
�*�� ��!�&!"�"��,�-��+�%��.�� �!/�!"�"���.����� 0�122��34251�467�89�:�5�2�;:�<==���>?�@������::�:�42��(��	�� A�:�9���B1��92�2C�D1495�816���:�+�$������
��EFG�H�	�*�I�JK�����*���$����*����L�#�M��
�NO�PQRSTUV�WXSQ�YZ[V\R�]̂ _ZV̀VT�aY[UYX\YQV�Y[�QVVaVa�ZS�bS̀VTQ�]YẐ�VcUV\\VQUVO�dY[UYX\YQV�]Y\\�_XX\e�ZS�f_ZZVT[�[WÛ�_[�_gYaYQb�ge�hS_Ta�iS\YUej�TV[XVUZ�SR�TS\V[j�_gYaYQb�ge�ẐV�f_kSTYZel[�aVUY[YSQ[�_Qa�_âVTVQUV�ZS�VẐYU_\�XT_UZYUV[O�mO�ǹSYa�_Qe�[YZW_ZYSQ�Ẑ_Z�f_e�USQ[ZYZWZV�_�USQR\YUZ�SR�YQZVTV[Z�ST�ẐV�_XXV_T_QUV�SR�_�USQR\YUZ�SR�YQZVTV[Z�]YẐ�TV[XVUZ�ZS�RYaWUY_Te�TV[XSQ[YgY\YZe�ZS�ẐV�oS\\VbVl[�S]QVT[̂YXO�nQe�pWV[ZYSQ�_[�ZS�]̂ VẐVT�_�XSZVQZY_\�USQR\YUZ�SR�YQZVTV[Z�VcY[Z[�[̂_\\�gV�TVRVTTVa�ZS�\Vb_\�USWQ[V\�RST�ẐV�hS_TaO�qO�rSZ�USQaWUZ�XTỲ_ZV�gW[YQV[[�ST�[V\RsaV_\YQb�ST�XTS̀YaV�XVT[SQ_\�[VT̀YUV[�gVZ]VVQ�_Qe�hS_Ta�fVfgVTt[u�_Qa�ẐV�STb_QYv_ZYSQ�VcUVXZ�_[�_\\S]Va�ge�\_]j�ZS�VQ[WTV�SXVQQV[[j�USfXVZYZỲV�SXXSTZWQYZej�_Qa�VpW_\�_UUV[[�ZS�YQRSTf_ZYSQO�wO�rSZ�W[V�ẐVYT�XS[YZYSQ[�ZS�SgZ_YQ�VfX\SefVQZ�YQ�ẐV�oS\\VbV�RST�ẐVf[V\̀V[j�R_fY\e�fVfgVT[�ST�U\S[V�_[[SUY_ZV[O�_O�x̂SW\a�_�hS_Ta�fVfgVT�ST�ẐV�hS_Ta�fVfgVTl[�[XSW[V�gV�USQ[YaVTVa�RST�VfX\SefVQZ�ge�ẐV�oS\\VbVj�ẐV�hS_Ta�fVfgVT�fW[Z�]YẐaT_]�RTSf�_Qe�aV\YgVT_ZYSQ[�_Qa�̀SZYQb�SQ�_Qe�f_ZZVT�Ẑ_Z�XVTZ_YQ[�ZS�[WÛ�VfX\SefVQZ�USQ[YaVT_ZYSQ�_Qa�[̂_\\�̂_̀V�QS�_UUV[[�ZS�_XX\YU_g\V�hS_Ta�YQRSTf_ZYSQO��yR�_�hS_Ta�fVfgVT�ST�ẐV�hS_Ta�fVfgVTl[�[XSW[V�_UUVXZ[�VfX\SefVQZ�RTSf�ẐV�oS\\VbVj�ẐV�hS_Ta�fVfgVT�fW[Z�TV[YbQ�̂Y[ẑVT�hS_Ta�XS[YZYSQ�YQ�_UUSTa_QUV�]YẐ�n{�[Z_ZWZVO�|O�}VRT_YQ�RTSf�W[YQb�ẐVYT�hS_Ta�XS[YZYSQ�RST�XVT[SQ_\�ST�X_TZY[_Q�b_YQj�Z_~V�QS�XTỲ_ZV�ST�YQaỲYaW_\�_UZYSQ�Ẑ_Z�]Y\\�USfXTSfY[V�ẐV�hS_Ta�ST�_afYQY[ZT_ZYSQj�_Qa�]Y\\�TV[XVUZ�ẐV�USQRYaVQZY_\YZe�SR�YQRSTf_ZYSQ�Ẑ_Z�Y[�XTỲY\VbVa�RTSf�aY[U\S[WTV�WQaVT�_XX\YU_g\V�\_]O�

�̂V�hS_Ta�VcXVUZ[�SR�YZ[V\Rj�_[�_�]̂ S\V�_Qa�SR�YZ[�YQaỲYaW_\�fVfgVT[j�VẐYU_\�_Qa�XTSRV[[YSQ_\�USQaWUZO��̂Y[�USffYZfVQZ�YQU\WaV[�XTSXVT�W[V�SR�_WẐSTYZe�_Qa�_XXTSXTY_ZV�aVUSTWf�YQ�bTSWX�_Qa�YQaỲYaW_\�gV̂_̀YST�]̂ VQ�_UZYQb�_[�hS_Ta�fVfgVT[O���̂V�hS_Ta�[̂_\\��

� V̂Q�̀SZYQb�SQ�_�f_ZZVT�WQaVT�USQ[YaVT_ZYSQ�Ẑ_Z�YQ̀S\̀V[�ST�_XXV_T[�ZS�YQ̀S\̀V�_�USQR\YUZ�SR�YQZVTV[Zj�ẐV�fVfgVT�[̂_\\�aVU\_TV�ẐV�USQR\YUZ�_Z�ẐV�gVbYQQYQb�SR�aY[UW[[YSQ�SQ�_Q�Y[[WV�_Qa�]Y\\�QSZ�̀SZV�SQj�X_TZYUYX_ZV�YQ�aY[UW[[YSQ�TVb_TaYQbj�ST�_ZZVfXZ�ZS�YQR\WVQUV�̀SZV[�SQ�_Qe�f_ZZVT�TV\_ZVa�ZS�ẐV�USQR\YUZO���S�_[[Y[Z�YQ�YaVQZYReYQb�_Qe�XSZVQZY_\�USQR\YUZ[j�V_Û�hS_Ta�fVfgVT�[̂_\\�USfX\VZV�_Qa�[WgfYZ�_�oSQR\YUZ�SR�yQZVTV[Z�RSTfj�YQ�_�RSTf_Z�aVZVTfYQVa�ge�ẐV�hS_Taj�_Z�\V_[Z�SQV�ZYfV�V_Û�eV_TO�xWÛ�RSTf�[̂_\\�TVpWYTV�ẐV�[WgfY[[YSQ�ge�ẐV�hS_Ta�fVfgVT�SR�YQRSTf_ZYSQ�TV\_ZYQb�ZS�_Qe�XSZVQZY_\�USQR\YUZ[�SR�YQZVTV[Z�ST�[̂_\\�_RRYTf�Ẑ_Z�QS�[WÛ�XSZVQZY_\�USQR\YUZ�UWTTVQZ\e�VcY[Z[O����������������������������������������������������������������������� ���¡¢�������¡£��¢���¡���¡� ��¢���������¡� ��¢����¤¥��������¡¢��¦���§������̈���¡�����  �¦� ©�¦��������
134 of 200



����������	
��
����������
��������
���������	
����
��	��������
 ��������
 ����
 !����
"�#�$��%&'��(�!�)*
+#��$(���,�
-..$��
/0��1�$!�
��$�����
 2345645352


789
:;<=>
?@AB@=
C;>@
;D
C;E>FGH
I
JHKLGMN
O@H=L@P@>
9QRQS8S7N
TDDLGL<U
G;VW
<H
KHHVXQQW<P<V<LNV;ULGWMH<HNG;AQV;ULGWQR89YZ988QN
C;VW=L[KH
\
S8S7
]<P<V<L
C;UU@[@ <̂[@
S
;D
S
135 of 200



Current Status: Active  PolicyStat ID: 10647600  

Origination:  6/2/2021 Effective: 
 10/29/2021 Last Approved: 10/29/2021 Last 
Revised: 10/19/2021  

 Next Review:  1/31/2024  
 Owner:  Yvonne Sandoval: President's  

Office Executive Assistant Area: 
District Governing Board Policies References:                                                                                                                         

                   
306 Board Member Code of Conduct & Ethics  

The Board expects of itself, as a whole and of its individual members, ethical and professional conduct. This 
commitment includes proper use of authority and appropriate decorum in group and individual behavior when 
acting as Board members.  The Board shall:  

1. Enforce upon itself whatever discipline is needed to govern with excellence. Discipline will apply to 
matters such as abiding by Board Policy, respect of roles, abiding by the majority’s decisions and 
adherence to ethical practices.  

2. Avoid any situation that may constitute a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest 
with respect to fiduciary responsibility to the College’s ownership. Any question as to whether a potential 
conflict of interest exists shall be referred to legal counsel for the Board.  

3. Not conduct private business or self-dealing or provide personal services between any Board 
member(s) and the organization except as allowed by law, to ensure openness, competitive opportunity, 
and equal access to information.  

4. Not use their positions to obtain employment in the College for themselves, family members or close 
associates.  

a. Should a Board member or the Board member’s spouse be considered for employment by the 
College, the Board member must withdraw from any deliberations and voting on any matter that 
pertains to such employment consideration and shall have no access to applicable Board 
information.  If a Board member or the Board member’s spouse accepts employment from the 
College, the Board member must resign his/her Board position in accordance with AZ statute.  

5. Refrain from using their Board position for personal or partisan gain, take no private or individual action 
that will compromise the Board or administration, and will respect the confidentiality of information that is 
privileged from disclosure under applicable law.  

When voting on a matter under consideration that involves or appears to involve a conflict of interest, the 
member shall declare the conflict at the beginning of discussion on an issue and will not vote on, participate 
in discussion regarding, or attempt to influence votes on any matter related to the conflict.  Every January, or 
at the start of a Board member term, to assist in identifying any potential conflicts, each Board member shall 
complete and submit a Conflict of Interest form to be turned in to the Board Attorney for presentation to the 
Board in a public meeting. Such form shall require the submission by the Board member of information 
relating to any potential conflicts of interest or shall affirm that no such potential conflict currently exists.  

136 of 200

https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/author/?search_query=&terms=4711056
https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/author/?search_query=&terms=4711056
https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/category/?search_query=&terms=87874


306 Board Member Code of Conduct & Ethics. Retrieved 6/1/2023. Official copy at http://yavapai.policystat.com/policy/ Page 1 of 2 
10647600/. Copyright © 2023 Yavapai College 

306 Board Member Code of Conduct & Ethics. Retrieved 6/1/2023. Official copy at http://yavapai.policystat.com/policy/ Page 2 of 2 
10647600/. Copyright © 2023 Yavapai College 

Attachments  

No Attachments  

Approval Signatures  

Step Description  Approver  Date  

Yvonne Martinez-Sandoval: President's Office Executive Assistant  10 /29/2021  

137 of 200



����������	��
�������� ��������	��������������� ��!��	������ �"�"�����#$$����%��� ��"�&"�����'	
��())��%�*�� ��"�&"�����'	
��+�%�
�*�� ��"�&"�����,�-��+�%��.�� �"/�"����� .����� 0�122��34251�467�89�:�5�2�;:�<==���>?�@������::�:�42��(��	�� A�:�9���B1��92�2C�D1495�816���:�+�$������
��EFG�����!	��������	�*�(������	H�������$����
�*����IJ�KLM�NOPQRST�TOUM�OVVWXWPU�XOYYMXZWOY�ZO�ZLM�O[MQPZWOYPU�OQ\PYW]PZWOŶ�WZT�PXLWM_M̀ MYZT̂�PYR�XOYRaXZ�TLPUU�bM�ZLQOa\L�ZLM�cOUUM\M�dQMTWRMYZJ�eJ�fYUg�OVVWXWPUUg�[PTTMR�̀OZWOYT�OV�ZLM�NOPQR�TLPUU�bM�bWYRWY\�OY�ZLM�dQMTWRMYZJ�hXXOQRWY\Uĝ�RMXWTWOYT�OQ�WYTZQaXZWOYT�OV�WYRW_WRaPU�NOPQR�̀M̀ bMQT̂�OVVWXMQT�OQ�XÒ ẀZZMMT�TLPUU�YOZ�bM�bWYRWY\�OY�ZLM�dQMTWRMYZ�MiXM[Z�WY�QPQM�WYTZPYXMT�jLMY�ZLM�NOPQR�LPT�T[MXWVWXPUUg�PaZLOQW]MR�TaXL�MiMQXWTM�OV�PaZLOQWZgJ�kJ�KLM�dQMTWRMYZ�TLPUU�bM�ZLM�NOPQRST�OYUg�UWYl�ZO�O[MQPZWOYPU�PXLWM_M̀ MYZ�PYR�XOYRaXẐ�TO�ZLPZ�PUU�PaZLOQWZg�PYR�PXXOaYZPbWUWZg�OV�TZPVV̂�PT�VPQ�PT�ZLM�NOPQR�WT�XOYXMQYMR̂�TLPUU�bM�XOYTWRMQMR�ZLM�PaZLOQWZg�PYR�PXXOaYZPbWUWZg�OV�ZLM�dQMTWRMYZJ��hXXOQRWY\Uĝ�PJ�daQTaPYZ�ZO�hmn�IopIqqqrhsrts�u�rNsrqŝ�ZLM�NOPQR�LMQMbg�RMUM\PZMT�ZO�ZLM�cOUUM\M�dQMTWRMYZ�PUU�OV�WZT�PaZLOQWZg�ZO�M̀ [UOĝ�T[MXWVWXPUUĝ�WZ�RMUM\PZMT�PUU�OV�WZT�PaZLOQWZg�ZO�MYZMQ�WYZÔ�P̀ MYR̂�OQ�ZMQ̀WYPZM�PUU�M̀ [UOgMM�XOYZQPXZT�OY�bMLPUV�OV�ZLM�cOUUM\M̂�jWZLOaZ�ZLM�YMMR�VOQ�ZLM�NOPQR�ZO�P[[QO_M�TaXL�PXZWOYT�bMVOQM�ZLMg�PQM�MVVMXZW_M̂�MiXM[Z�VOQ�PYg�PXZWOYT�ZPlMY�jWZL�QM\PQR�ZO�P�XOYZQPXZ�OV�M̀ [UOg̀ MYZ�VOQ�ZLM�[OTWZWOY�OV�cOUUM\M�dQMTWRMYZJ��KLM�cOUUM\M�dQMTWRMYZ�̀Pg�RMTW\YPZM�OZLMQT�TMQ_WY\�aYRMQ�ZLM�dQMTWRMYZ�ZO�PTTWTZ�jWZL�ZLM�RaZgv�LOjM_MQ̂�ZLM�cOUUM\M�dQMTWRMYZ�TLPUU�XOYZWYaM�ZO�bM�QMT[OYTWbUM�ZO�ZLM�NOPQR�VOQ�ZLM�TPZWTVPXZOQg�MiMXaZWOY�OV�ZLM�RMUM\PZMR�RaZgJ�KLWT�RMUM\PZWOY�̀Pg�bM�QMTXWYRMR�WY�jLOUM�OQ�WY�[PQZ�PZ�PYg�ZẀM�bg�ZLM�NOPQRJ�bJ�KLM�NOPQR�TLPUU�YOZ�M_PUaPZM̂�MWZLMQ�VOQ̀PUUg�OQ�WYVOQ̀PUUĝ�PYg�TZPVV�OZLMQ�ZLPY�ZLM�dQMTWRMYZJ�IJ�wY�ZLM�XPTM�OV�NOPQR�̀M̀ bMQT�OQ�NOPQR�XÒ ẀZZMMT�QMxaMTZWY\�WYVOQ̀PZWOY�OQ�PTTWTZPYXM�jWZLOaZ�PaZLOQW]PZWOŶ�ZLM�dQMTWRMYZ�TLPUU�QMVaTM�TaXL�QMxaMTZT�ZLPZ�QMxaWQM̂�WY�ZLM�dQMTWRMYZST�O[WYWOŶ�P�̀PZMQWPU�P̀ OaYZ�OV�TZPVV�ZẀM�OQ�VaYRT�OQ�PQM�RWTQa[ZW_MJ�eJ�KLM�NOPQR�TLPUU�WYTZQaXZ�ZLM�dQMTWRMYZ�ZLQOa\L�jQWZZMY�[OUWXWMT�jLWXL�[QMTXQWbM�ZLM�OQ\PYW]PZWOYPU�[QWOQWZWMT�ZO�bM�PXLWM_MR̂�PUUOjWY\�ZLM�dQMTWRMYZ�ZO�aTM�P�QMPTOYPbUM�WYZMQ[QMZPZWOY�OV�ZLMTM�[OUWXWMTJ��hXXOQRWY\Uĝ�PJ�NOPQR�dQWOQWZWMTpKLM�NOPQR�TLPUU�RM_MUO[�[OUWXWMT�WYTZQaXZWY\�ZLM�dQMTWRMYZ�ZO�PXLWM_M�XMQZPWY�QMTaUZT�VOQ�XMQZPWY�QMXW[WMYZT�PZ�P�T[MXWVWMR�XOTZJ��KLMTM�[OUWXWMT�TLPUU�bM�RM_MUO[MR�TgTZM̀ PZWXPUUg�VQÒ �ZLM�bQOPRMTẐ�̀OTZ�\MYMQPU�UM_MU�ZO�̀OQM�RMVWYMR�UM_MUT̂�PYR�TLPUU�bM�XPUUMR�NOPQR�dQWOQWZWMTJ�bJ�dQMTWRMYZWPU�mOUMTp�KLM�NOPQR�TLPUU�RM_MUO[�[OUWXWMT�jLWXL�RMVWYM�ZLM�UPZWZaRM�ZLM�dQMTWRMYZ�̀Pg�MiMQXWTM�WY�XLOOTWY\�P[[QO[QWPZM�OQ\PYW]PZWOYPU�̀MPYTJ��KLMTM�[OUWXWMT�TLPUU�bM�RM_MUO[MR�TgTZM̀ PZWXPUUg�VQÒ �ZLM�bQOPRMTẐ�̀OTZ�\MYMQPU�UM_MU�ZO�̀OQM�RMVWYMR�UM_MUT̂�PYR�ZLMg�TLPUU�bM�XPUUMR�dQMTWRMYZWPU�mOUMT�[OUWXWMTJ�yz{�|}~}������������������������~���������}���}�����}���}�}����{��z�����������~��������������������������~��������������~����{z�y�z{�����������������z�������������~~}�} ���}�{�����
138 of 200



���������	�
���������������
������
��
���
����������
�������������
���������������
�����������
�����������������������������
�����
��������������
������
��������������	����
����
������������
��
��������������
��
���
����������
������
�����
�������
���������
���
������������������
����
����
�	���������������
�����������
������������������������������	���������
����� �������
���
�����������
�����
�������������	����������
�����
�	������
���������������	�������������������������
�����	�
��
����
������
����	
�������������
��������
�����
���������
��������������������������������!""#$%&'(")�*�����
�������!++,-.#/�012(#"3,')�0"'+�4')$,1+"1-(� !++,-.',� 4#"'�5�����6
�����78
����
�9��������:��;�����<=������������
��� >?@AB@A?A>�

CDE�FGHGIJKLMN�KM�JNO�PQQMRNKJSLHLKT�MU�VWGXLOGNKY�ZGKWLG[GO�\]E]̂D̂_Y�̀UULQLJH�QMaT�JK�bKKac]]TJ[JaJLYaMHLQTXKJKYQMd]aMHLQT]ED\CeDÊ]Y�fMaTWLIbK�g�̂D̂_�hJ[JaJL�fMHHGIG VJIG�̂�MU�̂
139 of 200



Current Status: Active  PolicyStat ID: 10648012  

Origination:  6/2/2021 Effective: 
 10/29/2021 Last Approved: 10/29/2021 Last 
Revised: 10/29/2021  

 Next Review:  1/31/2024  
 Owner:  Yvonne Sandoval: President's  

Office Executive Assistant Area: 
 District Governing Board Policies References:  

401 Delegation to and Accountability of President  
1. The Board’s sole official connection to the operational organization, its achievements, and conduct shall 

be through the College President.  

2. Only officially passed motions of the Board shall be binding on the President. Accordingly, decisions or 
instructions of individual Board members, officers or committees shall not be binding on the President 
except in rare instances when the Board has specifically authorized such exercise of authority.  

3. The President shall be the Board’s only link to operational achievement and conduct, so that all authority 
and accountability of staff, as far as the Board is concerned, shall be considered the authority and 
accountability of the President.  Accordingly,  

a. Pursuant to ARS 15-1444(A)(6) & (B)(4), the Board hereby delegates to the College President all 
of its authority to employ, specifically, it delegates all of its authority to enter into, amend, or 
terminate all employee contracts on behalf of the College, without the need for the Board to 
approve such actions before they are effective, except for any actions taken with regard to a 
contract of employment for the position of College President.  The College President may 
designate others serving under the President to assist with the duty; however, the College 
President shall continue to be responsible to the Board for the satisfactory execution of the 
delegated duty. This delegation may be rescinded in whole or in part at any time by the Board.  

b. The Board shall not evaluate, either formally or informally, any staff other than the President.  

4. In the case of Board members or Board committees requesting information or assistance without Board 
authorization, the President shall refuse such requests that require, in the President’s opinion, a material 
amount of staff time or funds or are disruptive. Refer to policy 308 for dispute resolution.  

5. The Board shall instruct the President through written policies which prescribe the organizational priorities 
to be achieved, allowing the President to use a reasonable interpretation of these policies.  Accordingly,  

a. Board Priorities-The Board shall develop policies instructing the President to achieve certain 
results for certain recipients at a specified cost.  These policies shall be developed systematically 
from the broadest, most general level to more defined levels, and shall be called Board Priorities.  

b. Presidential Roles- The Board shall develop policies which define the latitude the President may 
exercise in choosing appropriate organizational means.  These policies shall be developed 
systematically from the broadest, most general level to more defined levels, and they shall be 
called Presidential Roles policies.  

401 Delegation to and Accountability of President. Retrieved 6/1/2023. Official copy at http://yavapai.policystat.com/policy/ Page 1 of 2 
10648012/. Copyright © 2023 Yavapai College 

140 of 200

https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/author/?search_query=&terms=4711056
https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/author/?search_query=&terms=4711056
https://yavapai.policystat.com/policy_search/category/?search_query=&terms=87874


401 Delegation to and Accountability of President. Retrieved 6/1/2023. Official copy at http://yavapai.policystat.com/policy/ Page 2 of 2 
10648012/. Copyright © 2023 Yavapai College 

c.  As long as the President shall use a reasonable interpretation of the Board’s Priorities and  
Presidential Roles policies, the President shall be authorized to establish all further college  
operational policies, make all decisions, take all actions, establish all practices, and develop all  
activities.  

d.  The Board may change its Priorities and Presidential Roles policies, thereby, shifting the  
boundary between the Board and Presidential domains.     By doing so, the Board changes the  
latitude of choice given to the President.     But, as long as any particular delegation is in place, the  
Board shall respect and support the President’s choices.  

Attachments  

No Attachments  

Approval Signatures  

Step Description  Approver  Date  

Yvonne Martinez-Sandoval: President's Office Executive Assistant  10 /29/2021  

141 of 200



Yavapai College District Governing Board 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-12 
 

Authorization for the submission of a loan application to the Water 
Infrastructure Finance Authority of Arizona for a loan amount no greater than 

$500,000. 
 
 
WHEREAS, The College intends to complete a “septic to sewer” capital improvement 
project on college-owned land in Chino Valley, AND 
 
WHEREAS, through its Clean Water Revolving Loan Fund, the Water Infrastructure 
Finance Authority of Arizona (WIFA) offers loans for septic to sewer projects and these 
loans may include partially forgivable principal or grant funding, AND 
 
WHEREAS, The College must submit a loan application to WIFA to be considered for 
forgivable principal or grant funding, AND 
 
WHEREAS, WIFA requires the applicant to demonstrate that it has obtained governing 
body authorization for potential long-term indebtedness, AND 
 
WHEREAS, WIFA requires governing board identification of a dedicated revenue source 
for the loan repayment (per Arizona Admin. Code R18-15-104.B2); now therefore be it 
 
RESOLVED, that The District Governing Board of the Yavapai County Community College 
District authorizes the submission of a loan application to WIFA for the Chino Valley 
“septic to sewer” project for a maximum loan amount of $500,000, and hereby identifies 
normal operating revenue as the revenue source for loan repayment. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the District Governing Board of the Yavapai 
County Community College District this 20th day of February, 2024. 

 

________________________________ 

Mrs. Deb McCasland, Board Chair 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Mr. Chris Kuknyo, Board Secretary 

142 of 200



143 of 200



144 of 200



145 of 200



146 of 200



147 of 200



148 of 200



149 of 200



150 of 200



151 of 200



152 of 200



153 of 200



154 of 200



155 of 200



156 of 200



157 of 200



158 of 200



159 of 200



160 of 200



161 of 200



162 of 200



163 of 200



164 of 200



165 of 200



166 of 200



167 of 200



168 of 200



169 of 200



170 of 200



171 of 200



172 of 200



173 of 200



174 of 200



175 of 200



176 of 200



177 of 200



178 of 200



179 of 200



180 of 200



181 of 200



182 of 200



183 of 200



184 of 200



185 of 200



186 of 200



187 of 200



188 of 200



189 of 200



190 of 200



191 of 200



192 of 200



193 of 200



194 of 200



195 of 200



196 of 200



197 of 200



198 of 200



199 of 200



200 of 200


	DGB Regular Meeting AGENDA - February 20, 2024
	2.a.i.1 FA Slides DGB February 2024
	2.a.i.2 YCSA DGB Update Feb 2024
	2.a.i.3 YCSGA DGB 2.20.24
	2.a.ii Presidents Report on Board Policy 206, College Planning
	2.a.iii Continuing Status faculty DGB 2024 Final
	2.a.iv 1 Information from the President, Budget to Actual Monthly Rpt_Nov in Jan
	2.a.iv 1 Information from the President, Cash Reserves Monthly Rpt_Nov in Feb
	2.a.iv 2 Information from the President, Budget to Actual Monthly Rpt_Dec in Feb
	2.a.iv 2 Information from the President, Cash Reserves Monthly Rpt_Dec in Jan
	2.a.iv 3 Information from the President, Budget to Actual Monthly Rpt_Jan in Feb
	2.a.iv 3 Information from the President, Cash Reserves Monthly Rpt_Jan in Feb
	2.b 1 DGB Sightlines Planned Maint Update 0224
	2.b 2 2023-State-of-Facilities-Report.20230321205652466
	2.e.i 2023-2024 Board Meeting, Workshop, and Retreat - February 2024
	2.e.ii 2023-2024 Dates and Places of College Events - February 2024
	2.e.iii 2023-2024 Dates and Places of National, State and Local Conferences - February 2024
	3.b.i  DGB Workshop Meeting MINUTES Revised - January 16 2024
	3.b.iii YC DGB Org Budget to Actual Rpt, Nov for Feb 2024 DGB Meeting
	3.b.iii YC Financials by Fund, Nov for Feb 2024 DGB Meeting
	3.b.iv YC DGB Org Budget to Actual Rpt, Dec for Feb 2024 DGB Meeting
	3.b.iv YC Financials by Fund, Dec for Feb 2024 DGB Meeting
	3.b.v YC DGB Org Budget to Actual Rpt, Jan for Feb 2024 DGB Meeting
	3.b.v YC Financials by Fund, Jan for Feb 2024 DGB Meeting
	3.b.vi Policy 101 - Original
	3.b.vi Proposed 101 College Priorities
	3.b.vii Policy 307 - Original
	3.b.vii Proposed 307 Board Member Responsibilities and Obligations
	3.b.viii Policy 305 - Original
	3.b.viii Proposed 305 Board Governing Focus & Style
	3.b.ix Policy 306 - Original
	3.b.ix Proposed 306 Board Member Code of Conduct & Ethics
	3.b.x Policy 401 - Original
	3.b.x Proposed 401 Delegation to and Accountability of President
	3.b.xi 2024-12 Yavapai College District Board Resolution WIFA 2024
	3.b.xii.1 Sabbatical Leave Request - Jason Whitesitt
	3.b.xii.2  Sabbatical Leave Request - Nicole Dean
	3.b.xii.3 Sabbatical Leave Request - Mark Muchna
	3.b.xiii Curriculum Proposal – Deleted Programs
	3.b.xiv Curriculum Proposal – New Programs
	3.b.xv Curriculum Proposal – New Programs 2



